SULA

VINEY ARDS

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the NINETHEENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the members
of SULA VINEYARDS LIMITED (CIN: U15549MH2003PLC139352) will be held at a shorter notice
on Friday, May 27" 2022 at 12.30 pm (IST) through Video Conferencing (“VC”)/ Other Audio Visual
Means (“OAVM”) - at the Registered Office of the Company at 901, HUBTOWN SOLARIS,
N.S.PHADKE MARG, ANDHERI (EAST), MUMBAI - 400 069 to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To consider and adopt:

a. the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March
31, 2022 together with the Report of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon; and

b. the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March
31, 2022 together with the Report of the Auditors thereon.

2. To consider Declaration of dividend and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the
following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the recommendation made by the Board of Directors, a dividend at
the rate of Rs. 2.45 per equity share be and hereby declared out of profits of financial year 2021-22 to

the equity shareholders of the Company whose names appear in the Registrar of Members of the
Company on May 19, 2022.”

3. Appointment of Director in the place of retiring Director

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Arjun Anand (DIN 07639288), who retires by rotation and
being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without modification(s), as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules
made thereunder (including any statutory modification and re-enactment thereof) and other applicable
provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Arjun Anand (DIN 07639288) who is liable to
retire by rotation at the 19th Annual General Meeting and being eligible has offered himself for
appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”
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4. To re-appoint M/s Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No.
001076N/N500013), Chartered Accountants as statutory auditors of the Company and to fix their
remuneration.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without modification(s), as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 139, 142 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof) and pursuant to the recommendations of the Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company, M/s Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, Chartered
Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 001076N/ N500013) be and are hereby re-appointed as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company for term of five consecutive years, who shall hold office from the
conclusion of this 19" Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 24" Annual General Meeting
to be held in the year 2027 on such remuneration as may be decided by the Board of Directors in
consultation with the Statutory Auditors of the Company.”

Place: Mumbai By Order of the Board of Directors
Date: May 19, 2022 FOR SULA VINEYARDS LIMITED
Registered Office:

901 Hubtown Solaris, Q- /

N.S.Phadke Marg, Rucl I{Hhe

Andheri (E), Mumbai — 400 069 Company Secretary

CIN: U15549MH2003PLC139352 Membership No. A33566
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NOTES:

I. In view of the massive outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing is a norm to be
followed and pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated
April 13, 2020 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs followed by Circular No. 20/2020 dated
May 05, 2020 and Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021 and all other relevant circulars issued
from time to time, physical attendance of the Members to the AGM venue is not required and general
meeting be held through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM). Hence,
Members can attend and participate in the ensuing AGM through VC/OAVM.

2. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to
appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a Member of the
Company. However, as this AGM is being held through VC / OAVM, and physical attendance of
Members has been dispensed with, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not
be available for the AGM and therefore the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip is not annexed to this
Notice. Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of
reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

3. The statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 setting out the material facts
in respect of the business under Item Nos. 3 set out above and the details under clause 1.2.5 of
Secretarial Standard on General Meeting (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India, in respect of the persons seeking appointment/ re-appointment as Director at the AGM, is
annexed hereto.

4. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the
purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

5. All documents referred to in the accompanying notice are open for inspection at the Registered Office
of the company during office hours on all working days except Saturdays between 11.00 a.m. and
1.00 p.m. up to the date of the 19" Annual General Meeting,

6. Members who hold equity shares in dematerialized form are requested to write their client ID and
DP-ID number and those who hold equity shares in physical forms are requested to write their folio
number in the attendance slip for attending the meeting.

7. Corporate Members are requested to send duly certified copy of Board Resolution/Power of Attorney
authorizing their representative to attend and vote at the General Meeting.
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8. Shareholders seeking information with regard to accounts are requested to write to the Company in
advance so as to enable the management to keep the information ready.

9. In compliance with MCA Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021 read with Circular No. 20
dated May 5, 2020 and SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated January 15,
2021, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2021-22 is being sent only through electronic
mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company/ Depositories.
Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 2021-22 will also be available on the
Company’s website

Place: Mumbai By Order of the Board of Directors

Date: May 19, 2022 FOR SULQ’)/JIDY EYARDS LIMITED
Registered Office:

901 Hubtown Solaris, Q_\Q)/

N.S.Phadke Marg, Ruchi Sathe

Andheri (E), Mumbai — 400 069 Company Secretary

CIN: UI5549MH2003PLC139352 Membership No. A33566
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE

Details of Director Seeking Appointment/Re-Appointment at the Annual General Meeting

Name Mr. Arjun Anand

Directors Identification Number (DIN) 07639288

Age 34

Qualification He holds a bachelor’s degree in mechanical engineering from

Birla Institute of Technology and Science and a post-
graduate diploma in management from Indian Institute of
Management, Kolkata..

Experience He has previously worked with A.T. Kearney Australia Pty
Limited

Terms & Conditions of appointment/re- -

appointment
Details of Remuneration -
Date of first Appointment on the Board of | October 03, 2018

the Company
Shareholding in the Company -
Relation with other Directors, Manager or -

KMP

No. of Meetings of Board attended during 5

the year

Other Directorship, Membership/ Other Directorship:

Chairmanship of committees of other 1.Drums Food International Private Limited
Boards ' 2.Veeba Food Services Private Limited

3.Manash Lifestyle Private Limited

4. Wakefit Innovations Private Limited
5.A-Star-Education Holdings Pte Ltd
6.A-Star-Education English SG Holdco Pte. Ltd.
7.A-Star-Education Enrichment SG Holdco Pte. Ltd.
8.A-Star-Education Adventures SG HoldCo Pte. Ltd.
9.A-Star-Education Discovery Camps Pte. Ltd.
10.White Coral Limited

11.Sara Global Pte Ltd

Sula Vineyards Limited
GMENT Sye (formerly known as Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
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To,
The Members,

Directors’ Report

SULA VINEYARDS LIMITED

The Directors present the 19" Annual Report of Sula Vineyards Limited and the standalone and

consolidated Audited Accounts for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022.

1.Key Financial highlights (Standalone and Consolidated)

The Company’s financial performance, for the year ended March 31, 2022 is summarized below:

(INR millions)

Particulars Consolidated Standalone

2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21
Gross Income 4,567.00 4,215.32 4,239.98 3,437.07
Earnings Before Interest,
Depreciation, Tax, Amortization
and Exceptional items
(EBIDTAE) 1,160.71 645.12 1,099.94 597.20
Earnings Before Interest,
Depreciation, Tax and 1,160.71 622.71 1,099.94 573.45
Amortization (EBITDA)
Finance Charges 229.23 333.86 213.25 322.60
Provision for Depreciation 236.11 256.99 224.14 253.64
Net Profit / (Loss)Before Tax 695.37 31.86 662.55 (2.79)
Provision for Tax 173.98 3.81 173.98 3.54
Other Comprehensive Loss
(net of tax) (1.47) (2.77) 0.64) 2.78)
Total Comprehensive
Income/(Loss) i o 487,93 ©11)
Balance of Profit brought 1,204.59 1.179 41 1,433.01 1,442.12
forward ’
Balance‘ a\fallable for 1,724.31 1,204.59 1,920.94 1,433.01
appropriation
Dividend paid on Equity Shares (194.49) - (194.49) -
Transfer to General Reserve - - - -
Surplus carried to Balance Sheet 1,529.82 1,204.59 1,726.45 1,433.01

2. Business Performance & State of Company Affairs

Business Performance

FY?22 was one of the best years in Sula’s history with record breaking financial results. We finished the
year with our strongest EBITDA ever, gained market share and strengthened our lead as the clear
undisputed #1 in the Indian wine industry, and significantly improved our cash flow to end the FY in

our strongest ever financial position.

The fundamental shift in our margins has come from single-minded focus on our core business,
streamlined operations and sustainable long-term strategies around our product mix. pricing, dealer

incentives, and margins.

Our company is now certified as a *Great Place to Work’ taking its place among India’s Top 100
companies in this regard, a matter of great pride that speaks volumes of our people-centric approach.




We have emerged stronger from the pandemic, gaining additional market share, and accelerating our
profitability. As we enter FY23, we continue to be optimistic — the demand for our wines has never
been stronger, as more and more Indians move to wine as their preferred alcoholic beverage, and Sula
is the clear #1 consumers’ choice!

Financial Overview

Net revenues grew by 8.3% to Z4567.00 million in FY22 from ¥4215.32 million in FY21, with revenue
from our own brands jumping 30.0%. EBITDA surged by 79.9% to ¥1160.71 million from 645,12
million LY with an unprecedented 1011 basis points leap in EBITDA margin.

Production and Harvest

Harvest 2022 was excellent in quantity as well as quality, and we crossed a landmark 10,000 tons of
wine grapes for the first time. To meet the robust projected future demand, we planted 240 acres of
wine grapes in 2021 in Maharashtra and Karnataka.

With the introduction of nine Elite wines at Domaine Sula, the entire Sula portfolio is now being
manufactured at Karnataka, a terrific achievement. We also took full charge of winemaking operations
at York, and already set about improving the quality of the York wines.

Hospitality

Our hospitality business bounced back strong with the pent-up travel demand post-Covid and revenues
surged 90% in FY22. This business continues to attract more wine lovers and enthusiasts from across
the country and generates brand loyalty for Sula. Room occupancy is at an all-time high, and on-site
wine revenues are breaking past records. Occupancy for the year was close to 75% with our highest-
ever ARR, crossing INR 10,000 for the first time. Our newly added Hermitage suite and Tree Houses
added a more luxurious offering to our increasingly wine-knowledgeable clientele.

Marketing

FY22 was a landmark, record-breaking year for our digital marketing with our reach and engagement
on top social media platforms Facebook and Instagram scaling new heights. As a result we are now in
the Top 15 Global Wineries on Instagram in terms of followers, joining the likes of Dom Perignon and
Veuve Clicquot. Our influencer strategy with vineyard visits by Instagram celebs with over 1Mn
followers has led to an increase in brand awareness with a much wider and newer audience, especially
resonating with younger potential wine drinkers. By year-end we were focusing much more on Hindi
and regional-language content on YouTube for the first time, an approach we are sure will reap
dividends.

On the trade marketing front which had taken a backseat during Covid we restarted activations of in-
store displays across seven cities and initial results exceeded expectations.

Imports and Exports

In FY22 we continued to rationalize our imports portfolio and discontinued more brands which did not
align with long term business and profitability goals. As a result of our sharpened focus on our
remaining brands, Le Grand Noir is now the #2 imported wine brand in India after Pernod’s Jacob’s
Creek.

Our exports business has bounced back from the pandemic largely driven by select export markets and
airline listings.

Acquisitions and Subsidiaries

In FY22 we successfully completed the acquisition of York winery adding 19 brands to our portfolio. It
was a strategic acquisition to enhance Sula’s market share as well as add strength to our hospitality
operations. The recent upgrades undertaken at York to elevate product quality and customer
experience have begun showing positive results and we now look forward to building on this newly
acquired asset.

Sustainability
At Sula, Green is as important as Red, White and Rosé! Sustainability is a guiding principle of life and
business for us.




In FY22 we made further strides in being recognised as one of the world’s most sustainable wine
producers. We slashed water consumption per case to 56 litres from 80 litres in FY?21. By installing
dozens of heat pumps and other measures we also significantly cut energy consumption per case. We
added 180kw of Solar PV panels at York directly after the acquisition, and overall SO00KW of panels
were installed across our facilities resulting in a 60% share of our own solar energy in our overall
energy mix.

In FY22, Sula became an official applicant to the International Wineries for Climate Action (IWCA), a
global group of environmentally committed wineries strongly focused on reducing carbon emissions.
As climate change and global warming become more glaring issues with each passing year, we aim to
always be in the forefront of fighting the good fight with important sustainability initiatives.

3. Dividend

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on December 15, 2021, declared interim dividend of INR
2.5/- per equity share of face value of INR 2/- each for FY 2021-2022. The interim dividend was paid
to the shareholders holding shares as on Wednesday, December 15, 2021. The interim dividend payout
for FY 2021-22 stands at INR 19,44,88,750 /- (Rupees Nineteen Crores Forty-Four Lakhs Eighty-
Eight Thousand Seven Hundred and Fifty only). The Board recommends to declare a final dividend of
INR 2.40/- per equity share of face value INR 2/- each for FY 2021-22 aggregating to INR
19,58,42,100/- (Rupees Nineteen Crores Fifty Eight Lakhs Forty-Two Thousand One Hundred only)
out of the profits of financial year 2021-22 to the equity shareholders of the Company whose names
appear in the Registrar of Members of the Company on May 19, 2022.

4. Material changes and commitments if any, affecting the financial position of the company which
have occurred between the end of the financial year of the company to which the financial
statements relate and the date of the report;

I.  Conversion of warrants into equity shares

- Your Company has converted 27,66,959 warrants of Mr. Rajeev Samant, Managing Director
and CEO of the Company into 27,66,959 equity shares having face value of Rs. 2 each.

- Your Company has converted 2,25,825 warrants of Mr. Alok Vajpeyi, Independent Director of
the Company into 2,25,825 equity shares having face value of Rs. 2 each..

- Your Company has converted 10,000 warrants of Mr. Nirjay Singh into 10,000 equity shares
having face value of Rs. 2 each.

Il Sula International Limited (Company Number 12053984), wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company was struck off on April 19, 2022, and dissolved with effect from April, 26 2022.

III.  Other than as disclosed in the financial statements, the directors are not aware of any other
matters or circumstances that have arisen since the end of the financial year which have
significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations of the Company, the results of
those operations and the state of affairs of the Company in subsequent years.

5. Extract of Annual Return

Annual return in Form MGT-7 as required under Section 92(3) of the Companies Act and Rule 12 of
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is available on the Company’s website
at www.sulavineyards.com.

6. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

During the year under review, following are the changes in Directors of the Company:

1) Mr. Roberto Italia was appointed as an Additional Director with effect from July 15, 2021. At the
AGM held on July 30, 2021, he was appointed as Nominee Director of Verlinvest Asia Pte




2)

3)

4)

5)
6)
7)

8)

Limited.

Mrs. Sangeeta Pendurkar was appointed as an Additional Director with effect from December 15,
2021. At the EGM held on December 27, 2021; she was appointed as an Independent Director for
a term of three years.

Mr. Chetan Desai who was appointed as a Non- Executive Director with effect from June 1, 2018,
was appointed as an Independent Director in the EGM held on December 27, 2021, for a term of
three years.

Mr. Alok Vajpeyi who was appointed as a Non-Executive Director with effect from December 2,
2020, was appointed as an Independent Director in the EGM held on December 27, 2021 for a
term of three years. ,

Mr. Hank Uberoi ceased to be the Director of the Company with effect from July 1, 2021.

Mr. Deepak Shahdadpuri ceased to be the Director of the Company with effect from July 1, 2021.
Mr. Kerry Damskey ceased to be the Director of the Company with effect from September 29,
2021.

Ms. Shagun Tiwary ceased to be the Director of the Company with effect from October 5, 2021.

Your Directors place on record their appreciation for the contributions made by Mr. Hank Uberoi,
Mr. Deepak Shahdadpuri, Mr. Kerry Damskey and Ms. Shagun Tiwary during their tenure.

Retirement by Rotation

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Act read with provisions contained in the
Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Arjun Anand will retire by rotation at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer himself for re-appointment.
The Board has recommended his re-appointment.

Director(s) Disclosure

Based on the declarations and confirmations received from the Directors, none of the Directors of
the Company are disqualified from being appointed as Directors of the Company.

Statement of the declaration provided by independent directors under Section 149(6) of the
Act:

The Company has received necessary declarations from all the Independent Directors under
section 149(7) of the Act confirming that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down in
Section 149(6) of the Act. The Company has also received from them declaration of compliance of
Rule 6 (1) & (2) of the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014,
regarding online registration with the "Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs" at Manesar, for
inclusion of name in the data bank of Independent Directors.

Statement regarding opinion of the Board with regard to integrity, expertise and experience
(including the proficiency) of the independent directors appointed during the year:

With regard to integrity, expertise and experience (including the proficiency) of the independent
directors appointed during the Financial year 2021-22, the Board of Directors have taken on record
the declarations and confirmations submitted by the independent directors and is of the opinion
that the independent director is a person of integrity and possesses relevant expertise and
experience and his continued association as Director will be of immense benefit and in the best
interest of the Company.

Regarding proficiency of the independent directors, ascertained from the online proficiency self-
assessment test conducted by the institute, as notified under sub-section (1) of section 150 of the
Act, the Board of Directors have taken on record the information submitted by independent
director that he/she has complied with the applicable laws.




Key Managerial Personnel

In accordance with the provisions of Sections 2(51) and 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the
following are the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company:

(i) Mr. Rajeev Samant, Manging Directors was appointed as Chief Executive Officer designated as
Key Managerial Personnel with effect from February 23, 2022.

(ii) Mr. Chaitanya Rathi, Chief Operating Officer was designated as Key Managerial Personnel with
effect from February 23, 2022.

(iii)Mr. Bittu Varghese, Chief Financial Officer was designated as Key Managerial Personnel with
effective February 23, 2022.

(iv) Ms. Ruchi Sathe who was appointed as Company Secretary with effective July 15, 2021 was
designated Key Managerial Personnel with effective February 23, 2022,

7. Board of Directors:

a. Composition of the Board
The composition of the Board is in conformity with Regulation 17 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations 2015 which, inter alia, stipulates that the

Board should have an optimum combination of executive and non-executive directors.

As on March 31, 2022, the Board comprised of six Directors including three independent
Directors which includes independent woman director and the non-executive Chairman.

The present strength of Board of Directors of the Company is as follows:

Sr. No. DIN Name of the Directors Category Designation
1. 00020675 | Mr. Rajeev Samant Executive Managing Director and
2 03595319 | Mr. Chetan Desai Non — Executive Efigpendent Director
3 00019098 | Mr. Alok Vajpeyi Non — Executive | Independent Director
4 09228481 | Mr. Roberto Italia Non — Executive | Nominee Director
5 07639288 | Mr. Arjun Anand Non — Executive | Nominee Director
6 03321646 | Ms. Sangeeta Pendurkar | Non — Executive | Independent Director

b. Meetings of the Board
The Board of Directors duly met 6 times during the financial year from April 01, 2021 to March
31, 2022. The dates on which the meetings were held are April 15, 2021, July 15, 2021, July 30,
2021, September 29, 2021, December 15, 2021 and February 23, 2022.

8. Committees of the Board of Directors

(1) Audit Committee:

In terms of Section 179 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors has constituted an
Audit Committee. The Board at its meeting held on February 23, 2022 re-constituted the Audit
Committee. The Committee comprises of 3 Directors as below.




Sr. No. | Name of the Directors
1. Mr. Chetan Desai, Chairperson
2. | Mr. Alok Vajpeyi, Member
3. | Mr. Arjun Anand, Member

All the recommendations of the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board.

During the year i.e. from April 01, 2021 to March 31, 2022, Audit committee met 4 times on July
15, 2021, September 29, 2021, December 15, 2021 and February 23, 2022.

(ii) IPO Readiness Committee:

The IPO Readiness Committee was constituted by a resolution of the Board comprising of 4
Directors a below:

Sr. No. | Name of the Directors
1. | Mr. Alok Vajpeyi, Chairperson
2. Mr. Chetan Desai, Member
3. | Mr. Rajeev Samant, Member
4 Mr. Arjun Anand, Member

During the year i.e. from April 01, 2021 to March 31, 2022, the IPO Readiness Committee met 2
times on July 15, 2021, September 29, 2021.

The Committee was dissolved on December 15, 2021.
(iii) IPO Committee:

The IPO Committee was constituted by a resolution of our Board at its meeting held on February
23, 2022. The Committee comprises of four Directors as below:

Sr. No. | Name of the Directors

1. Mr. Alok Vajpeyi, Chairperson
2. | Mr. Rajeev Samant, Member
3. Mr. Chetan Desai, Member
4. | Mr. Arjun Anand, Member

During the year i.e. from April 01, 2021 to March 31, 2022, IPO committee met once on February
23,2022.

(iv) Nomination and Remuneration Committee:
In terms of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors has constituted

Nomination & Remuneration Committee at its meeting held on February 23, 2022 comprising of 3
Directors as below:

Sr. No. | Name of the Directors

1. | Mr. Alok Vajpeyi, Chairperson

2. | Mrs. Sangeeta Pendurkar,
Member
3. Mr. Arjun Anand, Member

No meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held in the Financial Year
2021-2022.




v)

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee:

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee was constituted by a resolution of the Board at their
meeting held on February 23, 2022 comprising of 3 Directors as below:

Sr. No. | Name of the Directors
1. | Mr. Alok Vajpeyi, Chairperson
2. | Mr. Arjun Anand, Member
3. | Mr. Rajeev Samant, Member

No meetings of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee were held in the Financial Year 2021-
2022.

(vi) Risk Management Committee:

(vii)

The Risk Management Committee was constituted by a resolution of our Board at its meeting held
on February 23, 2022. The Committee was re-constituted vide circular resolution passed by the
Board with requisite majority on March 08, 2022. The Committee comprises of three Directors and
one Member as below:

Sr. No. | Name of the Directors
1. | Mrs. Sangeeta Pendurkar,
Chairperson
2. | Mr. Arjun Anand, Member
3. | Mr. Rajeev Samant, Member
4. | Mr. Chaitanya Rathi, Member

During the year i.e. from April 01, 2021 to March 31, 2022, Risk Management committee met
once on February 23, 2022.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The CSR committee established in accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013. The Committee comprises of three Directors as below:

Sr. No. | Name of the Directors
1. Mr. Rajeev Samant, Chairperson
2. Mr. Chetan Desai, Member
3. | Mrs. Sangeeta Pendurkar,
Member

During the year ie. from April 01, 2021 to March 31, 2022, Corporate Social Responsibility
committee met once on July 15, 2022,

9. Share Capital

Authorized Share Capital

The Authorized Share Capital of the Company as on March 31, 2022, is Rs. 20,20,60,000/- (Rupees
Twenty Crores Twenty Lakhs and Sixty Thousand Only) divided into 10,10,30,000 (Ten Crores Ten
Lakhs Thirty Thousand) Equity Shares having face value of Rs. 2/- (Rupees Two) each.




Sub-Division of Equity Shares

The nominal value of the equity shares of the Company was subdivided from Rs. 10/- per share to Rs.
2/- per share at the shareholder’s meeting held on July 30, 2021.

Paid up and subscribed share capital

The paid up and subscribed share capital of the Company as on 31st March, 2022 is Rs.
15,71,96,182/-.

Issue and Allotment of Equity Shares

L. Issue of Equity Shares on Preferential basis (‘Preferential Issue’)

During the year, the Company has created, offered/issued, and allotted 13,33,333 Equity
Shares on preferential basis (“Issue”) of a face value of Rs 2/- at a premium of Rs. 238/-
aggregating to Rs. 31,99,99,920/- (Rupees Thirty-One Crores Ninety-Nine Lakhs Ninety-
Nine Thousand Nine Hundred and Twenty only).

11. Issue of Equity Shares on Preferential basis (‘Preferential Issue?)

During the year, the Company has created, offered/issued, and allotted 41,667 Equity
Shares on preferential basis (“Issue”) of a face value of Rs 2/- at a premium of Rs. 238/-
aggregating to Rs. 1,00,00,080/- (Rupees One Crore Eighty only).

III. Emplovee Stock Option Scheme 2018

Pursuant to the terms of Employee Stock Option Scheme 2018 including modifications
thereon and exercise of stock options, 150,000 equity shares of face value of Rs. 2/- per
share fully paid up (post sub-division) were allotted to Mr. Karan Vasani, Chief
Winemaker & SVP of the Company.

IV. Conversion of warrants into equity shares

During the year under review, your Company has converted 16,71,221 warrants of Mr.
Rajeev Samant, Managing Director and CEO of the Company into 16,71,221 equity shares.

10. Conversion of the Company from Private Limited to a Public Limited Company and
consequent change of name of the Company

Your Company was converted into a Public Limited Company effective February 11, 2022 upon issue
of fresh certificate of incorporation from Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra and
accordingly its name has been changed to “Sula Vineyards Limited" (formerly Sula Vineyards Private
Limited), leading to a consequent amendment to the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Company.




11. Auditors

Statutory Auditors

M/s Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No.
001076N/N500013), had been appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company at the 14" AGM held
on September 25, 2017 for a period of 5 years. It is proposed to appoint M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co.
LLP as Statutory Auditors for 2™ term of 5 years from conclusion of 19" AGM till the conclusion of
the 24" AGM of the Company to be held in the year 2027 till the 24™ AGM at such remuneration as
may be decided by the Board of Directors of the Company. Pursuant to the amendments of Section
139 of the Companies Act, 2013 by the Companies Amendment Act, 2017 notified on May 07, 2018,
the requirement of ratification of their appointment by the Members has been withdrawn.

M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP, have confirmed their eligibility and qualification required under
Section 139, 141 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules issued
thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactments(s) thereof for the time being in
force).

Secretarial Auditor

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company had appointed
M/s. Sunil Agarwal & Co., a firm of Company Secretaries in Practice, to undertake the secretarial
Audit of the Company for FY 2022. The Report of the Secretarial Audit is annexed herewith as
Annexure V. The Report does not contain any observation or qualification requiring explanation or
comments from the Board under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013. The Board, at its
meeting held on May 19, 2022, has re-appointed M/s. Sunil Agarwal & Co., as Secretarial Auditor, for
conducting Secretarial Audit of the Company for FY 2022-23.

12. Details of adequacy of internal financial controls

According to section 134(5)(e) of the Act the term Internal Financial Control (IFC) means the policies
and procedures adopted by the company for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information.

The Company has a well-placed, proper and adequate IFC system which ensures that all assets are
safeguarded and protected and that the transactions are authorized, recorded and reported correctly.

The Company’s IFC system also comprises of due compliances with Company's policies and Standard
Operating Procedures (SOP's) and audit and compliance by in-house Internal Audit Division,
supplemented by internal audit checks from M/s. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu India LLP., the Internal
Auditors.

The Internal Auditors independently evaluate the adequacy of internal controls and concurrently audit
the majority of the transactions in value terms. Independence of the audit and compliance is ensured
by direct reporting by Internal Auditors to the Audit Committee of the Board.

Every quarter the significant audit findings, the corrective steps recommended, and their
implementation status are presented to the Audit Committee.




13. Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 134 (3)(c) and 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, Directors of your Company
confirm that:

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the Directors have selected appropriate accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the loss of the
company for the same period;

(c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting

records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company

and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d)
(e)

the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis; and

the Directors have laid down proper internal financial controls to be followed by the company
and that such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively

(f) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and are operating effectively.

14. Subsidiaries/ Joint Venture/ Associate Companies:

The Company has 2 (two) subsidiaries as on March 31, 2022. There are no associate companies or
joint venture companies within the meaning of section 2(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act™).

A statement in Form AOC-1 as required under Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 containing
salient features of the financial statements of the subsidiary companies is forming part of this Annual
Report in “ANNEXURE-I”.

15. Issue of employee stock options

The Board of directors, shall, inter alia, disclose in the Directors’ Report for the year, the details as
provided in rule 12 (9) of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014,

Particulars ESOS 2018 ESOS 2018 | ESOS COO | ESOS 2020 | ESOS

2) & CFO 2019 2021
Options granted Nil Nil 307,390 16,665 | 1,806,000
Options vested Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Options exercised Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total number of 150,000 Nil Nil Nil Nil
shares arising out
of exercise of
options
Options 250,000 50,000 Nil Nil 23,000
forfeited/lapsed/ca
ncelled
Exercise price Rs. 126.2 Rs. 170 Rs. 170 Rs. 170 Rs. 170
Variations of Amendment | To  modify [ To  modify | To  modify | Amendme




terms of options to the scheme | the number | the number | the number [nt to the
mainly relates | of equity | of equity | of equity | scheme
to: shares shares shares mainly
1. granted/to be | granted/to be | granted/to be | relates to:
Making the | granted, granted, granted, 1.
scheme nominal nominal nominal Ma
compliant value per | value per | value per | king  the
with SEBI | share thereon | share thereon | share thereon | scheme
(Share Based | and strike | and strike | and strike | compliant
Employee price to align | price to align | price to align | with SEBI
Benefits and | with the | with the | with the | (Share
Sweat Equity) | aforesaid aforesaid aforesaid Based
Regulations, | sub-division | sub-division | sub-division | Employee
2021. of equity | of equity | of equity | Benefits
2. To shares. shares. shares. and Sweat
extend  the Equity)
exercise Amendment | Amendment | Amendment | Regulation
period  upto | to the scheme | to the scheme | to the scheme | s, 2021.
six  months | mainly mainly mainly 2. To
from the date | relates to: relates to: relates to: extend the
of listing or | 1.Making the | 1.Making the | 1. Making the | exercise
the date of | scheme scheme scheme period
vesting, compliant compliant compliant upto  six
which  ever | with  SEBI | with  SEBI | with  SEBI | months
later. (Share Based | (Share Based | (Share Based | from the
Employee Employee Employee date of
Benefits and | Benefits and | Benefits and | listing or
Sweat Sweat Sweat the date of
Equity) Equity) Equity) vesting,
Regulations, | Regulations, | Regulations, | which ever
2021. 2021. 2021. later.
2; To 2, To 2 To
extend the | extend  the | extend  the
exercise exercise exercise
period upto | period upto | period upto
six ~months | six months | six months
from the date | from the date | from the date
of listing or | of listing or | of listing or
the date of [ the date of |the date of
vesting, vesting, vesting,
which  ever | which ever | which  ever
later. later. later.
Money realized by Rs. Nil Nil Nil Nil
exercise of options 1,89,30,000
Total number of 0 50,000 307,390 16,665 | 1,806,000

options in force




Employee wise details of options granted to:

Particulars
(a) Directors and key managerial personnel 1.Mr. Chaitanya Rathi, COO
2.Mr. Bittu Varghese, CFO
3.Ms. Ruchi Sathe, Company
Secretary
(b) Any other employee who received a grant in any one year | 1. Chaitanya Rathi, COO
of options amounting to 5% or more of the options granted
during the year
(c) Identified employees who are granted options, during any -
one year equal to exceeding 1% of the issued capital (excluding
outstanding warrants and conversions) of the Company at the
time of grant

16. Vigil Mechanism

Your Company has established Vigil Mechanism (Whistleblower policy) in accordance with the
provisions of Section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 to report instances of unethical
behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the code of conduct or any policy of the Company.
The Vigil Mechanism Policy has been uploaded on the website of the Company at
https://sulavineyards.com/pdf/Vigil Mechanism Policy.pdf

The mechanism adopted by the Company encourages the Whistleblower to report genuine concerns or
grievances and provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of Whistle Blower to those who
avail such mechanism and also provides for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee, in
exceptional cases,

17. Risk management

Sula has in place comprehensive risk assessment and minimization procedures. The Risk Management
Committee of the Board is responsible for preparation of Risk Management Plan, reviewing and
monitoring the same on regular basis, identifying and reviewing critical risks on regular basis,
reporting of key changes in critical risks to the Board on an ongoing basis, evaluation of risk
management systems by the Audit Committee and such other functions as may be prescribed by the
Board.

Sula is committed to protect the interests of its customers, stakeholders, investors, sharcholders,
employees and each person or entity with whom it is associated.

Towards this goal, Sula consistently seeks to strengthen its internal processes and evaluates innovative
ways to blunt the risk impact.

Sula has a well-defined risk management framework in place and a robust organizational structure for
managing and reporting risks. There is an overarching risk management policy in place that was
reviewed and approved by the Board. The major risks identified by the businesses and functions are
systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing basis.

During the year, no major risks were noticed, which may threaten the existence of the Company.




18. Nomination and Remuneration Policy

This Nomination and Remuneration Policy (the “Policy”) has been formulated by the Company in
compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the Board of Directors of
Company (“Board”) adopted the Policy at its meeting held on February 23, 2022.

The broad objectives of the Nomination and Remuneration policy are:

i.  to guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management;
ii.  evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report to the
Board for further evaluation of the Board;
li. to recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management.

The guiding principles of the policy are to ensure that:

e The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and
motivate Directors, KMP and senior management of the quality required to run the Company
successfully.

e Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks and

* Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management involves a
balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance
objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.

In accordance with the Nomination and Remuneration Policy, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee formulates the criteria for appointment as a Director, Key Managerial Personnel and
Senior Management, identifies persons who are qualified to be Directors and nominates candidates
for Directorships subject to the approval of Board, evaluates the performance of the individual
directors, recommends to the Board, remuneration to Managing Director / Whole-time Directors,
ensures that the remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and other employees
is based on Company’s overall philosophy and guidelines and is based on industry standards, linked
to performance of the self and the Company and is a balance of fixed pay and variable pay and
recommends to the Board, sitting fees/ commission to the Non-Executive Directors.

The Company’s Nomination and Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and
senior ~ management is  available on the websitt of the Company at
https://sulavineyards.com/pdf/Nomination_and Renumeration Policy.pdf

19. Particulars of Deposits

The Company has not accepted any deposit (under Rule 2[c] of the Companies [Acceptance of
Deposits] Rules, 2014) within the meaning of Sections 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) for the time being in force).

20. Loans. Guarantees and investments

Pursuant to Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 disclosure on particulars relating to Loans,
Advances, Guarantees and Investments are provided as part of the financial statements.




21. Explanation to Remarks: In the Statutory Auditors’ Report

The statutory audit report for the year 2021-22 does not contain any qualification, reservation or
adverse remark or disclaimer made by Statutory Auditors.

22. Maintenance of Cost Records

The provisions pertaining to maintenance of Cost Records as specified by the Central Government
under subsection (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, are not applicable to the Company.

23. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Your Company believes in being socially accountable to all its stakeholders and enhancing its positive
impact on Society. Details of CSR activities undertaken during the year are annexed to this report as
“ANNEXURE III” in the format as prescribed in the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014. The policy is available on the website of the Company at:
https://sulavineyards.com/pdf/CSR_Policy.pdf

Your Company organized a blood donation camp at Nashik location in the month of March 2022. Sula
employees — 129 from Hospitality and 17 employees from the Winery and Security participated in the
camp.

24, Contracts or arrangements with related parties

The particulars of every contract or arrangements entered into by the Company with related partiés
referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 are periodically placed before
the Board for its approval and the particulars of contracts entered during the year as per Form AOC-2
is enclosed as “ANNEXURE II”

25. Dematerialization of Shares

The Company encourages its member to hold shares in electronic form and the Company has
established connectivity with depositories i.e. National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and
Central Depository Services (India) Limited. 66.33% of the Company’s paid up Equity Share Capital
is in dematerialized form as on March 31, 2022. The Company’s Registrars are Kfin Technologies
Limited having its office at Selenium, Tower B, Plot No — 31 and 32, Financial District,
Nanakramguda, Hyderabad, Rangareedi 500 032 Telangana, India.

26. Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts

There have been no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators, Courts or Tribunals
which would impact the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

27. Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Woman at Workplace

Your Company is committed to providing a safe, healthy and conducive environment for all persons
associated with us. Internal Complaint Committee has been constituted at various locations pursuant to
the provisions for the Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Woman at Workplace which shall ensure
complete confidentiality and fair enquiry process of the complaints received. During the year under
review, no cases of sexual harassment were reported.




28. Conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo

The details of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo are
as follows:

a) Conservation of energy

)

the steps taken or impact on conservation
of energy

Installation of Alternate source to conserve

energy as below:

v' Heat pump mechanism for heating the
water.

v’ Electrical vehicle.

v' Working on Electrical induction instead of
LPG burner

v Solar Roof top PV System

v’ Solar water Pumping system

v Solar Water heating system

v Biogas Plant

v’ Rainwater harvesting

(ii)

the steps taken by the company for utilizing
alternate sources of energy

Implemented as per above sources

(iil)

the capital investment on energy
conservation equipment’s

INR 386.8 Lakh in FY 2022

b) Technology absorption

() the efforts made towards technology | Effort have been undertaken by technical
absorption team as per winery requirement and
developed system with maximum benefit to
conserve the energy
(ii) the  benefits derived like product | Generated 3.66 million electrical units from
improvement, cost reduction, product | Solar roof top system and saved
development or import substitution approximately 3700 MT of Co2
(iii) in case of imported technology (imported
during the last three years reckoned from
the beginning of the financial year)-
(a) the details of technology imported -
(b) the year of import; -
(c) whether the technology been fully | -
absorbed
(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where | -
absorption has not taken place, and the
reasons thereof
(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and | -

Development

¢) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo

Foreign exchange Year ended 31.03.2022 Year ended 31.03.2021
(INR in millions) (INR in millions)

(i) Earnings 68.38 116.86

(if) Outgo 69.23 196.15




29. Secretarial Standards

The Secretarial Standards SS-1 and SS-2 issued and notified by the Institute of Company Secretaries
of India has been complied with by the Company during the financial year under review.
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ANNEXURE I

Form AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries

(INR in million)

SL No. Particulars Details
L Name of the subsidiary Artisan Spirits Private Limited Sula International
2. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding Same as Holding Company Same as Holding Company

Company’s reporting period
3. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant

Financial year in the case of foreign Annual Report on CSR Activities INR GBP

subsidiaries 99.82
4. Share capital (INR) Authorised- 360.00 | Authorised- 0.10

Paid-up - 353.50 Paid-up - 0.10

5. Reserves & surplus (279.32) (2.70)
6. Total assets 569.21 0.09
7. Total Liabilities 495.03 2.69
8. Investments NIL NIL
9. Turnover 436.59 NIL
10. Profit before taxation 16.99 (0.35)
11. Provision for taxation NIL NIL
12. Profit after taxation 16.99 (0.35)
13. Proposed Dividend NIL NIL
14. % of shareholding 100% 100%

Note: This Form is to be certified in the same manner in which the Balance Sheet is to be certified.




For and on behalf of the Board

K

Rajeev Samant Chetan Desai
Managing Director Director

DIN: 00020675 DIN: 03595319
%_s Anand Bittu Varghese
Director CFO

DIN: 07639288 ACA: 117278




ANNEXURE - 11

FORM NO. AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transaction under four proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis — N.A.

SL. No. Particulars Details
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship
b) | Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction
c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the value, if any N.A.
e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions’
f) Date of approval by the Board
g) Amount paid as advances, if any
h) | Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting as required under first proviso to section 188
2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.
Sr. Name (s) of the Nature of Duration of the | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction Date of Amount
No related party & contracts/ contracts/ including the value, if any approval by | paid as
nature of arrangement/ | arrangements/tr the Board | advance
relationship transaction ansaction s, if any
1 | Artisan Spirits Pvt | As per Board | Ongoing/ Sale of Products\Sale of Raw Material\Sale of Packing | 07.06.17 | Nil
[ Limited Resolution Periodical Material\Purchase of Products\Purchase of Raw Material\ 23.05.18
Interest Income\Rent Income\Purchase of Property Plant | 28.05.19
(Subsidiary) Equipment\Sale of Property Plant Equipment\Loan Given) 18.09.19
Loan Repaid\Interest Repaid\ Corporate Guarantee 14.05.20
15.07.21
29.09.21
15.12.21




04.12.19

Sr. Name (s) of the Nature of Duration of the | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction Date of Amount
No related party & contracts/ contracts/ including the value, if any approval by | paid as
nature of arrangement/ | arrangements/tr the Board | advance
relationship transaction ansaction s, if any
2 Sula  International | As per Board Loan Given 28.05.19 Nil
Limited Resolution 16.03.20
15.12.21
(Subsidiary)
3 Rajeev S Samant As per | Long Term | Sale of Products\Purchase of Raw Material\Interest Expense | 20.05.15 Nil
mutually arrangements/ | \Repayment of Lease liability\Purchase of Immovable | 08.02.17
_ (Managing Director | agreed terms Periodical | Property\Dividend expense\Loan Taken\Loan | 06.02.18
CEO) Repaid\Remuneration to KMP 23.05.18
11.09.18
28.05.19
04.12.19
16.03.21
29.09.21
15.12.21
23.02.22
4 Suresh A Samant As per | Long Term | Purchase of property, plant & equipment/Purchase of Raw | 31.05.16 Nil
mutually arrangements/ Materials/ Managerial Remuneration/Rent Expense 08.02.17
Relative of KMP agreed terms Periodical 06.02.18
_ 11.09.18
28.05.19
_ 04.12.19
__ 16.03.21
29.09.21
5 Bharat Samant As per Board | Long Term | Purchase of Raw Material 08.02.17 Nil
Resolution arrangements/ 06.02.18
Relative of KMP Periodical 11.09.18




Sr. Name (s) of the Nature of Duration of the | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction Date of Amount
No related party & contracts/ contracts/ including the value, if any approval by | paid as
nature of arrangement/ | arrangements/tr the Board | advance
relationship transaction ansaction s, if any
6 Sulabha Samant As per Board | Long Term | Purchase of Raw Material 08.02.17 Nil

Resolution arrangements/ 06.02.18
Relative of KMP Periodical 11.09.18
04.12.19

For and on behalf of the Board

Chetan Desai
Director
DIN: 0359531

Rajeev Samant
Managing Director
DIN: 00020675




ANNEXURE 111

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

(1) Abrief outline of the Company's CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to

the CSR policy and projects or Programs.
CSR Policy is stated herein below: CSR Policy (Approved by the Board of Directors on May 27, 2014 and has been last amended on February 23, 2022)

Our aim is to be one of the most respected companies in India delivering superior and sustainable value to all our customers, associates, shareholders,
employees and Society at large.

Since inception, we have focused on achieving the ‘triple bottom line’ - people, planet and profit. It has been our constant endeavor to achieve growth
in a socially and environmentally sustainable manner.

The CSR initiatives focus on holistic development of host communities and create social, environmental and economic value to the society.

To pursue these objectives, we will continue to:

1) Respect, protect, and make efforts to restore the environment.

2) To create livelihoods for people, support rural development, improve the living environment within the vicinity of our winery’s operations.

3) Acting in a socially responsible way.
4) Encouraging our staff to be mindful of the effect of their actions on any natural resource.

(2) Composition of the CSR Committee.

The CSR Committee was constituted with the following members:

Sr No. Name of Director | Designation / Nature of Number of meetings of Number of meetings of CSR
Directorship CSR Committee held Committee attended during the
during the year year
1. Mr. Rajeev Samant | Managing Director & CEQ 1 1 _
DIN: 00020675 _
2. Mr. Kerry | Director 1 1 "
Damskey DIN: 07793310




The CSR Committee was re-constituted by the Board at its 90th meeting held on February 23, 2022, with the following members:

Sr No. Name of Director | Designation / Nature of Number of meetings of Number of meetings of CSR

Directorship CSR Committee held Committee attended during the
during the year year

1. Mr. Rajeev Samant | Managing Director & CEO 1 1
DIN: 00020675

2. Mr. Chetan Desai | Independent Director 1 Nil
DIN: 03595319

3. Mrs. Sangeeta | Independent Director 1 Nil

Pendurkar DIN: 03321646

(3) Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the
company: www.sulavineyards.com

(4) Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social
responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable - Not Applicable

(5) Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014
and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any - INR 0.04 million

(6) Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years:
Average net profit: INR 141.05 million

(7) (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): INR 2.82 million
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: Not Applicable
(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Not Applicable

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b+7c): Rs. 2.82 million




(8) (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

| Total Amount Spent for the
Financial Year. (in Rs.)

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR
Account as per section 135(6).

Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule VII as
per second proviso to section 135(5).

Amount Date of Transfer Name of fund Amount Date of Transfer
8.82 million == -= -= = =
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:
(1) 2 (3) 4) E) (6) (7) (8) ) (10) (11)
SL. | Name of the | [tem from | Local Location of the | Project Amount | Amount Amount Mode of | Mode of
No. | project the list of | Area project duration | allocated | spent in the | transferred to | Implem | Implementation-
activities in | (Yes/ for the | current Unspent CSR | entatio | Through Implementing
Schedule No) project financial Account for the [ n- Agency
VII to the State | District (inRs.) year (in Rs.) | project as per | Direct Name CSR
Act Section 135 (6) (in | (Yes/ Registration
Rs.) No) number
1. | Gangapur Yes Maha | Nashik | 3 years INR 0.40 [ INR  0.40 Direct
road divider rasht million | million
and Amrut ra
Garden
maintainanc
e
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
SI. | Name of the Item from the list of | Local | Location of the Project Amount Mode of Mode of
No. | Project activities in Area spent for Implementation | Implementation-
schedule VII to the | (Yes/ the project | — Direct Through Implementing
Act No) : (inRs.) (Yes / No) Agency
State District . Name CSR
Registration
1 Geographic reach | Rural development | Yes Maharashtra | Savargoan INR 1.45 Yes NA NA
road Development | projects(water Karnataka Govarhdan, million




| for Villages

ATM,, fogging,
road cleaning,
Drainage slab)

Chekkare

Plantation
Afforestation

& Maintenance of
Existing Plantation
Project

Ensuring
environmental
sustainability,
ecological balance,
protection of flora
and fauna, animal
welfare,
agroforestry,
conservation of
natural resources
and maintaining
quality of soil, air
and water

Yes

Maharashtra
& Karnataka

Nashik,
Wasali, Ozer,
DD highway,
and Chekkre

INR 0.97
million

Yes

NA

NA

Prime Minister
Relief Fund & CM
Disaster
management fund

Contribution to the
prime minister’s
national relief fund
or any other fund
set up by the central
govt. for socio
economic
development and
relief and welfare
of the schedule
caste, tribes, other
backward classes,
minorities and
women

INR 6.00
million

Yes

NA

NA

(d) Administrative Overheads: NIL

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): INR 8.82 million




(g) Excess amount for set off, if any:

Sr. No Particulars Amount
(1) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) INR 2.82 million
(2) Total amount spent for the Financial Year INR 2.82 million
(3) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] NIL
4 Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the | NIL
previous financial years, if any
(5) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] NIL

(9) (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

Sr Preceding Amount transferred to | Amount spent in the | Amount transferred to any fund specified under | Amount remaining to
No. | Financial Year. | Unspent CSR | reporting Financial | Schedule VII as per section 135(6), if any. be spent in succeeding
Account under section | Year (in Rs.). financial years. (in Rs.)
135 (6) (in Rs.) Name of fund Amount Date of
Transfer
1. 2020-2021 = INR 4.17 million =
2. 2019-2020 - INR 3.01 million - - - =
3. 2018-2019 - INR 4.60 million - - - -

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):

Sr Project ID. | Name | Financial Yearin | Project Total amount | Amount spent on the Cumulative amount Status of the
No. of the | which the project | duration | allocated for the project in the spent at the end of project - Completed
Project | was commenced project (in Rs.) | reporting Financial reporting Financial /Ongoing
Year (in Rs.) Year. (in Rs.)
Not
Applicable

(10) In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year
(asset-wise details) - Not Applicable




(11) Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5): Not Applicable for FY 2021-2022.
For earlier financial years, the Company deferred CSR expense for want of appropriate CSR projects, which the Company will ensure contributing in FY
2022-23.

We hereby declare that implementation and monitoring of the CSR policy are in compliance with CSR objectives and policy of the Company.

Rajeev Samant Chetan Desai
Managing Director & CEO Independent Director
DIN: 00020675 DIN: 03595319
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OUR APPROACH

At Sula, Green is as important as Red, White and Rosé!

Sustainability is a guiding principle of life and business for us. We strive to be responsible stewards of our land,
because it's the best way to make authentic, distinctive wines. Our commitment to producing the best wines
through sustainable winemaking and viticulture operations goes beyond protecting our natural environment.

We strive to enhance our land and enrich the lives of the community dependent on our businesses through our
sustainable vineyards. Our sustainability program is designed to drive our growth and develop a reporting

framework which allows us to confidently report our performance.

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Our 4th sustainability report, spans the period from April 2021 to March 2022 and provides insights into our key
sustainability pillars and measures we have taken to drive them. It gives a summary of all the work we have done to
mitigate our environmental footprint. We have been publishing our annual sustainability report since the financial year

2018-19.

This report covers all of Sula’s manufacturing sites along with our wine tourism business. The reported statistics
concerning environmental issues cover our four owned manufacturing facilities - Nashik winery, York winery and
Domaine Dindori in Nashik and Domaine Sula in Karnataka, along with two leased wineries Indian Ambiance and ND
Wines. It also covers our wine tourism business at Nashik winery and Domaine Sula, including two resort properties The
Source and Beyond by Sula. Data regarding our employee wellfare measures not only covers the above facilities but
also our head office in Mumbai and our regional sales offices across the country. The data in this report covers all

significant areas of operation and is therefore not segregated according fo region.

CHANGES IN REPORTING

Reporting remains the same as FY'21, except for the addition of York winery, acquired by Sula Vineyards Limited in July 2021.
Besides the core winemaking production facility, York also has a tasting room and a restaurant. This facility is strategically

located around 2 km from Nashik winery, providing us operational synergies and the potential for growth.

The report now covers 6 wineries, 2 resorts, 3 restaurants and 3 tasting rooms. The focus of the report is on topics that are

material both to our business and to all our stakeholders.

ASSURANCE

The data reported is in line with the records maintained throughout the year and has been validated internally to assure the

accuracy. The internal assurance for this report has been recommended and approved by our senior management team.
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COMPANY OVERVIEW

| |
(% MANUFACTURING CASES SOLD

CAPACITY APPROXIMATELY

14.5N | === 900,000

OF OUR OWN WINES

(I)

a0

I 0000

VISITORS TO
OUR WINE TOURISM
FACILITIES

250,000

NET INCOME

INR4.6BILLION

Over the last 20 years, Sula has grown and established itself as a pioneer, innovator and leader in the Indian wine industry.

We are one of the most eco-friendly companies in India, with a significant amount of our resources committed to sustainable

winemaking practices, sustainable vineyards and ensuring fair livelihoods for our community of farmers across Maharashtra
and Karnataka. We ensure that every decision we make respects our values, alongside our objectives. Making great wine is our
passion and our goal, but we make sure to put the environment's well being before anything else. Each extra step taken towards

creating a sustainable final product is worth it.
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OUR WINES

Our product selection strives to offer something for everyone and every celebration. Sula is proud to have built a culture of wine
drinking in India and has been the #1 international trailblazer in Indian wines. The way we operate, is guided by our core
values that aim at preserving and enhancing the art of winemaking.

Our extensive wine portfolio spans over a wide range of products made from about 15 different grape varieties. Our main wine

categories include, RASA, The Source, Dindori Reserve, Sula Classics and York.
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CERTIFICATION

Food Safety

As part of our commitment to delivering the best quality of wines, our food safety system is now certified by the Brand Reputation
Comepliance (BRC) Global Standards. This certification is an upgrade on our earlier ISO 22000 certification. BRC standards are
dynamic and evolve rapidly fo reflect global best practices, are industry specific and are also recognized by the Global Food
Safety Initiative (GFSI). Our two largest facilities are now BRC certified and the others will also be adopting BRC standards
going forward.

SUSTAINABILITY

Our sustainability initiatives are in line with the United Nations’ Sustainable Development Goals, designed to provide a
framework to achieve a better and more sustainable future for all by 2030. The key focus areas of our Sustainability program
are Planet and People.

We are highly committed to our long term relationship with the local communities, well being of our employees and value of
our agricultural land. As climate change continues to become more glaring issue with each passing year, we plan our operations
consciously, focusing on reducing our impact on the environment and becoming more mindful towards the communities around us.

ENERGY & GREEN : ; 3
HOUSE GASES :  WATER 1 WASTE PEOPLE

GO0D HEALTH DECENTWORK AND QUALITY
AND WELI-BEING ECONOMIC GROWTH EDUCATION

o |

lﬂ REDUCED PLACL JESTIOE 4D
INEQUALITIES SO BTTITON

4 %P !:
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KEY PERFORMANCE

UNIT OF FY’'23 LONG TERM
lERLe MEASUREMENT ~ FY19  FY'20  FY'21  FY'22  1ARGET ~ TARGET
Water Efficiency Litres per 9 Litre Case 85 67 80 56 50 40
| Energy Efficiency Units per 9 Litre Case 51 5.8 6.7 5.9 5.2 4.0
| Solar Contribution % 45 49 61 60 64 70

NOTE: The water and energy efficiency numbers are higher from FY'20 to FY'22, due to lower
production and dispatch as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic

8
7
°

6 ° ®
5 ° ®
4 °
3
2
1

30 — — 0

FY'19 FY'20 FY'21 FY'22 T:T{g; LOT':‘:GT:TRM FY'19 FY'20 FY'21 FY'22 T/F\:é:T LOT':‘iGT:TRM
WATER LITRES PER 9 LITRES CASE POWER UNITS PER 9 LITRES CASE

Energy efficiency and water efficiency is calculated taking into consideration all our owned and leased
production facilities, it excludes our wine tourism business and York winery.

80%

70% ——

60% —

50% _— —

40% — -

30% — —

20% — —

10% — —

0%

FY'19 FY'20 FY'21 FY'22 FY23 ~ LONG TERM
TARGET ~ TARGET

SOLAR CONTRIBUTION

Solar contribution includes all our owned and leased production facilities and wine tourism business; it excludes our head office

in Mumbai and pan India sales offices and York winery.
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OUR
ACCOMPLISHMENTS

® We did far better than the water consumption target we had set ourselves and with dedicated efforts for water conservation, we
achieved 56 litres per case in FY'22 as against our target of 61 litres per case. Based on this performance we have revised our

long term water efficiency target down from 50 to 40 litres per case.

o Since the acquisition of York winery, within just 9
months, we have converted this facility into a far more
sustainable winery by installing 180 KW solar panels,
which led to 76% solar contribution in FY'22. We have
also set up a brand new effluent treatment plant at York
winery, stepping up our water recycling efforts.
Additionally, we have insulated all wine storage tanks to

prevent cooling loss and replaced all florescent lighting
with LEDs.

AERIAL VIEW OF SOLAR AND
EFFLUENT TREATMENT PLANT AT YORK

® In FY'22 we installed over 500 KW of additional solar panels, however despite this we fell short of our target for solar
contribution, achieving only 60% as against our target of 70%. This shortfall was on account of several factors including
government policies limiting our ability to install more solar panels at our largest facility as well as overall lower sunlight intensity.
In FY’23 we expect to achieve 64% solar contribution.

® In FY'22, we have completed our project of localizing the sourcing of glass bottles for packaging and moving away from bottle
imports. In FY'22 over 97% of our bottles were sourced from locally vis-a-vis 65% in FY'19. Going forward, 99% of our bottles will
be sourced from local vendors.

100% [ ]

90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

0%

FY'19 FY'20 FY'21 FY'22 FY'23
LOCALLY SOURCED Ml IMPORTED

LOCALIZING OUR SUPPLY CHAIN OUR EMPLOYEES WITH NEW E-BIKES

® We have installed 20 AC type electric vehicle charging stations at all our facilities in FY'22 and provide charging free of cost
to all our employees and guests alike. In FY'23, we have planed to install 10 additional AC chargers and 2 DC chargers. We have
intfroduced a E-bike loan policy for our employees at just 8% rate of interest, thus incentivising them to adopt more sustainable
means of transport.
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ENVIRONMENTAL
STEWARDSHIP

We stay committed to nurturing a culture of responsibility and care towards the planet. We have upped our sustainability
quotient with focused efforts on conserving water, reducing carbon emissions, enhancing renewable energy use and phasing
out single-use plastic.

Climate change impacts all our operations being an agro based industry. We face the challenge of water availability due to
irregular and unseasonal rainfall. Rising temperatures affect our wine storage and supply chain. We plan our operations to
ensure conservation and judicial use of natural resources.

We have defined specific targets to ensure that we utilize our resources optimally and continue to contribute tfowards making
our communities greener and more sustainable. Optimum utilization of energy and water at all our properties, reducing green
house gas emissions and efficient waste management are the major focus areas for us, and we are making steady progress
towards achieving our goals.

ENERGY AND GREEN HOUSE GASES (GHG)

Our key focus is on reducing the grid power usage and adoption of green energy
through solar installations at all our facilities. Solar contribution in FY'22 was 60%.

We have taken various initiatives for reducing our green house gas emissions by
adopting smart operations and innovative technology.

HEAT PUMPS

Heat pumps have been installed for heating swimming pool water at our resorts and heating line sanitation water in our bottling
operations. Installed capacity over 300 KW. Cold air, which is a by product of the heat pumps is used for cooling our office spaces,
reducing the dependence on ACs.

LPG REPLACEMENT

We have replaced LPG cooking ranges at our in house canteen, with induction cook tops. We are in the process of adopting
induction cooking at our Nashik winery restaurant and tasting room as well. These efforts will amount to an annual saving of about
400 cylinders, equivalent to approximately 20 Tons of CO2.
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ELECTRIC VEHICLES (EVS):

In FY'22 we have purchased 5 EVs, as replacement of old diesel
vehicles. Our target was to have 20% EVs in our company fleet
by the end of FY'23 however, we have achieved this target in
FY'22 itself. We further aim to increase the share of EVs by 10%
each year, till we get to 80%. In FY'23 we plan on purchasing 5
new vehicles, out of which 4 will be EVs.

ELECTRIC VEHICLES

SOLAR POWERED PUMPS

Solar Powered Pumps: We have completely done away with the use of diesel
powered pumps for irrigation at our estate vineyards and have switched to
solar pumps, with a total capacity of approximately 118 Hp.

SOLAR PUMPS FOR IRRIGATION AT VINEYARDS

SUSTAINABLE CONSTRUCTION

With the aim to reduce our ecological footprint, we have opted for a pre engineered metal building (PEMB) rather than traditional
construction for winery expansion at our Domaine Dindori unit. Material used for the construction of PEMBs is finished away from
the installation site, this greatly reduces the volatile organic compounds and other suspended solid particles from the air. By opting
for a PEMB we will be saving approximately 400 Tons of CO2 emissions, which is about 25% lower than conventional construction.

ENERGY MANAGEMENT

We are improving our energy efficiency practices and assessing our consumption internally, through daily monitoring and trend
analysis. Some of the best practices include:

® Chilling operations only during solar hours.

® Converting fluorescent lighting to LED lighting.

® Utilizing Variable Frequency Drives (VFDs) to reduce energy consumption of equipment, such as pumps.

® |nsulated wine storage tanks to prevent heat loss.

® Reducing energy use during cold stabilization by using ion exchange and electro-dialysis for wine stabilization.
® Replacing old air conditioner units with invertor based ACs.

® |nsulating barrel rooms to prevent heat loss during wine ageing.
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WATER

Viticulture and winemaking are both water infensive processes and conserving

every drop of water is necessary. Water resource management is paramount
for achieving sustainability and longevity, and requires attention not only in
our production facilities and vineyards, but also at the tasting rooms and

corporate offices.

We are one of the pioneers in rainwater harvesting in the Nashik area. Our
wineries have a combined rainwater harvesting capacity of 36.8 million
litres.

AERIAL VIEW OF RAIN WATER
RESERVOIR AT SULA

At Sula, not a single drop of water gets wasted. We have installed
high specification effluent treatment plants at all sites to ensure that
100% water is recycled. In FY'22 we reused around 32 million litres of
treated water for various purposes like; irrigation of our estate
vineyards, landscaping at our resorts and flush water in the office
restrooms. We are targeting to improve the quality of our treated water
and aiming to use about 4 million litres of treated water for cooling
towers in FY'23, in addition to other applications. Additionally, we
also reuse the reject water from RO treatment and softener plants for

activities like, floor cleaning and dish washing at the canteens.

AERIAL VIEW OF STP AT DOMAINE DINDORI

WASTE

Solid waste pollution of green spaces, water bodies and urban environment is a
major global issue. In FY'22 we generated roughly 500 MT of solid waste. 99% of
this packaging material is recyclable.

For disposal of organic waste, we have set up a 200 Kg biogas plant at
our restaurant at Nashik winery and a 35 Kg plant at our canteen facility

at Domaine Dindori, which allowed us to generate roughly 3000 Kg
biogas during FY'22.

Pomace obtained from the winemaking process is sun dried and used as
a component for vermicompost along with FYM and shredded vineyard
cuttings. In FY'22 we produced 120 tons of vermicompost, which was
exclusively used in our vineyards as a substitute for chemical fertilizers.

We are targeting to produce 250 tons of vermicompost in FY'23. Grape
seeds harvested from the dried pomace are cold pressed to produce

grape seed oil. BIOGAS PLANT AT RESTAURANT
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Pomace obtained from the winemaking process is sun dried
and used as a component for vermicompost along with FYM
and shredded vineyard cuttings. In FY'22 we produced 120
tons of vermicompost, which was exclusively used in our
vineyards as a substitute for chemical fertilizers. We are
targeting to produce 250 tons of vermicompost in FY'23.
Grape seeds harvested from the dried pomace are cold
pressed to broduce arape seed oil.

VERMICOMPOST PRODUCTION AT OUR VINEYARDS

VINEYARD PRACTICES

Maintaining the health of our vineyards and promoting the
longevity of their use is integral to the success of our business
and the quality of our wines. We operate as a conscientious
wine producer, adapting to the changing climate while making
high quality wines and preserving the fertility of the land for the
years to come.

OUR VINEYARDS AT DINDORI

To combat the seasonal variations arising due to the climate change, we are implementing

various practices such as:

Delayed pruning cycle to mitigate the uncertainty of rains.

Drip irrigation system at all vineyards.

Moving away from all toxic fertilizer and inorganic chemical usage.

Use of vermicompost for soil fertility.

Nitrogen fixing cover crop plantation during monsoon.

Using sheep for weeding the the vineyards rather than using harmful

weedicides.

We also work with our grower partners to implement more sustainable
practices for grape cultivation, without compromising on the quality

and yield.

DEWEEDING WITH SHEEP

WA A A ki

L ol

iy
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INTERNATIONAL WINERIES FOR
CLIMATE ACTION (IWCA)

In FY'22, Sula became an official applicant to IWCA, a collaborative working group of environmentally committed wineries focused on
a science-based approach fo reducing carbon emissions across the wine industry. IWCA founded by Famillia Torres and Jackson
Family Wines, currently has 13 members. Sula is the only winery in Asia to become a part of IWCA.

We are targeting IWCA Gold Membership:

® Becoming Net Zero by 2050 across Scope 1 to 3. /.l‘ ‘ \ INTE H NATI 0 NAI—
| WINERIES FOR
® Operations to be powered by at least 20% renewable energy. % cll MATE AUTIU N

® Show reduction in CO2 emissions from baseline inventory.

® Third party verified GHG inventory of Scope 1 to 3.

In FY'22 we have begun quantifying our GHG emissions across all three scopes, with the help of Sustrige, a sustainability consulting
agency associated with IWCA. In FY'23, we will get the GHG emissions audited externally as per ISO 14064 norms.

PEOPLE

At Sula, we believe that nurturing relationships with all our stakeholders, including our work force and the communities we
operate in is crucial to business success. We take all necessary measures for ensuring the safety, security and well being of our
people.

8 tosowcmnn | 10 atiine

ECONDMIC GROWTH

Sula is now certified as a Great Place to Work! We have been
recognized globally for our people practices. We participated for
the first time in this survey and have scored higher than the top 100
companies in India.

We employ a diverse workforce with experience in all areas of the
wine industry, including viticulture, winemaking, hospitality,
finance, IT, legal, HR, administration and sales. As of 31st March
2022, we had 717 full4time employees.

Through our comprehensive benefit plans, recognition programs Certified
and learning opportunities, we aim to position all of our employees '
for success in their careers and enable them to lead well-balanced
and meaningful lives. Human resource management requires an
understanding of the obstacles our employees face and how they
may be affected by external factors. We ensure the well being our
employees by providing them with various benefits.

NOV 2021-NOV 2022

13
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REWARDS, RECOGNITION & BENEFITS

We celebrate the dedication, determination and hard work of our employees and recognise them for the same. We felicitated

45 employees for long term service in FY'22. Along with this we also recognize our employees routine work through programs
like Employee of the Month and Quarter awards.

OUTSTANDING
LONG TERM SERVICE PERFORMANCE AWARD EMPLOYEE OF THE QUARTER

Along with the employee recognition programs we ensure that our hard working, deserving staff is given the opportunity to grow
and promote them through the ranks for their performance.

Mr. Ajay Jadhav

| Mr. Vishal Tambe
DGM Excise and Dispatch

Regional Sales Manager

Ajay joined the organisation in
April 2002 as a office assistant.
Through his hard work, dedication
and determination to learn, he

Vishal joined the company in April
2002 as an office assistant.
Through his relentless dedication,
focus and drive he has risen
has risen through the ranks is now through the ranks to a Regional

handling the company’s excise Sales Manager for Mumbai.

and dispatch work as a Deputy

General Manager.

Inculcating the Sula culture in the next generation:

Al

Mr. Dattu Pawar Mr. Ravindra Pawar
Driver Executive - Production QC

Dattu joined the company in December 2000. After his many years of service, he has passed on the company values and
inculcated the work culture to his son Ravindra, who has joined our quality control team in July 2021.
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Apart from employee reward and recognition, we offer several comprehensive benefits to our staff as mentioned below:

¢ Special Benefits: Employee wine allotments and discounts, merchandise discounts. Discounted stock sold under an Employee
Stock Purchase Plan. We are very proud to have given stock options to all our employees, who will now be share holders in the
company.

¢ Parental Leave Policies: We are 100% compliant with the Maternity Benefit Act 2017. We go above and beyond by offering
a month long paternity leave to all our male employees.

e Response to Covid-19: The Covid-19 pandemic at the beginning of FY'22 impacted our operations to some extent, for both
the manufacturing and hospitality business. We have worked on providing a safe work environment for all our employees and a
safe visitor experience to our guests. Even though a number of our employees tested positive for Covid-19, there were no fatalities.
We took various measures against Covid-19 like;

e Organised a vaccination drive for our employees and their spouses and provided free vaccination against Covid-19.
Employees across all sites are fully vaccinated against Covid-19.We will be giving Covid-19 booster dose to our employees
and their spouses in June 2022.

® Increased communication with and within the teams and extended support where required and implemented thorough
sanitation protocols at all our locations and ensured social distancing, wearing of masks and hand sanitization for all
employees.

VACCINATION
DRIVE

SULA A

VINEYARDS

#SAFETYFIRST #WECARE

e L&D: Various technical and skill development training sessions are conducted online and offline for all employees throughout
the year. 160 offline training sessions were conducted during FY’22 and the employees spent a total of 5300 hours. These
training cover a wise array of topics right from time management, effective communication, technical training for 1SO, BRC,
FASSAI norms and implementation, IT security and awareness and so on.

¢ Internship Program: We offer interships to young aspiring candidates across various departments like winemaking, viticulture,
HR, finance quality control. Hard working and dedicated candidates from these training programs are often offered full time
positions in the organisation.

e Gender Equality: We take pride in the fact that we are an Equal Opportunity Employer and ensure zero discrimination during
hiring or at the workplace. There is no gender-based discrimination for determining the compensation packages or during
promotions. MO + mum sales, however, Winery, Sales & ROI, Wine tourism - % ratio is neg. Our corporate office in Mumbai has
47% female employees.
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e Health Benefits: At Sula we ensure the well being of our employees by providing comprehensive health insurance to our
permanent employees, including their spouses and two children. We organise annual health check-up to all our permanent
employees. Thrice a month, on site medical consultation is provided and health check-ups are available free of cost.

e POSH (Prevention of Sexual Harassment) Committee: tWe have zero tolerance towards sexual harassment and have a
specially appointed panel to investigate any complaints across our value chain. In FY’22 zero cases were reported under POSH.

¢ Leave Policy: We offer our employees 28 paid leaves during the year in addition to weekly off days, regional and national
holidays.

e Employee Engagement: Various fun activities like Women’s day and Men's celebration, festivities, sports competitions are
organised throughout the year to help boost the morale among our workforce and for team building.

e No Child Labour: All our vineyards, estate and contract are 100% free of child labour.

e Farmer Well Being: Our contracts with farmers ensure price stability and insulate them from the volatility of the agro market in
India. We currently have contracts with about 500 farmers for over 2,500 acres of land.

RESPONSIBLE ENJOYMENT

OUR TASTING ROOMS

Our tasting rooms are designed to offer a relaxing and engaging environment for the enjoyment of our wines. In FY'22 we
hosted our guests ensuring all safety protocols Covid-19 like, wearing masks, gloves and installed hand sanitizer stations. Only
those individuals who are 21 years of age or older are served wine at our hospitality facilities. We also offer guided tours and
tasting experience, conducted by trained wine experts. We prioritize the health and well-being of our visitors by monitoring for

signs of intoxication and promoting a measured tasting experience.

GUIDED WINERY TOUR AND WINE TASTING
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COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

Community engagement is a part of our Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives. We have initiated a host of measures,
including infrastructure projects and educational programs which have driven progress and development among the
communities near us. We aim fo continue supporting these communities and actively engage with them in the future to
ensure progress.

In FY'22, we gave donations for Covid-19 relief to PM Cares initiative and Maharashtra State Relief Fund worth rupees 6
million. Under CSR we carried out several other projects like infrastructure development in the local communities including,
setting up water ATMs, street lights, concrete drainage. Community service like road cleaning, fogging, tree plantation and

maintenance.

COMPUTER DONATION TO LOCAL SCHOOLS



Office : 124-125, Ostwal Ornate, “A" Wing,

Building No. 2,

Bhayandar (East), Mumbai - 401 105.
Mobile : +91 9920715299 / 8779956763

Email : sunilcs_mumbai@rediffmail.com
agarwalcs_mumbai@yahoo.co.in
Web. : www.cssunilagarwal.in

To,

Opp. Jain Temple, Jesal Park,

ﬂs SUNIL AGARWAL & Co.

The Members,

SULA VINEYARDS LIMITED
(Erstwhile known as Sula Vineyards Private Limited)

901

Hubtown Solaris N.S. Phadke Marg,

Andheri (E) Mumbai — 400069

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

2

(Proprietor)

For Sunil Agarwal & Co

Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records
based on my audit.

I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records.
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. we believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide
reasonable basis for our opinion.

I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books
of accounts of the Company and have relied on the statutory report provided by the
Statutory Auditors as well as Internal Auditor of the company for the financial year
ending 31 March, 2022.

Wherever required, I have obtained the management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provision and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the
verification of procedures on test basis.

The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future liability of the
company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the company.

TAgarwal

FCS No. 8706
C.P. No. 3286

Place: Mumbai

Date: 13/05/2022
UDIN number: F008706D000313318

Peer review Unit No. 788/2022
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Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

SULA VINEYARDS LIMITED

(Erstwhile known as Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
901 Hubtown Solaris N.S. Phadke Marg,

Andheri (E) Mumbai - 400069

[ have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Sula Vineyards Limited
(hereinafter called "the company”) for the financial year ended 31.03.2022. Secretarial
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts /statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. Based on
my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company through electronic mode, its officers, agents and authorized representatives
during the conduct of secretarial audit, , I hereby report that

I In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the
examinations carried out by me and explanations furnished and representations
made to me by the Company, its officers and agents, the Company has complied
with the provisions of The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made
there under and the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company

with regard to:

a) Maintenance of various statutory registers and documents and making necessary
entries therein,

b) Forms, returns, documents and resolutions required to be filed with the Registrar
of Companies, Regional Director, Central Government, Company Law Board or
other authorities.

¢) Service of documents by the Company on its Members, Auditors and the
Registrar of Companies:

d) Notice of Board and various Committee meetings of Directors in compliance of
the "ACT "as well as Secretarial Standard - 1 (SS 1)

¢) Meetings of Directors and all the Committees of Directors and passing of circular
resolutions:

f) Notice and convening of General Meeting held. Secretarial Standard — 2 (SS - 2).
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g) Minutes of the proceedings of the Board Meetings, Audit Committee Meetings
and General Meetings;

h) Approvals of the Board of Directors, Committee of Directors, Members and
government authorities, wherever required;

i) Constitution of the Board of Directors, Committees of Directors and appointment,
retirement and reappointment of Directors including Managing Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors.

i) Payment of remuneration to Directors and Managing Director:

k) Appointment and remuneration of Statutory Auditors:

1) Report of the Board of Directors;

m) Generally, all other applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder.

2 I further report that:

a) The Directors have complied with the requirements as to disclosure of interests
and concerns in contracts and arrangements, shareholdings and directorships in
other Companies and interest in other entities;

b) The Directors have complied with the disclosure requirements in respect to their
eligibility of appointment, compliance with the code of conduct for Directors and;

¢) The Company has obtained all necessary approvals under various provisions of
the Act where necessary:

d) There was no prosecution initiated against or show cause notice received by the
Company during the year under review under the Companies Act, 2013
regulations and guidelines under these Acts.

3. I further report that

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) as amended from
time to time and the rules made there under as amended from time to time are
not applicable, as the company is an unlisted Public Limited Company.

(i) The Depositories Act, 1996 as amended from time to time and the Regulations
and Bye-laws framed there under are not applicable, as the Company is an
unlisted Public Limited Company.

(iii) The Company has complied with the requirements, as applicable, of the Foreign
Exchange Management Act, 1999 as amended from time to time and the rules
and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct
Investment during the period of Audit..

(iv) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’)

(a) The Sccurities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial acquisition of
Qhares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 as amended from time to time are
not applicable, as the Company is an unlisted Public Limited Company.

(b) SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 are not
applicable as the company is an unlisted Public Limited Company.

(¢c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 as amended as from time to time are not
applicable as the company is an unlisted Public Limited Company

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits
and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021. as amended from time to time are not
applicable, as the company is an unlisted Public Limited Company
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(e) .Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-
Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 as amended from time to time are
not applicable, as the company is an unlisted Public Limited Company:

()  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 and dealing with client are not
applicable, as the company is an unlisted Public Limited Company:

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009 are not applicable, as the company is an unlisted Public
Limited Company; and.:

() The Sccurities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 2018 as amended from time to time are not applicable, as the
company is an unlisted Public Limited Company:

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(1) The Secretarial Standards issued and notified by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India have been generally complied with by the Company to the
extent applicable during the year under review;

(ii) The Company being Unlisted Public Limited Company, the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 are not applicable to the Company:

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of
the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, ctc.

4. I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors. Non-Executive Directors, and Independent Director. The
changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the
period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the
Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda
and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on
the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
mecting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are
captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

3. I further report that in my opinion there are adequate systems and processes in
the company commensurate with the size and operations of the company to
monitor and ensure compliance with other applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines as provided by the management hereunder;
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1.  Employees' Provident Fund Scheme, 1952 & Rules Made there under

2. Professional Tax Act

3. Air (Prevention & Control of Pollution Act, 1981

4.  Apprentice Act, 1961

5. Contract Labour (Regulation & Abolition Act), 1970

6.  Environment Protection Act 1986

7.  ESIC Act, 1948

8.  Factories Act

9. GST Act, 2017

10. Minimum Wages Act, 1948

11.  Payment of Bonus Act

12. Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

13. The Employees Deposit Linked Insurance Scheme, 1976

14. The Employees’ Pension Scheme, 1995

15.  Water (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act, 1974

16. Food Safety and Standards Act, 2006, and the Rules made thereunder;

17. Legal Metrology Act, 2009, and the Rules made thereunder;

18. Maharashtra Prohibition Act, 1949;

19. The Central Excise Act, 1944, including the rules and regulations with
respect to the various State and Central Excise Policies;

20. The Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996;

21. The Indian Contract Act, 1872;

22. The Foreign Exchange management Act, 1999, and the rules passed by the

Reserve Bank of India from time to time;
23. various acts, rules and regulations passed by the Central Board of Direct
Taxes and other authorities dealing with taxation

. I further report that During the year under review

(a) The Company has incurred expenditure amounting to Rs 28.21 lakhs on the
projects towards Corporate Social Responsibility as recommended by CSR
Committee, out of which the total budget of Rs. 28.21 lakhs required to be
incurred during the year.

(b) The sharcholders have approved variation in terms and conditions of
Employee Stock Option Schemes - ESOS 2018, ESOS 2018(2) and ESOS for
COO & CFO 2019, ESOS 2020 and approved grant of stock options under
Employee Stock Option scheme 2021 and amendment made thereon as and

when required.

(¢) The Company has sold the commercial premises situated at 912, 9th floor
hubtowm soloris Mumbai admeasuring 318.28 sq.mt for a total consideration
of 8.10.00,000/- (Eight Crores and Ten Lakhs only)

(d) The company has purchase land situated at village Gorvadhan, Nashik,
Maharashtra at fair market value detailed as under:

SUNIL AGARWAL & Co.
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36/1 Village 1.7 Out 3.82,50,000
gorvadhan,Nashik, siders
Maharashtra

34 Govardhan  Village | 407 | Related | 11,19,25,000
Nashik, Maharashtra Party

38/1/1A/2 | Govardhan Village | 0.86 Related 2,36,50,000
Nashik, Maharashtra Party

35/1 Village Govardhan on |2 Acres | Related 5.50,00,000
Gangapur- Savargaon | or Party
Road, Taluka & | 8000(Sq.
District Nashik. | Mtrs.)
Maharashtra
TOTAL 8.63 22.88,25,000

(e) The Company has altered its Articles of Association for giving effect of the
variation in terms and conditions of the ESOP/ESOS scheme implanted by the
company and the same were approved by shareholders in their meeting as and

when required.

() The Company has altered the capital clause of Memorandum of Association
for giving effect of sub- division of the face value of the share capital of the
company from Rs. 10/- to Rs. 2/- each and approved by the shareholder in its
meeting held on 30™ July, 2021.

(g) The Company has converted 16,71,221 warrants in to 16,71,221 equity shares
out of 27.65.980 outstanding warrants issued to its Managing Director and

CEQ as approved by the Board.

(h) The Company has issued 19,08,025 warrants convertible into equity on
preferential basis as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.

(i) The company has issued and allotted 13.75,000 equity shares of Rs. 2/- each
at a premium on Rs. 238/- as approved by the shareholders in their meeting.

(j) The company has allotted 1,50,000 equity shares as an exercise of stock
option @ Rs. 126.2/- per option.

(k) The Company has executed Deed of Adherence to include DSGCP Buildout II
as a party to the Sharcholders Agreement and has amended the Shareholder’s
Agreement to include Haystack Investments Limited under the category of

Specified Investors.
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.

(1) The Company has signed Memorandum of Understanding with Receding
Water Resorts LLP for obtaining on leave and license basis for 3 new villas
proposed to be constructed adjacent to the company’s existing villas meant for
hospitality services.

(m)The company has declared interim dividend of Rs 2.5 per share to its
shareholders as on 15th December 2021 amounting to Rs 19.44,88,750/-

(n) The Company has converted into a Public Limited Company effective
February 11, 2022 upon issue of fresh certificate of incorporation from
Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra and accordingly its name has
been changed to “Sula Vineyards Limited" (formerly Sula Vineyards Private
Limited), leading to a consequent amendment to the Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company.

(0) The company has proposed to raise funds through issue of fresh shares
through public 1ssue.

(p) The company has adopted new sets of Articles of Association in compliance
with the requirement of proposed Initial Public issue offer.

(q) The company has reconstituted all committees applicable to the company in
view of the propose public issue of the company.

(r) Sula International Limited, wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
dissolved by way of striking off.

For Sunil Agarwal & C
Company Secretaries

Sunil Agarwal
(Proprietor)
FCS No.8706
C.P. No. 3286
Place: MUMBAI

Date: 13/05/2022

UDIN number: FO08706D000313318
PEER REVIEW UNIT No. 788/2020
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One International Center,
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Maharashtra, India

T +01 22 BO2E 2694
F +91 22 6626 2601

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly known as Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying siandalone financial statements of Sula Vineyards Limited
{formerly known as Sula Vineyards Private Limited) (the Company'), which comprise the Balance Sheet as
at 31 March 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement
of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given o us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS") specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Fules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the stale of affairs of the Company
as at 31 March 2022, and its profit (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes
in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We canducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under zection 143(10) of the
Act, Our responsibilities under those standards are furher described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Efhics issued by the Institute of Charlered Accountants of India ('ICAI' together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audil of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Act and the rules thersunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriale lo provide a basis for our opinion.
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Sula Vineyards Limited {Formerly known as Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note 44 to the accompanying standalone financial statements regarding the Company's
non-current investment in a subsidiary Artisan Spirils Private Limited and non-current loans due from such
subsidiary amounling to  269.86 million and 2 278.70 million, respectively, as at 31 March 2022, The
subsidiary has incurred lossas in the earlier years and its net-worth has been substantially eroded. However,
the net-warth of this subsidiary does nof represent its true market value as the value of the enfity on a going
concern basis, based on valuation report of an independent valuer, is higher. Therefare, based on certain
astimates like future business plans, growth prospects as well as considering the valuation repart from an
indepandant valuer, the management believes that the realizable amount of the subsidiary is higher than the
carrying value of the non-current investments and non-current loans due to which these are considered as
good and recoverable. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter,

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Director's Report, but does not include the standalone financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon,

Qur opinion on the standalone financial statements does not .cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In conneclion with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge abtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misslated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nathing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The accompanying standalone financial stalements have been approved by the Company's Board of
Directors, The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Mot with respect to the preparation and presentation of these standalone financial statemenis that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes
in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the
Mot and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility alse includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assels of
the Company and for preventing and detecling frauds and other irreqularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implemantation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operaling
effactivaly for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Direclors are responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly known as Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

8. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilitics for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

9. Ouwr objectives ara to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material missiatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's reporl that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantes that an audit conducted
in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstaterment when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considerad material if, individually or in the aggregale,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

10. As parl of an audil in accordance with Standards on Audiling, specified under section 143(10) of the Act we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatemeant of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or errar, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a hasis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstalement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from errar, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal confrol;

+« Obilain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit proceduras that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3){i) of the Act we are also responsible for
oxpressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system with
referance to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

»  FEwvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
esfimates and related disclosures made by management;

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material unceriainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant deubd on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, If
we conclude thal a material uncerlainly exists, we are required 1o draw attention in our auditer's report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our ocpinion, Cur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report, However, future events or condilions may cause the Company to coase to continue as a going
concern,

«  Ewvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

11. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, ameng other matters, the planned scops
and timing of the audil and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
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12.

Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly known as Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 197(18) of the Acl based on our audit, we report that the Company has paid
remunaration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under
seclion 197 read with Schedule V' to the Act,

13. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central Governmentl
of India in tarms of section 143{11) of the Acl we give in the Annexure |, a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Qrder, o the extent applicable.

14.

Further to our commeants in Annexure |, as required by section 143(3) of the Act hased on our audit, we report,
lo the extent applicable, that:

al  We have zought and obtained all ihe information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief ware necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying standalone financial
statements;

b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

¢y The standalone financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreament with the books of account,

d} In our opinion, the aforesaid slandalone financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under secticn
133 of the Act;

e} The matter described in paragraph 4 under the Emphasis of Matter, in our opinion, may have an adverse
effect on the functioning of the Company;

f)  Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board
of Directors, none of the directors are disgualified as on 31 March 2022 from being appointed as a
director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

q)  With respect lo the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Company as on 31 March 2022 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer o our
separate Report in Annexure || wherein we have expressed an unmaodified opinion; and

h)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Reporl in accordance with rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given io us:

i. The Company, as detailed in noles 32A00), (v}, and {vi) and 45 to the standalone financial
stalements, has disclosed the impact of pending [tigation on its financial position as at
31 March 2022;
ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2022;
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Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly known as Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

v,

The were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2022;

(a)

(o)

(]

The management has represented that, lo the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
note 48{v) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (gither from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any person{s) or enlilylies), including foreign entities
{'the intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or othenwise, that the
intermadiary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in olher parsons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoaver by or on behalf of the Company ('the Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiares,

The management has representad that, lo the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
note 49{vi} to the standalone financial statements, no funds have bean received by the Company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("the Funding Parties’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parly (‘Ulimate Beneficiarizs') or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ullimate Beneficiarias; and

Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our attention thal causes us to believe that the management
representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material misstatement.

v,  Thedividend paid during the year ended 31 March 2022 by the Company is in compliance with section

123 of the Act,

For Walker E\wra:l;djuk & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm's[Registration Mo:001076N/M500013
) o

Partrer
Membership Mo; 108632

UDIN:22109632AJFNPP4862

Flace: Mumbai
Diate: 19 May 2022

Fagea 5 af 14

Charreeod hocountans

Ufices it Cengaley, Chaidysh, Cheand, Caminram, Syderahad, Kochi, Kokaly, Mumbe, New Duli, Sekda 2l Maw

Walker Chandiok & Ca LLP i= regislersd
with fimited Fabilily willyidantiizalion
rumbar AAC-2085 and has |k reqisterad
wifice al 41, Cormaughl Circus, Cular
Circle, Maw etk 110007 Incis



Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly known as Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Annexure | referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited) on the standalone
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

In terms of the infurmation and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we
report that:

{iy (a) (A} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment and right of use assets.

{B} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

{by The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its property, plant and
equipment and right of use assets under which the assets are physically verified in a phased
manner over a period of 3 years, which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size
of the Company and the nature of its asseis. In accordance with this program, certain property,
plant and eguipment and, right of use assets were verified during the year and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such veriflication.

{c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties held by the Campany (other than properties
where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly execuled in favour of the
lesson) are held in the name of the Company.

{d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment and Right of Use assets or
intangible assets during the year.

(&) No proceedings have been initialed or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules
made thereunder. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(e) of the Order is not applicable lo
the Company.

{ii' (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year, except for inventory lying with third parties. In our opinion, the coverage and
procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10%
or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed. In respect of inventory lying
with third parties, these have substantially been confirmed by the third parties.
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Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly known as Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Annexure | (Contd)

(b} The Company has a working capital limit in excess of T 5 crore (T 50 million) sanctioned by banks
based on the security of current assets. The guarterly returnsfstatements, in respect of the working
capital limits have been filed by the Company with such banks and such returns/statemants are in
agreement with the books of account of the Company for the respective periods which were/were

not subject to audit, except for the following:

{Z in million)
Mame of
the Banks | Working Amaunt
(Nature of | capital | Quarter
current limit ended | Particulars | Disclosed | Asper | ... . ng";:;is'r
assets sanctio- as per books of | ~
offered as ned statement | accounts
security) i |
HOFC Bank 550 | 30 June | Inventony 130412 | 1306812 | (2.00) | The difference |
(Entira 2021 iz due to the
current submissions 1o
assets) \ the Banks were
Kotak Bank 200 macde before
{Entire financial
current reporting
assels) . | closure process
Axis Bank 600 Trade 904,30 91145 | (7.16)
{Entire Recaivables
cur_rcnt The difference
asscts) e is due to the
Yes Bank 210 H:D Inventory 1,163.02 | 1,197.90 | (34.88) | _ W oione 1o
(Enlire Septe- Tﬂidt-.: 1,0848.06 110221 {3.15) | the: Barikes wota
current miber Receivables
made hefore
assots) 2021 ] financial
Saraswat 7650 | 31 Inventory g5 649 915.94 9.74 tsporting
Bank Decem- | Trade 1,515.00 | 1.514.11 0.89 closure process
(Entire ber 2021 | Receivables
current |
assots) J
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Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly known as Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Annexure | (Contd)

(iii} (&) The Company has not provided any security or granted advances in the nature of loans to

(v)

(v)

b)

c)

e)

f)

subsidiaries, and others during the year. However, the Company has provided guarantees
and granted |loans to subsidiaries! others as per details given below:

(Z in million}

j??arti'[:ﬁ-iars Guarantees Loans
Aggregate amount during the year
- SBubsidiaries 159.57 504.53
- Others - 2112
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date
Subsidiaries 174.63 282.29
- Others B a - 30.47 |

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the investments
made, guarantees provided and terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances
in the nature of loans and guarantees provided are, prima facie not prejudicial to the interest
of the Company.,

In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company, the schedule
of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the
repayments/receipts of principal and interest are regular,

There iz no overdue amount in respect of loans or advances in the nature of loans granted
to such companies, firms, LLPs or other parties.

The Company has granted loans or advances in the nature of loan which had fallen due
during the year but such loans or advances have not been renewed or extended nor has the
Company granted fresh loans to settle the overdue amounts of existing loans or advances
given to the same parties.

The Company has not granted any loan or advance in the nature of loan, which is repayable
on demand or without specifying any terms or pericd of repaymeant.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Actin respect of loans, investments, guarantees
and security, as applicable. Further, the Company has not entered into any transaction coveared
under section 165.

In cur apinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
nof accepted any deposits or there is no amount which has been considared as deemed deposit
within the meaning of sections 73 to 78 of the Act and the Companias (Acceptance of Deposits)
Rules, 2014 {as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Crder is not applicable
to the Company.
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Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly known as Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Annexure | (Contd)

{vi) The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of
section 148 of the Act, in respecl of Company's productis/business aclivily. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable,

{wii){a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
g¥cise, value added tax, cess and other malerial statutory dues, as applicable, with the
appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were
outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

{h) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues referred
in sub-clause (a) which have nol been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account
of any dispute except for the following:

(% in million)

| Amount ] y
Name of the Matiire of Gross paid Pi“:da:suwul:fh Forum where dispute
statute dues Amount under is pending
relates
| Protest
Slate 7 F.¥. 2006-07 to Commissioner of State
Excize Bty af B | 1, 140,55 E F.Y.2013-14 | Excise, Maharashira
Mafiarastisa Entertainment Revenue Ministar
Entertainment Tax 8. 10.08 FY, 2016-17 K araati -
Duty Act, 1923 Kbl
Karnataka
Stamp Act, Stamp duty 15.41 f.55 F.Y.2017-18 High Court, Karnataka
1957 | |
Fifiinios A | ) Joint Commissioner
1004 ' Service Tax 12.51 FY. 2016817 CGET & Central Excise,
Mashik ]
. - ; Special Commissionar -
n
Delhi WAl DVAT 3.35 {].JDI F.Y.2015-16 DVAT, New delhi
. Basic Duty e
{"UStf é?\sz Act, including cess 3.08 - | December 2017 EE g:;nr:f:l{?;.mre{;sj
’ and IGST PP
. Assistant Commissioner,
Finance Act, Kl T 301 4 Coiober 2016 to GST Audit
1994 June 2017 i
Commissionerate
Sales Tax - , Joint Commissioner of
_Maharashira VAT 2.04 ) F.Y. 201213 Sales Tax — Maharashira
Sales Tax - Joint  Commissioner of
Maharashira WY 4 | R 214 Sales Tax — Maharashira
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Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly known as Sula Vineyards Private Limited)

Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Annexure | (Contd)

Amount | Period to which
Mame of the Nature of Gross paid Forum where dispute is
the amount =
statute dues Amount under pending
relates
| Protest
State Tax — Deputy Commissionear of
~ Maharashtra il 0.8¢ R aiaia State Tax — Maharashtra
RisHaraEri Maharashira State
Mah@.ﬁrashtlra State 582 January 2014 to Electricity Djsmbltltmn Cao
State Electricity Elactrict - October 2021 Ltd - Office af
Board Board y : Superintending engineer,
| Mashik Circle, Mashik
Maharashtra Maharashtra Maharashira State
State Electricit State 078 March 2017 o | Electricity Distribution Co
2 GElc.:a/[El W Electricity HH October 2021 | Lid - Gangapur Sub
: Board Division MNashik
Excise tax- Excise tax- 2 ; :
Raisisthan Rajasthan 1.25 - I .“f.. .2(]0?-{13 Rajasthan High Court |

| Finance Act, e oitea T 16.70 | F¥.2015-16 and | Commissioner CGST &

1 1994 T ' 2016-17 Central Excise, Mashik

{viil) According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
(43 of 1961} which have not been recorded in the books of accounts.

(ix) {a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the paymant of interest thereon to any lender,

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received
from the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report
that the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or oiher lender.

(¢} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised by
way of lerm loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obiained

{d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company on
shart term basis have not been utilised for long term purposes.

{e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the financial statemeants of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity
or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary.

{f} According to the information and explanations given to us. the Company has not raised any loans
during the year an the pledge of securities hald in ils subsidiary.
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Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly known as Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Annoxure | [Contd)

{x) {a) The Company has not raised any monay by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debl instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

{by During the yaar, the Company has made preferential allotment of shares, In our opinicn and according
to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the requirements of
section 42 and section 62 of the Act and the Rules framed lhersunder with respect to the same.
Further, the amounts so raised have been utilized by the Company for the purposes for which thesea
funds were raised,

{xi) () Tolhe best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud
by the Company or an the Company has been noticed or reported during the period covered by our
audit.

(b} Mo report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed with the Central Government for the pericd
coverad by our audil.

() According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made lo us
by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints raceived by the
Company during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Midhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable io it. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered
into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act,
where applicable. Further, the details of such related party transactions have baen disclosed in the
standalone financial statements, as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related
Party Disclosures specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed
under section 133 of the Act.

{xiv) (&) In our opinion and according to the infarmation and explanations given to us, the Company has an
internal audit system as required under section 138 of the Act which is commensurate with the size
and nature of its business.

(b} We have considered the reports issued by ihe Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the period
under audit.

(xv) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with them and accordingly, provisions of
section 182 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

{xwi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934, Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a) to {c) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company. Further, based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the
management of the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Diirections, 2016) does not have any GIC,
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Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly known as Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Annexure | (Contd]

{awvil)

(2w

(i)

()

{xxi)

The Company has not incurred any cash loss in the current as well as the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the stalulory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(xviil) of the Order is not applicable to the Company,

According to the information and explanations given lo us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the
Board of Directors and management, and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come o our attention, which causes us to believe that any malterial
uncertainly exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
halance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reperting is based an the facts up lo the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

According 1o the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any unspent
amount in respect of any ongoing or other than ongoing project as at the expiry of the financial year,
Acocordingly, reporting under clause 3{xx¢) of the Order is not applicable o the Company.

The reporting under clause 3{xxi) is nol applicable in respect of audit of standalonea financial statemeants
of the Company, Accordingly, no comment has been included in respact of said clause under this
report.

Chartered Accou

For Walker Chal:g‘lﬁrl& Co LLP
ant

Firm's Registratiop N%&GCIW?GNINEDDDH

Partne

£
Membership Mo: 109632

UDIN:

22109632AJFNPP4869

Place: Mumbai

Date: 18 May 2022
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Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly known as Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Annexure |l referred fo in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited) on the standalone
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Independent Auditor's Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(‘the Act')

In conjunction with our audil of the slandalone financial statements of Sula Vineyards Limited
{(Formerly known as Sula Vineyards Private Limited) (‘the Company’) as al and for the year ended
31 March 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls wilh reference to financial statements of the
Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Mote on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note") issued by the Instilute of Chartered
Accountants of India ("the ICAI"), These responsibiliies include the design, implamentation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and erors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial
Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's inlernal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conductad our audit in accordance with the Standards an
huditing issued by the 1CAI prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audil
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Mote issued by the ICAL
Those Standards and the Guidance Mole require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate intemnal financial controls with
reference to financial staterments were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Jur audit invalves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
cantrols with reference to financial statements and their operating effectivenass. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statemeants includes obtaining an understanding of such internal financial
controls, assessing the risk that a matenal weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the audilor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statemeants, whether due to fraud or error.

Wa believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a hasis for our
audit apinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to slandalone financial statements.

=&
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Sula Vineyards Limited {Formerly known as Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Annexure 1l (Contd)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference lo financial statemeants is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepled accounting principles. A company's internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reascnable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transaclions and
dizpositions of the assels of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance hal transactions are recorded
as hecessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipls and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of managemeant and directors of the company; and {3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference Lo financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper managemeant override of controls, material misstatements
due to errar or fraud may occur and nol be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statemeants to future periods are subject lo the risk that the internal financial
cantrols with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statemenis and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022, based
on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Mote issued by the [CAL

LY
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Charlered Accountan
Firm's Reqglstration M :ﬂﬂ1ﬂ?6N!N500ﬂ13

Rakesh garwal

Partna

Membership No 109632
UDIN:22109632AJFNPP4869

Place: Mumbai
Date: 19 May 2022
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Sula Vineyards Limited (Formarly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Standalenc Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022
(amaount in ¥ millien, unlass otherwisa statad)

MNota No. As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
'ASSETS =
Mon-current assets
Property, plant and equipmant 3 3,316.63 303770
Righi-of-usa assels an 9281 12625
Capital work-in-pragress 3B 9.80 1.07
Other intangible aszets 4 11.34 12.00
Invesimanis in subsidiaries 5 269,86 209,96
Financial assets
Inwastments ah 003 0.03
Loans G 2898.74 24509
Ciner financial assets 7 203.44 237a7
Cither non-current assets & 22.09 29.01
Total non-currant assots 4,224.74 38497 25
Current assets
lrwentorics g 1,508.51 1,353.82
Financial assels
Trade receivables 14 905.92 1,088.41
Cash and cash eguivalonts 1 94.44 404,19
Banlk balances other than cash and cash equivalents 12 53.14 45.00
Loans £ 11.43 14.75
Other financial assels T T25.45 465,68
Other current assets i 44.33 G257
Total current assets 3,343.22 3,448 42
Assals classified as held for sale 13 - 12639
Total current assets 334322 3.574.81
TOTAL ASSETS 7.567.96 747209
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 14 157.20 150.80
Oither edquily 3,992.07 3.125.34
Total equity 4.149.27 327614
Liabilities
Mon-current llabilities
Financial liahiliies
Borrowings 15 37861 591.19
Leasa labllities 16 62.37 100.06
Provisions 17 19.07 858,51
Deferrad lax llabilites (net) 18 168.61 189.75
Total non-current liabilities 628.66 96061
Current liabilities
Financizl iabilities
Bomrowings 15 1,768.38 2,370.75
Trade payablas 149
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small anlerprises 3.95 9,19
- Tolal outslanding dues of creditors other than micre enterprises and
small enterprises 531.25 R0E.38
Lease liabillies 16 47.20 38.95
Other financial Eahilties 20 123.58 143,13
Cither current liabilities 21 174.44 148.25
Provisions i7 26,70 12498
Current tax fiabilities {nat) 18 14.53 12,70
Total currant liabilities 2,790.03 3,245.34

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The accompanying notes form an integral parl of the standalone financial statements




Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Standalone Balance Sheot as at 31 March 2022
{Amaount in ¥ million, unless otherwise stated)

This is the Standalone Balance Sheet referred
foa i our &udil reporl of even dale

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of Sula Vineyards Limited

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
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Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Amount in ¥ million, untess otherwise stated)

Mote  Year ended Year ended
No. 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Income
Revaenue from oparations 22 4,194,186 3.379.31
CHher income 23 45.80 5776
Total income 4,239.98 3,437.07
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 24 1,058.79 BE3.42
Purchase of stock-in-frade 49.98 B1.48
Changes in invenloriss of finished goods, work-in-prograss and stock-in-tradae 25 (112.17) 186.55
Excizo duty on salos 294,52 320,19
Employea bencfits exponso 26 638.33 538,83
Selling, distribution and marketing axponse 27 424.18 444 57
Olher expenses 28 785.41 60583
3,140.04 2 539.57
Earnings Before Interest, Depreciation, Tax, Amortisation and Exceptional items
99 94 Ha7.20
(EBIDTAE) 1
Finance cosis 8 213.25 322 60
Depreciation and amortisation expense a0 224 14 253,64
Profit before tax and exceptional item G62.55 F0.86
Exceptional item 301 - {23.75)
Profit /{loss) before tax B62.55 (2.79)
Tax expense 18
Current lax 165.12 2260
Deferred Lax B.86 {19.06)
17398 3.54
Met Profit! {loss) for the year (A) 488,57 (6.33)
Other comprehensive income [ (loss) (OCI)
[terms that will nol be reclassified subsequently to statemeant of profit or loss
Loss on remeasurement of defined benefit plans (net of taxes) a3 {Elﬁd-} e i?_?“ﬂl
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (B) (0.64) (2.78)
Total comprehensive income [ (loss) for the year (A+B) 487.93 {8.11)
Earnings par aquily share of nominal value 2 cach
Basia (in T) 31 6.36 (0.08)
Diluted {in F) 3 6.36 {0.08)

The accompanying notes fonm an inlegral parl of he standalone financial statements
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Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Amount in # million, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit / {foss) before tax
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisalion expense
Interesi expense
Interest income
Impairment allowance on financial assels
Provisions/ balances no longer required written back
Impairment allowance on assel classified as held for sale (Refer notes 13,1 and 13.2)
Share based payment to employaas
Loss on properly, plant and equipment salef disposal/ write-off (net)
Profit on disposal/ cancellation of lease agreement
Unrealised exchange (Gain)loss on foreign currency translations (nat)

Operating profit before working capital changes

Adjustments for changes in working capital:

Decreasel (Increase) in inventories

Decrease in trade receivables

Decrease! (Increase) in current / non-current financial and other assels
{Decrease) fincrease in rade payables and other financial / other liabilities

Cash generated from operations
Diract taxes - refund received/ (paid) [net)]

Met cash generated from operating activitios

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of properly, plant and equipment (Refar note 2 below)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment (Including assels held for sale)
Mel proceeds Trom bank depasits with original maturity of more than three months
FProceeds from sale of investment of subsidiary
Investiment in subsidiany
Intorost received

Net cash used in investing activities

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of equity share capital (including socuritics premium)
Proceeds from leng-term barrowings
Repayment of long-term borrowings
Repayment of shor-term borrowings (net)
Repayment of lease liabilities
Interest paid
Dividond paid (including taxes)

Met cash used in financing activities
Met increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalenls at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the and of the year (Refer note 11)

Motes:-

662.55 (2.79)
224.14 253.64
202.70 aN7.68
{39.12) (46.98)

46,62 1.67
(18.34) {3.25)
- 35.55
18.61 4,10
17.52 29 41
(0.40) {2.31)
(0.32) 0.17
451.41 579.68
1,113.96 576.89
(154.69) 235 43
148.65 235.02
(259.75) 226.47
92.71 (208.68)
{173.08) 488.24
940.88 1,085.13
(165.95) 67.70
774.93 1,132.83
(494.74) (164.52)
90.86 4.41
(19.78) {34.40)
29.69 .
(60.00) (0,10
62.49 71.84
(391.486) (122.77}
561.08 16.64
189.35 217.52
{401.93) (414.58)
{602.37) (411.88)
(53.39) (56.78)
(191.47) (306.73)
(194.49) .
(693.22) (956.79)
{309.75) 53.27
404.19 350.92
94.44 404.19

1 The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS 7) slatement

of cash flows,

2 Addilions include movemants of capital work-in-progress, capital advances and lability lor capital goods, including intangible assets,

3 Cash flow siatement excludes shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contracts without paymaont being received in cash.
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Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limitad)
Standalone Statement of Changes In Equity as at and for the year anded 31 March 2022

(Amount in ¥ million, unless olherwise stated)

a) Equily share capltal

Particulars Number £ milllan
Equity shares of T 2 per share (T10 pershare unlil 300h July 2021) izsued, subscribed and paid up
As at 1 Aprl 2020 150,44, 188 160,44
Fssued dudng e year [Refer note 14(a)) 2012 002
Shares warranis converled during the year [Refer note 148 174 .34
Ag at 31 March 2021 1,50,80,374 150,80
Employes Stock Options exercized wntil 30 July 2021 {refer note 43) 30.000 .30
Tolal oulsfanding shares as atl 30 July 7021, before share split 1,51,10.3741 151.10
Impact of share spli [refer nole 140} £,04,41,496 2
Total ulztanding shares post share split 15551870 15110
Equily shares issued during the year [refer nole 14(a)] 13,756,000 2.75
Shares warrants convertad during the year [reler nole 14(1) 16,7122 .35
Aa at 31 March 2022 T.85.98,081 157.20
b} Other eguity
Particulars Reserves and surplus Maney received Total
[A) against shara [A+B)
Securltles Share option General Retainad warrants
premium outstanding resarve BArTNTGS (B}
resere [Refer Mote 14(f]]
Az at 1 April 2020 1,624 78 273 3590 1,442.12 5.23 31138
Mol Logs fos the year - - - (6.33) - {6:33)
Canversion of warrants inlo equity shares [Refar notes 14{f)3 17.05 - [1.74) 1531
Izsue of equily shares [Reler noles 14£] 143 - - 1.42
Share bazed paymant cxpense - 4.10 - 4.10
Canceliation of empioyes slock oplions - (0,200 - = {200
Other comprehensive less for the year - (275} - {&74)
As at 31 March 2021 1.643.26 6.63 3595 143301 649 3l 25.:@_
Mat Profit for the year - - ABR.GT - 45357
Convarsion of warranls inlo equity shares [Refer notes 14(f)] 24310 - - {4.30) 208.80
Issue of eguily shares |Hefer note 14] 34755 3 2 - - 347.58
Share based payment expense - 18.61 - - - 18.61
Exercise of employes siock opfions = [1.70) 2 % (1.7
Other comprehensive Inss for the year - - * 10,64} {0.54)
Payment of dividend {Refer nole 30) - - - (194,449} 2 (194,449}
As a1 31 March 2022 2,203.84 23,54 35.95 1.726.45 219 3,892,07

Mature and purpose of reserves

i. Securities pramium

Socurilics promivm is wsed 1o record the premium on issue of shares. The accounl is ulilised it accordance with the provisions of the Companias Act, 2013 (the "Act').

i, Bhare option cutstanding reserve

The Emplayes stock oulstanding resarve represents reserve in respecl of equity seffled share options granted to the Company's employees in pursuance of Uie

Empdoyes Stock Option Plan.

lil. General reserve

Lindar the erstwhile Companies Act 1956, a general reserve was created through an annual fransfer of net profil al @ specified percentage in accordance with applicable
regulations. Consequent fo the inbroduction of the Gompandes Act, 2013, the requiremant to mandetorily transfar a specified porcenlage of el profil 1o general resene

has been withdrawn.

iv. Retained earnings

Relained earnings represents the profils / lbosses thal the Company has eamed § ncurred Gl date incleding gain ! (boss) on remeasuremeant of defined bensfils plans as

adpusled for distioutions to awners, transfer to ofher resarves eic.

v, Monoy received agalnst share warrants

Morioy rocoived againsl share warrants represents the subscriplion amount received al the lime of issue of share warrams less utilised for conversion of warrants into

equity shares.

Thz accompanying nates form an infegral part of the slandzalone financial stalomenls
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MNote 1 Corporate Information

Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Privale Limiled) (the "Company” is a Company domiciled and
headquartered in Mumbai, India and was incorporated under the provisions of lhe erstwhile Companies Act, 1956,
has been converted from Private Limited Company to Unlisted Public Limited Company pursuant to special resolution
passed al the Extraordinary General Meeting of the shareholders held on 30 December 2021 and consequently the
name has been changed to Sula Vineyards Limited and a revised certificate of incorporation dated 11 February
2022, consequent to the aforemenlioned change, has been issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. The Company
having CIN U15549MH2003PLC139352 is localed at 901 Hubtown Solaris N.S. Phadke tdarg, Andheri East,
Mumbai-400069.

The Company is principally engaged in the business of manufacture, purchase and sale of premium wine and other
aleoholic beverages. The Standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2022 were
authorised for issue in accordance with resalution of Board of Directors on 19 May 2022,

Mote 2.1 Significant Accounting Policies

i. Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the Indian
Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read
with Companies (Indian Accounling Standards) Rules as amended from time to time notfified under the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention with the exception of certain
financial assels and liabilities and share based payments which have been measured at fair value, on an accrual
hasis of accounting.

The Company's Tinancial statements are reported in Indian Rupees, which is also the Company's functional
currency, and all values are rounded o the nearest million (INR 000,000), except when otherwise indicated.

ii. Operating cycle and current, non-current classification

Based on the nature of services and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and theair realisation
in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose
of current/ non-current classification of assets and liabilities. The Company presents assets and liabilities in the
Balance Sheet based on current! non-current classification.

An Asset is Current when:

s |iis expected to be realised in normal operating cycle.

e lis held primarily for the purpose of trading.

= |t is expected lo be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
= |tis cash or cash eguivalent,

All other assets are classified as non-current,
A Liability is current when:

e |t is expected to be settled in normal operaling cycle,

o |tis held primarily for the purpose of trading.

s |tis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

« There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period. '

The Company classilies all other lizbilities as non-current.

g{f:aﬁ-,.i_:mﬂ—current assets and non-current liabilities respectively.

o RO
g
o
MIREA

Deferred tax assets and liabililies are classi




Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements, in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind
AS, requires the management to make estimates and assumplions thal affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of financial stalements and the results of
aperation during the reported period. Although these estimates are based upon management’s best Knowledge
of current events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates which are recognised in the period
in which they are delermined.

Key accounting estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a malerial adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
lha nexl financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters
available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumplions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control
of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the financial stalements in the period in which changes are made
and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statemeants,

Critical estimates and judgements

Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial slatements are prudent and
reasonable. Examples of such estimates include eslimation of useful lives of property plant and equipment,
employee costs, assessments of recoverable amounts of deferred tax assets, trade receivables and cash
generating units, pravisions against litigations and contingencies.

Estimates

a) Impact of COVID-19 on the business operations and financial statement of the Company

b)

The outbreak of COVID-19 had disrupled business operations of the Cempany in earlier periods due to the lock
down restrictions and other emergency measures imposed. The Company's business operations have
continued wilh certain restrictions in line with guidelines laid down by the respective Governments from time to
time. The overall operations of the Company have significantly recovered from the economic slowdown caused
by COVID-19 pandemic and largely reached normalcy.

The Company management has also taken into account the possible impacts of known events, upto the date
of the approval of this Financial Statements, arising from COVID-18 pandemic on the carrying value of the assels
and liabilities as at 31 March 2022. The Company managemenl does not foresee any significant impact of the
of COVID-19 pandemic but will continue to closely monitor any potential impact given the uncertainties
associated with its nature and duration,

Useful lives of various assets

The Company has estimaled the useful life if each class of assets based on the nalure of assets, the estimated
usage of the asset, the operating condition of the assel, past history of replacement, anticipated technological
changes, ete. The Company reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets at each
reporting period. This reassessment may result in change in deprecialion and amortisation expense in the future
periods.

Current Income Taxes

The tax jurisdictions for the Company is India. Significant judgments are involved in delermining the provision
for income taxes including judgment on whether tax positions are probable of being sustained in tax
assessments. A tax assessment can involve complex issues, which can only be resolved over extended time
periods. The recognition of taxes that are subject to certain legal or economic limits or uncertainties is assessed
individually by management based on the specific facts and circumstances.




d} Investment in / advances to Subsidiary

The Company has performed valuation for its investments in equity of its subsidiary for assessing whether there
is any impairment in the fair value. When the fair value of investments in subsidiaries cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation technigues including the
discounted cash flow model. Similar assessment is carried for exposure of the nature of loans and interest
receivable thereon. The inputs to these models are taken from obzervable markets where possible, but where
this is nol feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values, Judgements include
considerations of inputs such as expected earnings in fulure years, liquidily risk, credit risk and volatility.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of these investments.

e) Provision and Contingencies

Contingent Liability may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against tha Company.
By heir nature, contingencies will be resolved only when ane or more uncertain future events oceour or fail to
ocour. The assessment of the existence, and potential quantum, of conlingencies inherently involves the
exercise of significant judgments and the use of estimates regarding the cutcome of future events.

f}  Accounting for defined benefit plans

In accounting for post-retirement benefits, several statistical and other factors that attempt to anticipate future
evenls are used to calculale plan expenses and liabilities. These factors include expected discount rate
assumptions and rate of future compensation increases. To estimate these factors, acluarial consullants also
use estimates such as withdrawal, turnover, and mortality rates which require significant judgment. The actuarial
assumptions used by the Company may differ materially from actual results in future periods due to changing
market and economic conditions, regulatory events, judicial rulings, higher or lower wilhdrawal rafes, or longer
or shorter participant life spans.

g) Impairment of financiall non-financial assets

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which an asset's or cash-generating unit's carrying amount
excesds ils recoverable amount to determine the recoverable amount, management estimates expected future
cash flows from each asset or cash generating unit and delermines a suitable interest rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. In the process of measuring expected future cash flows, management
makes assumptions about future operating results. These assumptions relate to future events and
circumsiances. The aclual resulls may vary and may cause significant adjustments to the Company's assets,
In most cases, determining the applicable discount rate involves estimating the appropriate adjustment Lo
market risk and the appropriate adjustment to asset-specific risk factors.

v. Fair Value Measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, at fair value at each balance sheet date. (Refer note 34).

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal markel for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the assel or liability,
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumplions thal markel participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in thoir economic best interest.

& fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes inte account 3 market paricipant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using lhe assel in ils highesl and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
wauld use the asset in its highest and best use.

Thu Cumpdﬂy usEs miuallon le ﬁld‘;uéﬁi !;h“’-% re appropriate in ﬂ'IF ﬂrﬁjm%tanreq and for whlrh quf‘ﬁcrent data is




vi.

vii.

wiii.

unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measurad or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorized within the fair value hicrarchy, described as follows, based on the lowast level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assels or liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than gquoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly {i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data {unobservable inputs).

For assefs and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period. At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which
are required 1o be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this analysis, the
Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation
computation to contracts and other relevant documents. The Management also compares the change in the fair
value of each assel and liabilily with relevant external sources to delermine whelher the change is reasonable.

Property, Plant and Equipment (Tangible Assets)

Properly, Planl and Equipment are slaled al cost of acquisition including atlribulable interest and finance costs, if
any, till the date of acquisition/ installation of the assets less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Subsequent expenditure relating to Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised only when it is
probable thatl future economic benefits associated with the item will flow 1o the Company and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss
as incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements, either on
disposal or when retired from active use and the resultant gain or loss are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Bearer plants comprising of grapevines are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, Immalure bearer plants, including the cost incurred for procurement of new seeds and
maintenance of nurseries, are carried at cost less any recognized impairment losses under capital work-in-progress.
Cost includes the cost of land preparation, new planting and maintenance of newly planted bushes until maturity. On
maturity, these cosis are classified under bearer plants,

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-prograss representing expenditure incurred in respect of assets under development and not ready
for their intended use, are carried at cost. Cost includes related acquisition expenses, construction cost, relaled
borrowing cost and other direct expenditure.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the cost of acquired business as established at the date of acquisition of the business in excess
of the acguirer's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities less
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or when events or circumstances
indicale that the implied fair value of goodwill is less than ils carrying amount.

Brands acquired in a business combination and recognised separately from Goodwill are initially recognised at their
fair value at the acquisition value (which is regarded as their cost). Subsequent to initial recognition, these are
reporled at cost less accumulated amorlisation and accumulated impairment losses, il any.

Other Intangible assets are stated at cost, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
itern will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably, less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Olher Intangible assels mainly comprise of implementation cosl for software
and other application software acquired and brand acquired through business combination.




xi.

Investment Property

Investment properties are held to earn rentals (except for shorl-term purposes) or for capital apprecialion, or both,
but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Investment properties are measured initially al their cost of acquisition. The cosl comprises
purchase price, borrowing cost il capitalization criteria are met and direclly atiributable cost of bringing the asset 1o
ils working condition for the inlended use. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or
recognised as a separate assel, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefils azsociated
with the item will flow to the Campany. All other repair and maintenance cosls are recognised in Statement of Profit
and Loss as incurred.

Though the Company measures investment property using cost-based measurement, the fair value of investment
property is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined on an annual basis.

Non-current assets or disposal Company classified as held for sale

Mon-current assets that are available for immediate sale and where the sale is highly probable of being completed
wilhin one year from the date of classification are considered and classified as assets held for sale. Non-current
assel classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell. The
determination of fair value less cost lo sell includes use of management estimales and assumptions. The fair value
of assel held for sale has been estimated using observable inputs such as price guotations,

Depreciation and Amortisation

Depreciation on Properly, plant and equipment ('PPE') is calculated using the straight-line method as per the
estimated useful lives of assets as below,

[ Asset category Useful life (in years) | Basis of determination of useful lives
| Building 30 — 60 Assessed lo be in line with Schedule 11 to the Act
Leasehold improvement Over the lease period - R
" Plant and equipment 10-25 Assessed to be in line with Schedule |l to the Act
" Furniture and fixtures 5—10 Management estimate®

Vehicles 8-10  |Assessed to beinline with Schedule |l to the Act |
" Office equipment 3-10 Management estimate®

Computers 3-6 Assessed to be in line with Schedule Il to the Act |
| Oak barrels 4 Management estimate®

Bearer plants 20 Management estimate® )

A Useful lives of asset classes delerminad by management estimate, which are generally lower than those prescribed
under Schedule || to the Act are supported by internal technical assessment of the useful lives.

The estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any change in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Depreciation on additions is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from the date on which assel is ready for use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amounls, These are
accounted in Statement of profit and loss within Other income! Other expenses.

Amortisation on Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis, from the date they are available for use, over their estimated
useful lives that is a period of three to len years,

Asset category Useful life (in years) | Basis of determination of useful lives
| Brand

Computer soflware




xii. Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract thal gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

a. Financial Assets

(1) Initial Recognition

In the case of financial assels, not recorded at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), financial assets are
recognised initially at fair value plus transaction cosis that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assel. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade
dale, i.e., the date that the Company commils to purchase or sell the asset.

(ii) Subsequent Measurement

For purposes of subseguent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured al amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a
business model with an objective to hold these assets in order (o collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates lo cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest income from these financial assets s
included in finance income using the effective interest rate ("EIR") method. Impairment gains or losses
arising on these assels are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value

Financial assels are measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income ('OCI") if these financial
assets are held within a business model with an objective to hold these assets in order lo collect contractual
cash flows or to sell these financial assels and the confraciual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dales to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, excepl for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial asset not measured al amortised cost or at fair value through OCl is carried at FVPL. In respect of
equity investments (other than for investment in subsidiaries) which are not held for trading, the Company
has made an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of such instruments in
Statement of Profit and Loss. Such an election is made by the Company on an instrument by instrument
hasis at the time of fransition for existing equily instruments/ initial recognition for new equity instruments.

{iii} Equity investments

(iv)

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. The Company has made an
irrevocable election to present in olher comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value, The
Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. If the Company decides to classify an
equity instrument as at FVTOGI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are
recagnized in the OCl. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to statement of profil or loss, even on
sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equily.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

The equily securities which are not held for trading, and for which the Company has made an irrevocable
clection at initial recognition to recognize changes in fair value through OCH rather than profit or loss as these
are strategic investments and the Company considered this 1o be more relevant,

Impairment of Financial Assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, th mpany applies the expected credil loss ("ECL") model for measurement

[fiafgial assets a itrish oxposures,
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The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivabies.
Simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credil risk, Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition,

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assels and risk exposure, the Company determines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. IT credit risk has not
increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment less. However, if credil risk has
increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequentl period, credit quality of the instrument
improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity
reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the
original EIR. Lifetime ECL are lhe expecled credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expecled life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of lhe lifelime ECL which results from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the peried is recognised as income! expense
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

{v) De-recognition of Financial Assets
The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another entity.

If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the assets and an associated
lizbility for amounts it may have to pay.

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Company conlinues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

b) Equity Instruments and Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instrumenls issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of
lhe contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences g residual interest in the assets of the Company after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments which are issued for cash are recorded at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs. Equity instruments which are issued for consideration other than cash are recorded at
fair value of the equity instrument.

Financial Liabilities
+ [Initial Recognition

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVPL, loans and borrowings
and payables as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised inilially alt fair value and, in the case of
loans and borrowings and payables, nel of directly attributable transaction costs.

s Subsequent Measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below

purpose of repurchasing in the
Slatement of Profit and Loss.




Financial liabilities at amortised cosl

Aftar initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings and other payables are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR. amortisalion process, Amorlised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral parl of
lhe EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

+ De-recognition of Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by anoiher from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is trealed as de-recognition of the original liability and recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profil and Loss.

¢} Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the nel amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis to realise the assets and setile the liabilities simultaneously.

xiii. Employee Benefits
a) Defined Conlribution Plan

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as provident fund, employees’ slale insurance, labour
welfare fund are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made as and
when sorvices are rendered by lhe employees. Company's provident fund contribution, in respect of certain
employees, is made to a government administered fund and charged as an expense o the Statement of Profit
and Loss. The above benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as tha Company has no furlher
obligations bevond the monthly contributions,

b) Defined Benefit Plan

The Company provides for gratuity which is a defined benefit plan the liabilities of which is determined based
on valuations, as at the balance sheel date, made by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit
method, Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, in respect of gratuity are recognised in
the OCI, in the period in which they accur and is not eligible to be reclassified to the Statement of Profit and
Loss in subsequent periods. Past service cosl is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year of
plan amendment or curtailment. The classification of the Company's obligation into currenl and non-current is
as per the actuarial valuation report.

c) Leave entitlement and compensaled absences

Accumulated leave which is expected to be utilised within next twelve months, is treated as short-term
employee benefil. Leave entitlement, ather than short term compensated absences, are provided based on a
actuarial valuation, similar to that of gratuity benefil. However, as the Company does not have an unconditional
right to defer settlement for these obligations, the above liabilities are presented as currenl. Re-measurement,
comprising of actuarial gains and losses, in respect of leave entitlement are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss in the period in which they occur,

d) Short-term benefits

Shorl-lerm employee benefits such as salaries, wages, performance incentives etc. are recognised as
expenses al the undiscounted amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the period in which the related
service is rendered. Expenses on non-accumulating compensated absences is recognised in the period in
which the absences occur.




xiv.

Inventories

lnventorias which comprise of raw malerials, work-in-progress / semi-finished goods, finished goods, stock-in-
trade, packing materials and consumables, chemicals, stores and spares are carried al the lower of cost or net
realisable value. The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis.

Cosl of inventories comprises all costs of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting
rebates and discounts, The cost is determined as follows:

= Raw Malerials, Traded goods, Packing Materials and Consumables, chemicals, slores and spares are valued
using the weighled average method.

s Finished goods and work-in-progress [ semi-finished goods are valued al the cost of raw materials along with
fixed production overheads being allocated on the basis of normal capacily of production facilities.

Mel realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

xv. Cash and Cash Equivalents

xvi.

Hvii.

xviii.

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprises of cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three month or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value,

Segment Reporting

Operaling segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker regularly monitors and reviews the operating
result of the whole Company as one segment of "Manufacture and sale of alcoholic beverages (wines and
spirits)". Thus, as defined in Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments”, the Company's entire business falls under this
one operational segment and hence the necessary information has already been disclosed in the Balance Sheet
and the Statement of Profil and Loss.

Foreign currency transactions and balances
{a) Initial Recognition

Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign
currency amatint the exchange rate between the reparting currency and the foreign currency at the date of
the transaction.

{b) Conversion

Monetary assels and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are reported using the closing rate at the
reporting date. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign
currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

{c) Treatment of Exchange Difference

Exchange differences arising on settlement/ restatement of shorl-term foreign currency monetary assels
and liabilities of the Company are recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from contracts with cuslomers is recognised at a point in lime when contral of the goods or services
is transferred o the customer at an amount thal reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Based on the Educational Malerial on Ind AS 115 issued by the Inslilute of Chartered Accountants of India

("ICAF), the Company has assumed that recovery of excise duty flows to the Company on its own account and

hence is a liahility of the manufacturer which forms part of the cost of production, irrespeclive of whether the

goods are sold or not. Since the r excise duty flows lo the Company on its own account, rovenue

[uehadded ta}g;fﬁﬁ 2 pads and services tax (GST) is not received
&
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Xix.

XX.

XX,

by the Company on its own account and is tax collected on value added to the commodity by the seller on behalf
of the government, Accardingly, it is excluded from revenue.,

(a) Revenue from sale of products

Revenue is recognised when control of the product transfers, there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the customer's acceptance of the products and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount
of the consideration that will be derived from the sale of goods,

(b) Revenue from services
Revenues from services represents revenue from hospitality services mainly comprise of sale of room nights,
food and beverages and allied services relating to the resort and winery operations. Revenue is recognized
at a point in time when the services are rendered and is disclosed net of allowances.

(c) Interest Income
Interesl income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and
the rate applicable.

(d) Dividend Income
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the right to receive payment has baen eslablished,
provided that it is probable that the economic benefils will flow to the Company and the amount of income
can be measured reliably.

(e} Other Income
Other iterns of income are accounted as and when the right to receive such income arises and it is probable
that the economic beneafits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably,

Government Granis

Grants and subsidies from the Gavernment are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the grant
! subsidy will be received and all attaching conditions are complied with. Government grants related to revenue
under Wine Industry Promaotion Subsidy linked with Value Added Tax, are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss in the period in which they become receivable, Where the grant or subsidy relates to an asset (i.e.
Export Promation Capital Goods scheme), it is presented in the balance sheet by setting up the grant as
deferred income which is recognised as income in the statement of profit and loss linking to the fulfillment of the
associated export obligations.

Trade receivables

A receivable is classified as a "trade receivable’ if iLis in respect of the amount due on account of goods sold or
services rendered in the normal course of business. Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured al amortised cost using the EIR method, less provision for impairment. Trade
receivables ageing has been presented based on lhe date of transaction. Further, in respect of trade receivables
from Government Corporations, payment are received on lump-sum basis instead of an invoice-by-invoice
settlement. Accordingly, the collections/ realisations from corporalion trade receivables are accounted against
the earliest outstanding invoice.

Trade payables

A payable is classified as a 'trade payable' if it is in respect of the amount due on account of goods purchased
or services received in the normal course of business, These amounts represent liabiliies for goods and
servicas provided to the Company prior to the end of the financial year which are unpaid. These amounts are
unsecured and are usually settled as per the payment terms stated in the contract, Trade and other payables
are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period, They
are recagnised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method,
Trade payables ageing has been presentud based on the date of transaction.




XK.

xxiii.

Hxiv.

Income Tax

Income tax comprizes of current and deferred income tax. Income tax is recognised as an expense or iNcome
in the Statement of Profit and Loss, excepl o the extent it relates to items directly recognised in equity or in
CCL

a) Current Income Tax

Current income tax is recognised based on the estimaled lax liability computed after taking credit for
allowancas and exemplions in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961, Current income lax assels and
liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The
lax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those thal are enacted or substantively enacted, at
the reporling dale,

b) Deferred Income Tax

Deferred Lax is delermined by applying the Balance Sheet approach. Deferred tax assels and liabilities are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences between the financial statements’ carrying amount of
existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax base. Deferred lax assels and liabilities are measured
using the enacled tax rates or tax rates that are substantively enacted at the Balance Sheel date. The effect
on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognised in the period that includes the
enactment date. Deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent thal it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. Such assels are reviewed
at each Balance Sheet date o reassess realisation,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right
to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or o realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Share Based Payments

Share based compensated benefits are provided lo cerlain grades of emplayees in consideration of the services
rendered. Under the equity settled share based payment, the fair value on the grant date of the instrument given
to employees is recognised as ‘employee benefits expenses’ with a corresponding increase in equity over the
vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. The fair
value of the oplions at the grant date is calculated by an independent valuer basis Black Scholes model. At the
end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are expecled lo vest based on
the non-market vesting and service conditions, |t recagnizes the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equily, Upon exercise of share options, the proceeds
recaived are allocated to share capital up to the par value of the shares issued with any excess being recorded
as share premium.

Leases

The Company's lease assel classes primarily consist of leases for land, building and vehicles. The Company
assesses whether a contract conlaing a lease, at inception of a confract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if
lhe contract conveys the right to contral the use of an identified assel for a period of time in exchange of the
consideralion,

At the date of the commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset representing its
right to use the underlying asset for the lease term and a corresponding lease liability for all the lease
arrangements in which it is a lease, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases)
and low value leases, For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognises the lease payments
as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

The righl-ol-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the inilial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement dale of the lease, They are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulaled depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated from the mmmencemeg!:ﬂgt&gn a siraight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful
life of the underlying assel. The & Fﬁfﬁfe%’_
of property, plant and equipmar i \[;H
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KXV,

XxXvi.

Xxvii.

Right-of-use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicale that
their carrying amounls may not be recoverable. Carrying amount of righl-of-use asset is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than ils estimated recoverable
amount.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the fulure lease payments. The
future lease payments are discounled using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if nol readily determinable,
using the incremental borrowing rates. For a lease with reasonably similar characteristics, the Company, on a
lease by lease basis, may adopt either the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental
borrowing rate for the portfclio as a whale,

Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet. Further, lease
payments have been classilied as financing cash flows.

Business Combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The acguisition method invelves the
recognition of the acquiree's identifiable assels and liabilities, including contingent liabilities, regardless of whether
they were recorded in the financial statements prior to acquisition. On initial recagnition, the assets and liabilities
of the acquired business are included in the balance sheet at their fair values, which are also used as the bases
for subseqguent measurement in accordance with lhe Company's accounting policies. Goodwill is slaled after
separating oul identifiable intangible assets. Goodwill represents the excess of acquisition cost over the fair value
of the Company’s share of the identifiable net assets of the acquiree at the dale of acquisition. Any excess of
identifiable net assets over acquisition cost is recognised in the other comprehensive income on the acquisition
date and accumulated in equity as capital reserve,

Acquisition related costs are accounted for as expenses in the period in which they are incurred and the services
are received.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

As al each Balance Sheet date, the Company assesses whether there is an indication that a non-financial asset
may be impaired and also whether there is an indication of reversal of impairment loss recognised in the previous
periods. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an assel is required, the Company
determines the recoverable amount and impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount,

Recoverable amount is determined:
- In case of an individual asset, at the higher of the assets' fair value less cost to sell and value in use; and

- In case of cash generating unit (a Company of assets that generates identified, independent cash flows), at the
higher of cash generating unit's fair value less cost to sell and value in use.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current markel assessments of the time value of money and risk specified to the asset.
In determining fair value less cost to sell, recent market transaction are taken into account. If no such transaction
can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. Impairment losses of continuing operations, including
impairment en inventories, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except for properties previously
revalued with the revaluation taken lo OC|, For such properties, the impairment is recognised in QC| up to the
amount of any previous revaluation. When the Company considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery
of the asset, the relevant amounts are written off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and
the decrease can be related objeclively to an event occurring after the impairmenl was recognised, then the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or conslructive) as a result of past
evenls and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the amalnt of obligation. Provisions {excluding
gratuity and compensated absenceg)lart“determined based on management's estimate required to settle the
obligation at the Balance Sheet d ' ney




a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to lhe lability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet
date and adjusted to reflect the current management estimatas.

The Company recognises a provision in respect of an onerous contracl when the expected benefits to be derived
from a contract is lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under the contract. The
provision is measured at lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of fulfilling
the contract, Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events, whose
existence would be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company. A contingent liability also arises, in rare cases, where a liability cannot
he recognised because it cannot be measured reliably, Conlingent assels are disclosed where an inflow of
economic benefils is probable.

xxviii. Earnings per share

Basic carnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company by the weighled average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
The weighted average number of equity shares oulstanding during the perind and for all periods presented is
adjusted for evenls, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares, that have
changed the number of equity shares oulstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company and weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic
earnings per equity share and also the weighled average number of equity shares that could have been issued
upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares, The dilulive polential equity shares are adjusted for the
proceeds receivahble had the equity shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the
outstanding equity shares).

xxix. Exceptional ltems

When items of income and expense within profit or loss from ordinary activities are of such size, nalure or
incidence that their disclosure is relevant to explain the performance of the enterprise for the period, the nature
and amount of such material items are disclosed separately as exceptional items.

Mote 2.2 Recent accounting pronouncements

Amendment to Ind AS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") vide notification dated 23 March 2022, has issued an amendment to Ind
AS 16 which specifies that an entity shall deduct from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any
procoods received from selling items produced while the entity is preparing the asset for its intended use (for
example, the proceeds from selling samples produced when testing a machine to see if it is functioning properly).

Amendment to Ind AS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

MCA vide nolification dated 23 March 2022, has issued an amendment to Ind AS 37 which specifies that the cost
of fulfilling a contract comprises: the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract and an allocation of olher costs that
relate directly to fulfilling contracts.

Amendment to Ind AS 103, Business Combinations

MCA vide notification dated 23 March 2022, has issued an amendment to Ind AS 103 and has added a new
exceplion in the standard for liabilities and contingent liabilities,

Amendment to Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments

MCA vide notification dated 23 March 2022, has issued an amendment to Ind AS 109 which clarifies that which foes
an enlity should include when it applies the "10%:!' test in assessing whether to derecognize a financial liability. An
entity includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or
received by either the entity or the lender onthe other's behalf.
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Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Summary of signiflcant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31
March 2022

{Amount in ¥ million, unless otherwise stated)

As at Az at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Mole 5 Non-current investments
Investments in subsidiaries

Invastments in equity instruments at deemed cost, unguoted fully paid up

a) In subsidiary companies in Indis
Arlisan Spirts Private Limited (Refer nola 44) 269,86 208,86
35,360,000 (31 March 2021: 24.350,000) equity shares of 7 10 each

Frogressive Alcohev Disfribidors Privala Limilad Z 53,44
Mif {31 March 202 1: 593 800} equily shares of ¥ 10 each
Loss: Asset classified as held for sale (Refer nole 13} - [53.44)
269.36 209.86
b} In a subsidiary company outside India
Sula Internationzl Limitad 0.10 0.10
1,000 (31 March 2021 1,000) equity shares of (GGBF 1 each
Lessz: Provision for lmpairment {0.10) -
- 010
269.86 209.96

Note 54 Investments

Investments in equity shares at fair value through other comprehensive income, unquoted fully paid

The Saraswal Co-oporative Bank 0.03 003
2500 (31 March 2021: 2,500) equity shares of 10 each
Total non-current Investments (5 + 5A) _ 265.89 209.99
Detalls:
Aggregate of non-current investments:
{1} Mogregate value of quoled investmanls and market vaiue thereof - -
(i) Aggregate valuo of uhguoted Investments 269.80 20999
(i) Aggregate valus of Impairmeant of investmenls 0.10 -
(i} Invasimanls carried a1 deemed cost 269.86 209595
{il} Investmenis carried st amordised cosl F 4
(i) Invesiments carried al fair value through other comprehensive income 0.03 0.03
269.89 209.98

Curing the year ended 31 March 2022, the company has invesled in 60,00,000 equity shares of T 10 each in its whally owned subsidiary Artizan Spirits Private
Lirnited

MNaote & Loans

MNon-current

Loans

- {a subsidiarias (Relor noles 35 and 44) 27870 23439
- o employees 1602 10.70
- o olhers® _ 302 -
Total non-current loans 208,74 245.08

A Securad by way of personal guaranies from the Director of Flaminga Wines Company Privale Limited

Current
Loans
- 1o subsidiaries (Refer nola 35) 2.59 247

Less: Impalrment allovwance {2.50) -

- - 247

- 1o employees 11.43 11.28
Total current loans 11.43 13.75
Total loans 31017 25884
Break-up of security details
Leoans receivable considared good - secured - -
Leans recelvable congidered good - unsecured 310,17 258.64
Loans receivable which hava signilicanl increase In cradii sk . i
Loans receivable - credil impairad 2.59 -
Total 312.76 SEE.84




Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)

Summary of signiflcant accounting pelicies and other explanatory information Lo the slandalone financlal statements as at and for the year ended 31

March 2022
{Amount in ¥ milllon, unless otherwise stated)

Mate 6.1 Disclosure under Section 186{4) of the Companies Act, 2013
| man given fo subsidiaries during e year:
Arlisan Spiits Private Limited
Sula International Limited
[.oan given o athers during tha year:
Flamingo Wines Company Private Limited
Guarantee given for subsidiaries during tha year:
Arlizan Spirils Privale Limited
I'te above loans and guarantees are for the purpose of mesfing the working capilal reguirament
Mote 7 Other flnancial assets
Won-current

Governmernd granls receivabla

Security deposils

Gank deposits with maturity of more than 12 maonihs

(pladpad with excize authorities or earmarked against bank guaraniees laken)
Inlerast accrued

Total non-current financlal azsets

Current

Govemmenl grants receivable
Secuity deposits

Inlaresl accrued

Oihers

Total current financial assels

Total other financial assets
MNote B Other assets

Nan-current

Capilzl advances

Balances with government authaorities
Prapaid axpenses

Total other non-current assets

Current

Advance lo suppliers
Balances wath government autharities
Prepaid expenses

Total other current asscls
Total other assets

Note 9 Inventories

Waork-in-progress / Semi-finished goods
Finished goods
Stack-in-trada [including goods-in-lransil: Nil {31 March 2021: 3 1.71 million)]

Consumables, chemicals, stores and spares [including goods-in-transit; Mil (31 March 2021: 2 0.9% million]]

Packing malarizls [including goods-in-transit: Nil (31 March 2021: 7 093 miillion)]

Toetal inventories

Az at

As al

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

504.28 51728
0.25 217
302 -

174.63 Th.0d

162.58 189.75

2472 24 51
1614 0.52
- 22.09

202.44 2377

704.38 464.19
.62 0.48
0.73 2.0

19.72 :

T725.45 A6 GA

928.89 703.85
2.64 078

18.95 26.03
0,50 2.20
22.09 2001
797 2713
13.27 .71
23.09 25,73
44,33 6257
G542 91,58
1,145.17 1.045.99
211533 150.87
38,88 71.79
40,92 2T.R3
7221 57.94
1,508.51 1,353.82




Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31

March 2022
{Amount in ® million, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 10

Trade receivable

Trade receivahles

Total trade receivables

Trade receivabies considered good - secured

Trade receivables considerad goad - unsecured

Trade receivables which have sgnifican increase In credit risk
Trade receivables - credit impaired

Total

Impairment alipwance on:

Trade receivables considered good

Trade receivables which have significanl increase in credit risk
Trade receivables - credil Impaired

Total trade receivahle

Az al

As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

ans. o2 1 ,UQEI-.4'|
905.92 1,098.41
905.92 1,098.41
70.99 27.06
o768t 1,175.47
(70.99) (27.06)
40592 1,0588.41

Mote 10.1: There are no trade receivables due irom any diracior or any officer of (e Company, either severally or jeintly with any other person, ar from amy firms or
privale companies in which any director is a pariner, a diraclor or a member,

Mate 10.2; Trade raceivables are nen-interest beanng and generally on terms of 30 to 90 days.

MNote 10.3: Trade receivable ageing schedule

Outstanding for following perlods from transaction date

As at 31 March 2022 Mot dug  Less than & & months-1 1-2 years 2-3 Years More than 3 Total
months yoar years
(i1 Undisputed frade receivablas- Considered good 24534 2981 2816 253 0.78 90592
{if) Undispuled lrade receivables which have significant - - - - - - -
Inereasze in cradit risk
{iii} Undizputed trade recaivables - cradit impairod - 4.44 014 014 n.nz - 4.74
{iv) Dizputed trade recaivablos-considered good - - - - H -
{v) Dispuled Lrade receivables which have significant = = - - - -
increasa in cradit risk
{vi) Disputed frade receivables - credil impaired - 21.03 16.08 5.72 266 17.78 G625
- B6B_81 4601 35.32 8.1 18.56 976.91
MNate: There ara no unbilled dues for the reporting period
Outstanding for following periods from transaction date
As at 31 March 2021 Mot due Less than 6 6 months-1 1-2 years 2-3 Years Mare than 3 Tatal
_rnnnths year YOArs
{1 Undisputed trade receivahlas- Considered good - 1.00£.85 3369 51,26 7.o7 1.54 1098.44
{ii) Lndisputed {rada receivables which have significant - - - - - "
increazo in credit sk
{iii} Undisputed trade raceivables - cradil impaired - 2.46 0.08 bz 0.2 - 268
{iv) Disputed trade recoivables-considersd goad - e - - - - =
{¥) Disputed trade receivables which hava significant - = - - - - -
increase in cradif risk
{wi) Digpulod trade receivables - credit impaired - 144 018 2.84 10.57 3.35 24 38
- 1,008.75 33.95 54,22 17 .66 10.89 ) _!_?:125.41?

[ =

Mote: There are no unbilled duas for lhe reparling period




Sula Vineyards Limited (Formery Sula Vineyards Private Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other cxplanatory information to the standalone financizl statements as at and for the year ended 31
March 2022

{Amaount in ¥ million, unless otherwise statod)

As al As al
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balances with banks in current accounts 2417 403,87
Cash on hand 0.27 0.3z
Total cash and nash equivalents 04 .44 A04.149

Note 11.1: There ara na rapalriztion reslsiclions wilth regards lo cash and cash eguivalents as at the end of the reperting period and prior penods.

Motz 12 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Bank depaosils with maturity of more than 3 manths bid less than 12 months 5314 49.00

[neld as margin money or securily against borrowings, guarantse and othar commilmanls]

Total bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 53.14 45.00
As at Az at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Note 13 Assets classified as held for sale

Investmernt in equily sharas of Pregressive Alcobey Distributors Private Limited, ungueoted (Refer note 13,7 halow) ¥ 2068
Oilice promises along with plam and equipment and furniiered fixtures (Refer note 13.2 below) - 9570
- 126.39

Mote 13.1: The Company in March 2021 entered inte a Memorandum of Understanding ['MOL') for seil of its investment in Progressiva Alcobev Dislribulors Limited
{'PADPLY for a tolal consideration of ¥ 22,69 millian, Accordingly, the investment were classified as hald for szle and the resullant impalrmant loss of F 23,75 millian
waz recognised as an exceptional item during the year endad 31 March 2021, During the current year the Company has completed the sale of its invesiment in
PADFL effeciive 1 April 2021, Consequenily, wilh offect from 1 April 2021, PADPL ceased 10 be its subsidiary company. Also refer note 3001

Mote 13.2: Basis the intenton to dispose an office premises, certain plant and equipment and furnilure fixleres along wilth the office premises with an aggregate
carmying value $ 108.50 million, were classified &5 "Mon-curren asset as held for sale” as al 31 March 2021, Based on valuation of the aforesaid assets by an
indepandant valuer, the fair value lass cost o sell was daterrminad a2 3 9670 million. Accordingly, an impairment fess of T 11,80 miflion was recognized during year
endad 31 March 2021.

During the current year the Company has completed the sale of the premises for an #ggregale consideration of 2 78,65 million {nel of cost lo soll). As a resull, an
addilicnal loss of ¥ 17.05 million has been recognised in the financial stalemeant for the yaar ended 31 March 2022,

As at Az ai
a1 March 2022 31 March 2021
Particulars

Building 102.86 102.86
Plant and equipment 1.69 1.69
Furniture and felures 3.95 3495
Carrying value (WDV) of agscts held for sale 108.50 108.50
Impairment loss on classification of assels caszssiiicd as hald for sale (Refer nole 28) [28.85) (11.80}
Lass: Sakes consideralion (nel off cost 1o sales) [79.65) B
Fair value as at year end [less cost to sell) - 9670




Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March
2022
(Amount in ¥ million, unless otherwise stated)
As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Note 14 Equity share capital

Authorised share capital
10,10,30,000 Equity shares of ¥ 2 each [Refer nole 14(h)) 202.06 202.06
(31 March 2021: 20,206,000 equily shares of ¥ 10 each)

Total authorised share capital 202.06 202.06
Issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital:
7,85,98,091 Equity shares of T 2 each fully paid up 157.20 150.80
(31 March 2021: 15,080,374 equity shares of ¥ 10 each)
Total issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital - 157.20 . 150.80
. Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
Number ¥ million
As at 1 April 2020 1,50,44,188 150.44
Issued during lhe year [Refer nole 14({e]] 2,012 0.02
Shares warrants converled during the year [Refer note 14(f)] 34,174 0.34
As at 31 March 2021 1,50,80,374 150.80
Add: Employee stock options exercised during the year [refer note 43] 30,000 0.30
Total outstanding shares before share split 1,51,10,374 151.10
Add: Impact of share splil [Refer note 14(h]] 6,04,41,496 -
Total outstanding shares post share split 7,55,51,870 151.10
lssued during the year [Refer note below] 13,75,000 2.75
Shares warrants converled during the year [Refer note 14{f)] 16,71,221 3.35
As at 31 March 2022 7,85,98,091 157.20

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has issued 1,375,000 equity shares of ¥ 2 each issued at premium of 2 238 per share on preferential basis.

. Termsfrights attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equily shares having a par value of ¥ 2 per share (¥ 10 per share until 30 July 2021) . Each holder of equity share is entitled to one
vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors, if any, is subject to the approval of the
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeling, except inlerim dividend, if any.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitied lo receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

. Shareholding of more than 5%:

As at 31 March 2022* As at 31 March 2021

Name of the Shareholder No. of shares % held No. of shares % held

Rajeev Samant 2,00,91,660 25.56% 36,112,621 23.96%
Verlinvest Asia Pte Ltd. 1,76,42,275 22.45% 35,28,455 23.40%
Verlinvest S.A 71,91,835 9.15% 14,38,367 9.54%
Cofintra S.A. 71,91,835 9.15% 14,38,367 9.54%
M/s. Verlinvest France S.A 65,79,565 8.37% 13,15,913 B.73%
Ruta Samant 44,77,240 5.70% 487,724 3.23%

As per records of the Company, including ils register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above
shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.
* refer note 14(h}

. Shares reserved for issue under Employee Stock Options Scheme:

As at 31 March 2022, the Company has issued 2,811,510 (31 March 2021: 166,291) employee stock options under the Employee slock option scheme of the Company to
its employees. [refer note 43]

. Bonus shares [ buy back [ shares for consideration other than cash issued during past five years:
(i) Aggregale number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contracts without payment being received in cash - Nil
FY 2020-21; 2,012 equity shares (of face value Z 10 per share) at a premium of ¥ 716.93 per share

FY 2019-20 : 2,746 equity shares (of face value ¥ 10 per share) at a premium of ¥ 921.76 per share
FY 2018-19 : 2,441and 2,118 equily shares (of face value ¥ 10 per share) at a premium of 750 and 2 840 per share respectively.

(ii) Aggregale number and class of shares allotled as fully paid up by way of bonus shares - Nil

(i) Aggregate number and class of shares bought back - Nil




Sula Vineyards Limited (Formery Sula Vineyards Private Limited)

Summary of signiflcant accounting policies and other explanatory Information to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March
2022

{Amaunt in ¥ millien, unless otharwise stated)
. Share warrants issued and converled

(i) Az &l 31 March 2021 the Company had izseed convertible aquity shares as [ollows

Financial year in which warrants Number of Exercise HNumberof Noofwarrants  No of equity

have been lssued warrants price wamrants  outsfanding as  shares to bo

oulstanding converted at 31 March s post

as at 1 April 2021 exercise of

2020 shara

winrrants by

the holder
2014-15 57,500 50% EYREZ 73,326 23528
201817 76,200 S84 = 75,200 745,200
2017-1d 1,400,400 G331 150,400 1,580,400
201812 75,200 TGl 75,200 75,200
2018-19 228070 a0 - 2,20,070 2,258,070
Total SBT.3TO 34,474 5,53,196 9 5,563,106

(i) As at 31 March 2022 |he Company has ssued converible equily shares as Iollows

Financial year in which warrants Pre share split Post share sphit®

have beon issued Mo of eogquity
— v MHSTS e b
umber o
WErne e 2 Humber of ;;Z:::::L at 31 March Bxrorcise of
oufstanding E--I'GI'E.E wa"m:;_s Exercise prica () 202z share warrants
25 at 1 April price outstanding [[e)= (a)-{L}] by the holdar
2021 (a) id}
2014-15 23,326 L4 116,630 102 116,630 -
201617 75,200 S84 A76E,000 M7 ATE, 0 -
201718 150,400 f31 752,000 126 752,000 =
2018-18 75,200 Tl 376,000 152 376,000 - E
2018-19 22907 B50 1,145,350 7o H0,591 1,094,759 1,084,708
2021-22 - - 1,808,025 ﬁP_ 1,908,025 1,908,025
Total 553,126 4,674,005 1,671,221 3,002,784 3,002,784

Areder note 14k

(i) The warrants for financial year 2014-15 have been issued on payment of 10% amount at the tima of subscription and Lhe balance 1 be paid on conversion, with & right
{o converl them mlo equivalent number of equity shares any ime belore e laltial Public Offering / Qualfied Instijufional Placamont.

(i) The warranis fram financial year 2016-17 Lo financial year 2018-19 have been issued at ¥ 10 each fully paid up al the tme of subseription and the balance to be paid
on comversian, with @ raht 1o conver them into equivalant number of equily shares any time hefore the Initial Public Offering [ Qualilied Instiutional Placement,

{iv) Duslng the year ended 21 March 2022, share warranls have been issued at Nil at the time of subscriplion. The enlire amound 1o be pald on conversion, with a right 1o
convizrl hem into egubalent number of equity sharas any fime before he Initial Public Cffering / Qualified Institutonal Placomaent.

{v} The above warrants on conversion shall rank paii pagsu In all respects with the existing fully paid up equily shares of the Company except for dividend which shall be
pro-rafa from e date of conversion.

nt The holders of the aforesaid share wamanis have exercised their dght o conver these waranis after the reporfing date ic. 3 March 2022, Since exercise of share
warrants have laken alter he reporting date, in accordance with the roguirerments of Ind AS, no adjustments are required to be made ko the financial slatements as &t and
faor the year ended 31 March 2022, including samings per shara and other accounling ralios slated elsewhere in these financial statermentz (Refer nole 48)

. Sharcholding of promaters:

As on 31 March 2022

Particulars Mame of the promolers  Na. of shares at % hiald MNo. of shares Y izl % change
tha baginning of at the end of during the year
the period® the period
Enuily shares of ¥ 2 each fully paid M. Rajeey Samant 18,063,105 235.965% 20,0491 660 25.56% 1.60%
*afler considenng impact of share split [ Refer note 14(h}]
As on 3 March204
Particutars MName of the promotars  No. of shares at % hald Mo. of shares % held % change
the baginning of at the end of during the yoar
the pericd the period
Equily shaies of # 2 each fully paid Mr, Rajeev Samant SA76447 23 70% SE12621 23 06% 017%

. Pursuant to the resoluticn passed by lhe Board of Direciors of the Company and approval of B members al the 181h Annual General Mesting of the Company held on 30
July 2071, each Equity Share of nominal face value of 10 each was sub-divided io 5 {five) Equily Sharc of % 2 each, The effective date for the said sub-division was 2
July 2021, The impact of share split of shares has been aceordingly considered for the computztion of Earning Per Share as per the requirements of Ind AS 23, Furiher,
the cutslanding number of share warrants and their respective exgreise prices have also been revised zccordingfy.




Sula Vineyards Limited {Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory Information to the standalone financial statements as al and for the year ended 31 March

2022

{Amount in  million, unless otherwise stated)

Hote 15

Bamrowings

I Mon-currant borrowings

Sacured

Term loan from banks (Fofer nole 151 below)

Unsecured

Deicrred sales lax labililes (Refer note 15.2 below)

Less: Curment maturities of long-term borrowings
Total nom-current borrowings

| Current borrowings

Secured

Loans from banks

- Warking capital demand loans (repayable on demand) |Hefer note 15.3 below]

- Current raturities of long-berm borrowsngs

- Cash credit facifilies {repayable on demand) [Reler note 15,3 balow]

Unsecured

Loans from banks:

Current maturifies of long term borrowing
Clher bank Inans [Refer note 15.4 balow]

Total current borrowings

Total barrowings {1+1)

As at Asal
31 March 2022 31 parch 2021

703.32 a1
0.37 2.33
T02.69 o324
{325.08) {A02.05)
ITEE1 591,149
1,262.50 1,671.50
324.M A00.0%
. 1.44
1,567.21 207303
0.37 1.06
180,80 2ah 76
18147 297.72
1,768.38 2.370.75
2,146,599 296104

Mate 15.1: Details of security and terms of repayment of non-current borrowings
Ag at 31 March 2022

Mllintiar o) Amount par | Rate of
Particulars installments : y Securily
installment Interest
Ouistanding

Rupee Term |1 quarterly instzllment 14.44 7.70% |Feclusive charge on immovabla assets - commercial unil premises (building),
town
Rupes Term (10 guarlely inslafimeants 1031 T.75%  |Firsipari passu chaige on all e existing and future movable property, plant and equipment ard
loan chargs on immovable assets
Rupee Term |6 quartarly installments 11.24 7.35% 10 |First pari passu on all the exizling and fufure movable propery, plant and equipment and exclusive
faan 7.40%  |chargs on immovable assels - commearcial uplt premises (building).
I!:upee Tem g cuaderty instaliments B4 "A"f::’;’%m Fixed doposil of 0,35 and subservient charge on curent assets

B E
;upcl:: Teim | guarerly installmeniz 5.1 T'?iiw Exclusive charge on immovable assels - commerclial unll premises (building).

an ;
Rupes Term |8 guarterly inslallmenls 12.50 7. 7% to  [First pari passu charge onall e exestig and fulure movable propery, plant znd equipment and
oan F.75%  |charge on immoval@e assels
[Rupee Term |10 guarery insialimants 7.50 [.75% 1o |First pari passu charga onall the exisling and fulure movable progary, plant and equipment and
Toan BU0%  [charge on immovable assels
Rupee Term (10 guadery instaliments 0,05 7.80% Lo |First pan passu charge on all the exdsting and fulure movable properly, plant and equipment and
boan BO5% | eharge on immovable azsets
Rupes Term |2 monihly inslallments 11141 T80 to  |Exclusive charge on immovable assels and Wine Industry Preduction Subsidy (WIFS] receivable
W F.75% ageing mora than 180 days
Rupoe Term |16 monthly inssaiiments GAG T20% |Exclusive charge on immaovable assets and WIPS subsidy receivable ageing mare than 180 days
foan
Rupee Term |16 quarterly instaliments 10.94 TH0%  |First par passu charge on all the existing and fulure movable properdly, plant and equipment and
foan charge on immovable assels




Sula Vinayards Limited (Formoerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policles and othar explanatory information to the standalone financlal statements as at and for the year ended 31 March
2022

{Amount in T million, unless otherwise atated)

Az at 31 March 2021

Farticulars Mumber of instalments | Amount per | Rate of =T
outstanding instalment | Interast Security

Rupee lerm: |5 quartery instaiiments 1:1_:1--31 Bos% o |Exclusive charge on immovable assats - commarcial unil praxmizes (buldag),

fozn 0.B0%

Fupes Term |14 guanerdy instaliments 10,31 B.00% [ irst parl passu charge on all the existing and future movablo propaerly, pant and eguipment and

loan chargo on ammovable assets

Fupes Term |10 quartesly installmenis 11.24 7 .65% Firs: pari passu on all the exisling and fuluwe movatde properly, plant and equipment. and exclusive

loan charge on immovable assets - commercial unit premises (building).

Rupesa Term |G guartarty inslalimonls 12.80 7.0 Fixed deposit of 0.235x and subservieni charge an curent assels

laain

Fupee Term (B guarerly installments 521 TEE% o | Lxchusive charge on immovable assets - commercial unil promises {building).

loan B.O00%

Rupse Term (12 quarlely instabments 12.50 B.65% | Firsl parni passu charge on all the existling and fulre movable property. plant and equipmenl and

loam chargs on immovable assels

Rupsse Term |14 quarlerly instafiments 7.0 8% Firsl pari passu charge on all the existing and future movable property, plant and equipment and

lovam charge on immovable assois

Rupae Term (14 guartaly instalimeants E.28 B.05% | First pari passu charge on all the existing and filure movahla proparty, plant and equipment and

loan charge on immovable assols

Rupss Term [ 18 monthly inslalments 11.11 TI5% Exclusive charge on mmovable assels and WIPS subsidy receivable ageing more than 180 days

loan

Mota 15.2; Delered sales 1ax loan is interest free and repayable i remaining 1 year a5 at 31 March 2022

Mote 15.3: Working capital demand loans and cash credit facilifies are repayatide on demand, They carry interest rate ranging from 7.20% to 12.00% (31 March 2021
7.50% o 11.00%) 2nd are securad by all exisling and future curment assets. movable and immovable properly, plant and equipment,

Mote 15.4: Dther Bank loans carmy inlerast ranging from 7.20% 1o 7.30% p.a, (31 March 2021: 7.20% 10 7.30%) and aro repayable wilhin 1 year, Qther bank Inans includes
short-barm loan of Nl (31 March 2024; T 110,00 million) carmydng an inferost rate of Ml (3 March #2021 9.25%) and are repayable within 180 days. Theso have been fully
repaid during tha year.

Hote 15.5: Net dobt recenciliation

An analysis of net debt and the movement in not debl for the years ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 is as follows!

Aa at Az at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{A) Cash and cash eguivalenls [24.44) (404.59)
{B) Mon-curranl borrowings R 591.19
{C}) Current borrowings 1,768.38 2,370.75
{0 Inleresl payable 12.78 16,66
Mat debt (E ) = (A-B-C-D) 2,065.32 27341
Other assets Liabilities from financing activities Total
Cash and cash  Mon-current Current Interast (E }={A-B-C-D)
aquivalonts borrowings barrowings payable
() (B} <) e
Met debt as at 1 April 2020 (350.92) 788,25 27261 29.40 3,249,534
Met increase in cash and cash eguivalents {53.27) - - - (53.27)
Proceeds from long-term bomowings - 217.52 - E 21752
Repaymenl of leng-teem borrowings - {414 58) - - [414.58)
Mel repayment of shar-lerm bomewings - - {411.86) - [411.88)
Inleresl expense - - - 29299 202099
Inlerast paid - - & (A06.73) [306.73)
Met debt as at 31 March 2021 {404.19) 591,19 2370.75 1566 257341
Met decrease in cash and cash cguivalenis A09.75 - - - 308.75
Procesds from long-lorm boosengs - 189.35 - - 189,35
Repaymenl of long-lerm borowings = {101.53) = - 401,93
Met repayment of shorl-erm homowings * F (G02.37) 3 (B2.37)
Inlerest expenzse g £ 2 18849 1B8.59
frilerast paid 3 . 7 (191.47) (181.47)

Mot debt as at 31 March 2022 {84.44) 37861 1,766.38 1278 2,065.32




Sula Vineyards Limited {Formearly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and aiher explanatory information to the standalone financial statements as 2t and for the year ended 31 March
2022

{Amount in ¥ million, unless otherwise stated)

Mot 15.6: Reconciliations of stock stafement submitied to banks with books of accounts whare borrowings have boen availed bazed on security of current
assets

Amount as Amining
Quarter MName of Bank Particulars per boaks of RN SR Of Reason for material variances
ended quarterly returnd difference
accounts
atatement
March 2071 HDFG Bank Imvantory 1,3&;‘1—3‘) 1,351.41 [2.41) The differance is due io lhe subamssions 1o the
Kotak Mshindra Bank Banks were made before financial roporling
Saraswat Bank glosUre process
Sals Bank Trade Receivablos 1.0098.41 1,407.00 Af.GA The submissions W e Banks were made before
Yies Bank financial reporiing closure process
June 2021 HOFG Bank Inventary 1.306.12 1,304,472 [2.00) The difierance i duc lo the suomissions (o the
Kolak Mahindra Bank Banks were made before financial repoding
Saraswal Bank chasuie process
Az Bank Trada Receivables 941.45 and.an {7.16) The difference is due o the suhmiszions to the
Yes Bank Banks wera made belore financal  reporting
closure process
Spplomber HOFC Bank Invaniory 149790 1,163.02 [34.88} The diflerence is due ko the submissions to the
202 Katak Mahindra Bank Banks were made belore linanclal  reporing
Sarazwal Bank closure process
Axiz Bank Trado Reoaivalbles 1,402,221 1.099.06 [3.18) The difference is due 1o the submissions io the
Yes Bank Bankz wore made  before financial repariing
closure process
December  HOFC Bank Inwerilory 915,94 42669 974 The dilference & due 1o the submissicns o the
2021 Kotak Mahindra Bank Banks were made before financial  reporting
Caraswat Bank closure process
Axiz Bank Trade Receivablas 1.514.11 1,515.00 .89 The difference iz due to the submissions lo the
Yos Bank Banks were made before finzncial  repesting
closure procoss
March 2022 HDFC Bank lewentary 1.504.51 1.508.51 -
Koiak Mahindra Bank
Saraswal Bank Trade Receivables i5az 90502 -
Huis Gank
o5 Bank

Mote: For the guarlers ended 30 June 2020, 30 September 2020, 31 Docomber 2020; the Company submitted quartery raports 1o banks bascd on internal operational
feports since the companies wars nol required o prepare financial statements on a quarerly basis. Accordingly, e managerment has caried out reconciliztion of the
slatements submitted to banks with the books of accounis lor e year anded 31 March 2021,

MNote 16
Hon-current

Currenl

Lease liabilifias

Moba | Feler nole 32 for Ind AS 1168 Leazes and the related disclosures,

Total Lease labilitles

Naote 17

Non-current

Provisions

Provision for empleyer banefits [Refer nole 33)

- Graluity

Tolal non-current provisions

Current

Mrovision for employee benelils {Refes nole 33)

- Garatuity

Compensated absenoes
Total current provisions

Total provisions

As at

Az at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

6237 100,06
47,20 IB.05
10057 12901
19,07 99.61
10.07 9061
£.00 600
20,70 G.00
26.70 1208
4577 19258




Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other cxplanatery information to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March

2022

{Amaunt in ¥ million, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 18 Income tax liabilities (net)

i, The following table provide the details of income tax liabilitics and tax assets:
a) Income tax Babilities

b Ingoame lax assels

Met Income tax labilities

ii. The gross movement In the current income tax (assets)liabilitics is as follows:

Net current Income fax liability! (assats) at the beginning
Ineome refund received [ {tax paid} [net]

Currand lax expense

Intergst on tax payabla

Net current Income tax liability at the end

jii. Income tax expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss comprises:

Current tax exponsos

Deferred tax credit

Income lax expenses [net] in Statement of Profit and Loss
Deforred Lax cradil In elber comprehensive Income

Incomea tax axpansoes [net]

Iw. A reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax

rate to the profit | (loss) before income taxes Iz as below:

Praofil fiLoss) before income tax
Applicable income Lax rate

Computed expected tax expanse! [cradit)

Effect of expenses thal ase nat deductible for determining taxable profils
Effact of deferred tax assol wrillen-off

Eslier year tax adjustments (currant tax and doferrod fax)
Income tax expense charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss

Il. Components of deferred incoms tax assets and llabllitles arizing on account of temporary differences are:

{a) Deferred tax liabilltles

As at

A at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

313.05 14526
(20852} {132.56)
14.53 12.70
Year ended Yevar endoed
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
12.70 (TETA)
{165.95) G7.70
16512 2260
246 1,48
14.53 1470
Year onded Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
16512 2E2B0
£.85 (12.06)
17208 3.54
- [0.94)
173.93 260
Year ended Yoar ended
31 Merch 2022 31 March 2021
662.55 (2.79)
25.17% PhATY
166.76 (0.70]
1.90 215
5.32 -
173.098 1.45
= Z:IEI{I
173.98 3.54
Az at Haal

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

- Timing difference on tangihle and intangible assets depraciation and amorlisalion 27438 275,76
274.3E 275,74
() Deferred lax assets
- Expenses allowable on payment basis 40,39 AT.ET
- Impairment aflowable on inanclals assets 28.75 27.13
- Othars 30.63 41,01
105.77 116.01
Total deferred tax liabilities (nat) 168.61 15975
vl. Movement in compenents of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are as follows:
Timing
difference on Exjidiies
tangibbe and Unused Tax
Intangible allmaTE m: Lk Others Tatal
EEE payment basls
depreciation
(#) (B) () (o) (E}=(AHB)HC)-
(o}
Aaat 1 April 2020 305,34 41.58 21.70 G231 179.75
Charged /! (credited)
- 1o profit ar loss {29.50) 5,35 543 (21.30) (19,08
1 elier comprabensive incoms - 0.94 - - [0.94)
At 31 March 2021 275,76 4787 2713 41.01 159.75
Charged / [credited )
- {0 prodii or loss [1.3R) _(T.AE) 1.6 (4.38) 58T
At 31 March 2022 /“;_' 274,38 40.39 28.75 36,63 168.61




Sila Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)

Summany of slanificant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March

2022

{Amount in ¥ million, unless otherwise stated)

Ag oat Fus al
31 March 2022 31 harch 2021
Hote 18 Trade payables
lotal cutstanding dues of micro erderprses and simall enterprizes (Refer note 10.2) 345 914
Tolal oulslanding dies of credifers other than micro, small and mediem enterprizes 631.25 508,30
Total trade payablas 6356.20 L17AT
Mote 19.1 : Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally seilled s per the payment terms stated in the contract.
MNote 19.2 - Duaes Ly micre, small and medium enterprises 1o the axlent information available with the Company iz given below:
{a) The principal amount and the interast due therean remaining unpaid to supplier as al the end of year
- Principal amount due Lo micre and small enterprises 3.85 419
- Inferest dus 0.09* n.nz2
{8]) The amourt of inlorest pakd by the buyer in terms of seclion 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of
the payment mada fo the supplicr beyond the appointed day during each accounting year 7
{e) The amount of interest due and payahblie for the pariod of delay in making payment (which have been paid but ’
beyond the appainted day during e year) but without adding the interest specifiod under e MSMED Act, 2006 031 065
{d} Tha ameount of inleresl acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of each acceunting year, 0.3 0ET
(&) The amount of furlher interest remaining due and payabla even in ihe succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues as abowe are actually paid to the small enterprise for the puwposs of disalowance as s deductible 2.28 1.98
expenditure undar seclion 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006
* Represands loss than 3 10,000
Note 19.3: Trade Payable ageing schedul
As at 31 March 2022 Chutstanding from following period from the transaction dqt.e
J Unbilled Less than one More than 3
Particul <2 Yo - Total
articulars Mot due Hitis e 1-2 Yoars 2-3 years years @
{iy MSME = Z 385 2 = 3.85
(i) Others - 184.02 A38.40 294 1.73 3.85 B354
{iliy Dispured duss- MSME : - § 3 - :
{iv) Dizputed duas- Others - - - 18 0.3 0.31
- 164.02 442,35 204 1.0 .08 635.20
As at 31 March 2029
Quistanding from following period from the transaclion date I
Particulars Mot dus unbiee eer han ong 1-2 Yaars 23 yoars sl iln i Total
Dugs yiar VRIS
{iY MSME = ; 5,18 ) z 7 9,10
(i) Others - 93.45 390.01 1037 A.EG 9.60 S08.1
{iiF) Disputed dises- MSME . 5 3 - _ N )
{iv) Dispuled duas- Others - - - .18 .06 0.13 0,37
- 93,45 399,20 10.55 464 9.73 517.57
Ag at s oal

Note 20 Other current financial lNabllitles

Interast accrued and dus
Interest accrued bul nol duwe
Hhers
- Liahility for capilal goods
- Beourity doposils
- Dwe bo employees
Tolal other current financial linbilitics

Ciker financial liablliles carried at amorized cosl
(beer financial liabililes carded at FWTPL

Note 21 Cther current lHabilities
Advance from customears
Statulory dues payalbis

Tolal other Habilities

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

2.29 1.98
12.78 1566
10.58 35.00
31.63 .38
57.30 61.11
123,58 143.13
12358 14313

11,88 10.38
162.56 1356.90
174.44 14026




Sula Vineyards Limited {Formerly Sula Vinoyards Private Limited)
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone financial statements as at and for the
year ended 31 March 2022

{Amount in ¥ millien, unless otherwise stated)
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Mote 22  Revenue from operations

{a) Sale of products (including excise duly) 3,491.92 2.4919.44
(b} Sale of services 335.29 181.38
() Other operating revenues 366,97 278.49
Total revenue from operations 4,194.18 3,379,531

Note 22 .1: Information of disaggregated revenue as per Ind A5 115

{A) Based on nature of product or service:

{a) Sale of products

- Manuflactsred goods 3,359.32 271641

- Traded goods 132 60 202.63

3,491.92 2,019.44

(b} Sale of services 335.29 181.38
(o) Other operating revenuos

- Government grant 343.53 273.42

- Provisions! balances no longer required written back {net) 18.34 3.25

- Others 5.10 1.82

366.97 278,49

Total revenue from operations 4,194.18 3,370.31

(B} Based on timing of revenue recognition:
Procucts transferred at a point of Uime: 3,481.92 2.819.44
Services transforred at a point of time 335.29 181,38

The amounts receivable from customers bocome due after expiry of credil period which on an average ranges between 30-30 days. Thare is no
significant financing component in any transaction with the customers, The Company doss not have any remaining performance obligation as
contracts entered for sale of goods are for a shorter durafion. All contracts entered by the Company are fixed-price contracts. Furlher, the
Company's enfire business falls under one oparational segment of ‘'manufacture, purchase and sala of alcoholic beverages (Refer note 46).

Reconclliation of revenue from operations with contract price as required by Ind AS 115

Conlract prica 4,689.04 3,859.07
Less: lkems offsel against revenue from customers (B61.83) (759.15)
3,827.21 3,100.82

Note 22.2: The following lable gives details in respect of contract revenues generatad from the top customer and lop 5 cuslomers

Revenue from top customer G09.G6 53994
Revanue from top five customers 1,623.96 1,280.80

For the year endod 31 March 2022 one(1) [31 March 2021: one (1)] customer individually acoounted for more than 10% of the total revenue.

MNote 23 Other income

{a} Interest income

- on financial assets carried at amorlised cost 34.95 736
-on bank deposits 1.53 253
- income 1ax refund - 4,28
- on others 2.64 2.81
39,12 46,598

(b} Other non-operating income:
- Insurance claim 247 1.05
- Exchange gain {net) - 1.86
- Renl income 3.36 2.64
- Prodit on disposalf cancellation of leas ' 0.40 2.3
- Miscellaneous income 0,45 2.82
6.68 10,78
Total other income 45.80 577G




Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone financial statements as at and for the

year ended 31 March 2022
{Amount in ¥ million, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 24  Cost of materials consumed
(a) Stock at beginning of the year

- Raw materials

- Packing materials

(b} Add: Purchases
- Raw materials
- Packing materials

{c) Less: Stock al the and of the year
- Raw materials
- Packing materials

{d} Total cost of materials consumed (a+b-c)
- Raw malerials
- Packing materials

Total cost of materials consumed

Mote 25  Changes In inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade

{a) Opening stock
- Finished goods
- Work-in-progress
- Slock-in-tradea

(o) Closing stock
- Finizshed goods
- Work-in-progress
- Sfock-in-tradea

{c) Increase / (decreasze) In excise duty on finished goods

Tatal changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade (a-b+c)

MNote 26 Employee benefils axpense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Coniribution to provident and other fund (Refer note 33)
Gratully (Refar note 33)

Share based payment expenses

Staff welfare
Total employee benefits expanse

Mote 27 Selling, distribution and marketing expenses
Sales promofion cxpenses

Commission expenses

Marketing expenses

Total Selling, distribution and marketing expenses

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

57.94 i, B
57.04 6689
671.12 380.10
402.94 264,37
1,074.06 B54.47
72.21 57.04
72.21 57.94
671.12 390.10
388,67 273.32
1,059.79 66342
150.87 206.22
1,045.99 1,088,568
71.79 18144
1,268.65 1.476.22
211.33 150.87
1,14517 1,045.99
38.88 71.7%
1,395.38 1,268.65
14.56 (22.02)
{112.17) 185.55
H66.82 495,80
17.42 11.80
18.98 17.58
18.61 4,10
16.50 9,55
638,33 535.83
305.39 319.77
70.95 82,86
AT.B4 41.04
42418 444 57




Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone financial statements as at and for the

year ended 31 March 2022
(Amount in ¥ million, unless otherwize stated)

Mote 28  Other expenses

Consumables, chemicals, slores and spares consumed
Power and fucl

Fepairs and maintenance:

- Building

- Others

Rates and faxes

Insurance

Security charges

Travelling and conveyancs

Rent {Refer note 38)

Payment 1o auditors:

- statutony audit fees

- limited review and tax audil fees

- oiher services

- reimbursemeanl of axpenscs

Legal and professional zes

Diractar sitting fees (Refer note 35)

Festauran! expansos

Resort mainienance axpenses

Sulafost expenses

Freight and handling charges

Sundry balances written off

Impairment allowance on financial assets (refer notes & and 10)
Impairment allowance on assels classified as hold for sale (Refer note 13.2)
Exchangeo loss (net)

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net) (Refer note 13.2)
Impairmeant Loss on assets classified as held for sale
Write off of property,plant and equipment

Corporate social responsibility expenses (Relar nota 42)
Printing, stationary. postage and lelephone expensos
Office expense

Mizcellaneous expenses

Total other expenses

Mote 29 Finance cosls
Interest on:

- lpan from banks

- lgase lizbilitias {Rofor note 38)
- cash credil facilities

= income tax

- athors

Oiher bomowing costs
Total finance costs

Mote 300 Depreciation and amortisation expenso
Depreclation on tangible assets (Refer nole 3)
Depreciation on right-of-use assets (Refer note 3A4)
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refor note 4)

Total depreciation and amortisation expense

Mote 301 Exceptional item
Impairment loss on asset classified as held for sale (Refer nole 13.1)

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

06.95 64.31
74.18 51.63
11,18 f.50
66.29 53,73
103.42 81.45
9.24 B8.63
16.51 13.21
34.06 27.00
5.36 19.40
271 2 71
1.06 1.06
0.16 0.16
0.04 0.04
35,33 51,41
4.06 2.73
54.46 27.46
46,51 28.74
£1.33 67.06
46.62 1.67
- 11.80

0.83 =
17.52 29.41
B.82 4.15
14.83 .94
17.86 10,79
35.98 2876
785.41 0583
182.68 273,93
11.45 14.69
3.01 12.93
2.66 117
2.90 4,06
202.70 307.68
10.55 1402
213.25 a22 60
176.69 194.68
44,20 49 85
3.25 9.11
22414 253,64
. 23.75

23.75




Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sulfa Vineyards Private Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone financial stataments as al and for the year ended
31 March 2022

{Amount in F million, unless otherwise statod)

Year ended Year andod
Mote 31 Eamnings/ (loss) per share (EPS) 21 March 2022 31 March 2021
Basic and diluted EPS
A, Profit! (Loss) computation for basic sarmings per share of 2 each
Met Profit (Loss) as per the Statemenl of Prafil and Loss available for equity shareholders (3 millicn) 438.57 {6.33)
B, Waighted svarage number of equity shares for EPS compulation (Mos) 767,771,141 752,75, /64
Marminzl Valus 2 )
C. EPS - Basic EPS (7)) 6.36 (0.08)
- Difuted EPS () 6.36 (0.0}

MNotas:

{@) Pursuant to the approval of the members at the 18th Annual General Mesling of the Company held on 30 July 2021 1o the sub-division of the Cquity
Shares of the Company, cach Equity Share of nominal face value of ¥ 10 each was sub-divided la 5 (liva) Equily Share of T 2 each, The effecliva date far
the said sub-division was 30 July 2021. Consequent to the shara splil, samings per share for the comparalive pariod has boon retrospectively adjusted.

{B) The options granled lo employees undesr employee slock oplions and the share warrants issuad have an anti dilulive effect on eamings per share, basad
on the present conditions prevalenl, and hance have not been considered in tha dalermination of diluted eamings per share,

Mote 32 Contingent liabilitles and commitments

As at As at
A. Contingent liabilities 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
i} Guaranieas issuad by banks on behalf of the Company 148.26 13663
i} Income tax liability thal may artse In respect of which the Company is in appeal o 46,80
il Stamp duty liability that may anse in respect of matter for which the Company is in appeal 15.41 5.4
iv) Corporate guarantee given on behall of subsidiary 17462 75.04
w) Oihers 1.01 1.0

wi) Provident Fund:
Basad on the judgement by the Henorable Supreme Court dated 28 February 2019, past providant fund liability, is not determinable al presenl, in view of
uncertainty an lhe applicability of the judgement to the Company with respect to timing and the components of itz compensation structure, In abseancs of
further clarification, the Company has been legally advised to awail lurher developments in this matter to reasanably assess tha implications on its financial
statements, if any.

Mata:
It is not praclicable for the Company to estimate the limings of cash cutflows, if any, in respect of fhe above panding resolution of the respeciive procasdings.
The Company does nol axpect any reimbursements in respecl of the above contingent liabiliies. Fulure cash oulllows in respect of the above are

determinable only on recsipl of judgments | decisions pending with various forums! authorities. The Company does nol expecl any outflow of economic
rascUurces In respect of the above and theralore no provision is made in respect thareof.

E. Commitments
Capital commitment (net of advances) 14.13 4 66




Sula Vineyards Limited (Fermerly Sula Vineyards Private Limitad)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory informatlon to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31

March 2022
{Amount in ¥ milllon, uniess atherwise stated)

Mote 33 Disclosura relating to employes benefits as per Ind AS 19 ‘Employes Beneflts'

| Defined benefit obligations - Gratuity (funded)

The graduity plan is gaverned by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1977 under which an employes who has compleled five years of senvice is enfitled to specific

benefits. Tha level of benefils provided depends on the member's lenoth of servica and salary al retirement age.

a) Changes in defined bencfit ohlgations

Present valua of the obligation as at the beginning of the year

Current zervice cost

Past service cost

Inberest cost

Femeasuremenls - Net actuarial losses

Benefits paid

Liability assumed an accoun] of group ransfer

Present value of the obligation as at the end of the year

k) Changes in fair value of plan assets of the gratulty plan
Plan assets at the beginning of the perlod
Interesl income
Contribution by employer
Benefits paid
Remezsuremenls - Mel actuarial gain
Fair value of the plan assets at the end of the year

¢) Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Interest cosl (net)
Current service cost

d} Remeasurement losses recognised in OCI

Remeasuremeant - Met actuarial losses on defined benefit obligations

Remezasurement - Mel acluarial gain on planned assets
Total

&) Actuarial assumplicns
Dizcount rala

Salary escalation rate

Morality rate

Adirition rate :

- For ages 21-30 years
- Far ages 31-40 years
- Farages 41-50 years
- For ages 51-57 vears

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

119,78 108.02
12.58 12,18
0.87 .40
1.61 378
(3.98) (10.17)
{0.43)

136.86 119.78
14.17 22.08
0.47 1.00
100.16 118
{3.98) {10.18)
097 0.06
111.79 1417
6.40 5.40
12.58 12,18
18.98 17.58
1.61 3478
{0.97) {0.06)
.64 a7z

31 March 2022

G.90%
Staff: 12%,

Director: 0.00%

Indlan Assured Lives

Mortality
(201 2-2014)

24.00% p.a,
12.00% p.a.
14.00% p.a.
24.00% p.a.

31 March 2021
6.25%

Staff: 1%, Direclor:
0.00% untll year 2
Inclusive, then 11%

Indian Assurad
Lives Mortalily
[2012-2014)

24.00% p.a.
12.00% pa.
14.00% p.a.
24.00% p.a,

The eslimates of fulure salary Increases, considered in acluarial valualion, lake account of inflation, seniority, promotion and clher relevant faclers, such as

supply and demand in the employment market.
¥ Investment details of plan assets

Major Categories of Plan Assets:
Insurer managead finds

31 March 2022

100%

31 March 2021
100%:



Sula Vineyards Limited {Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory Information to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31
March 2022

(Amount in ¥ million, unless otherwise stated)

The Gratuity Scheme is invested in a New Group Gratuily Cash Accumulalion Plan Policy offered by Lite Insurance Corpoeation {LIC) and Aditya Birla Sun
Lifa Insurance Company Limited. The information an the allocation of the fund into major assel classes and expected retum on each major assel ara nol
readily available, The expestad rale of relurn on plan assets is hased on markel axpeclalions, al the beginning of the perind, for relurns over tha entine life of
the related ohligation.

g} Quantities sensltivity analysis for significant assumption is as below:

Sensilivily for significant actuarial assumplions is computed by vandng one actuarial sssumplion used for the valuation of the dafined hanefil obfigation,
keeping all other actuarial assumplions constant. The significant actuarial assumplions are discounl rale and salary escalation rate.

Year ended Year endead
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

0.50% Increase

i. Discoun rate {3.95) [3.43)

ii. Salary aszcalation rate 3 328
0.50% decrease

i. Discounl rale 4.16 62

ii. Salary escalation rate [3.23) (3.147)

The sensitivity analysis presenied abeve may not be reprezentafive of tha aclual charge In the defined benefit obliigafion as il i unlikely that the change in
assumplion would ooour in iselalion of one another as the assumplions may be correlated.

As at As at
3 March 2022 31 March 2021
h) Maturity analysis of deflned benefit obligation
Wilhin Lhe next 12 months 21.52 1925
Between 2 and 5 years 73.01 65.68
Beyond 5 years 130.53 100.58
Total expected payments 22506 185.85

I Defined contribufion plans
The Company also has cerlain defined contribution plans. The conlribulions are made o registersd provident fund, Employees Slate Insurance Corporation
ESICY) administered by the Government. The obligation of the Company is limied fo the =mound contributed and it has no further confractuzl nor any
constructive obligation. The sxpanse recognised during the year towards dafined conlribulicn plans are as follows.

Year ended Year ended
M March 2022 31 March 20E1
a) The Company has racognised the follewing amounts in tha Statlement of Profit and Loss for the year:
(i} Contribution 1o provident fund T6.67 10.56
(it} Contribution to ESIC 0.75 1.24
17.42 11,80

b} The leave abligations cover the Company's liability for sick and priviiege leaves. The amaunt of provision wilh respect 1o leave obligation is ¥ 20.70 million (31
tarch 2021 + F 6.95 million) is presentad as currenl, since the Company does not hawve an unconditional right to defer setfiement for any of these cbligations.
Howeaver, hased on past experience, lhe Company does not expect all employaes o lake the full amount of accrued leave or require payment within the next
17 months. Tha expense recognised during the year lowards leave eicashment is T 14.55 million [31 March 2021 @ % (5.67) millicn]

As at As al
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Il Current! non-current classification
a) Gratuity
Currenl 6.00 B.00
Men-curent 19.07 09.61
2507 105.61

b} Compensated absences

Currant 20070 B.58
20.T0 6.58




Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatery information to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year
ended 31 March 2022

(Amount in ¥ million, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 34 Financial instruments
The fair value of the financial assels ana includaed at amounts at which the instruments could be exchangad in a current transaction between willing parties
olher han in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair valus;

(a} Fair valus of cash and sher-term deposits, trada and other short-term receivablas, trade payables, other currant llabilitics, approximate their carrying
armounts largaly doe o the short-term maturities of these instrumeaniz.

(b} Financial instruments with fixed and variable interest rates arc cvaluated by the Company based on parameters such as inlerest rates and individusl
cradit warthiness of the counterparty. Based on this evaluation, allowances are laken Lo account for the expected losses of these receivables.

Financial instruments by category

The carrying value s Tair value of financial instruments by categories as at 31 March 2022 ane as follows:

Particulars Refer note  Amortised Financial assets |  Financial assets | Total carrying
cost liabllitias at fair value liabilities at fair value
through profit or  value through QCI
foss

_AEEEIE:

Investments in aquity shares A - = 0.03 .03
Loans [+ 310,97 - - 31047
Other financial asseis 7 928,89 - - 928,89
Trade receivables 10 905.92 - - 905.92
Cash and cash egquivalents " 94.44 - - 94,44
Bank balances other than cash and cagh equivalents 12 5314 - - 5314
Liahilitics:

Borrowings 15 2,146,959 - - 2.146.99
Lease labililies 16 109.57 - - 109.657
Trade payables 18 635,20 - - 63520
Other financial fizhilitias 20 123.58 . - 123 58

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by calegores as at 31 March 2021 were as follows:

Particulars Refer note  Amortisoed Financial assefs/ Financial assets [ Total Eﬁrﬁring
cost liabilities at fair value liabilities at fair value
through profit or  wvalue through OCI
loss
Assets:
Invastments in equily shares 54 = - 0.03 0.03
Loans 3] 258.84 - - 258.84
her financlal assets I 703.85 - - TO3.85
Trade receivables 10 1, 005841 - - 1,0498.41
Crash and cash eguivalents 11 404.19 - - 404.19
Bank balances other than cash and cash eguivalonis 12 48.00 - - 489,00
Liabilities:
Borrowings 15 2.961.94 - . 2,961.94
Lease liabiliias 16 138.01 - = 139.01
Trade payables 19 817.57 = = 517.57
Other financial liabilities 20 14313 - - 143,13

Fair wvalue hierarchy

Lewel 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusied) in active markets for identical assets or liabilties

Level 2 - Inpuls other than guoled prices included within Level 1 that are ohservable for the asset or Rability, either directly {i.e. as prices) or indirecily (i.e.
derived from prices)

Lewvel 2 - Inpuis for the assets or lizbililies that are not based on observable market data (unobsorvable inputs)

The following table presents fair valee blerarchy of agsets and liabilities measured st fair value on a recuring basis as at:

Particulars ) 31 March 2022 k3 inﬂ:_a;':_:f_l 2021
Leval 1 Lewvel 2 Level 3 Leval1 Level 2 Level 3

Aszsets

Irwaslmenls in cquity shares - - .03




Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Summary of slgnificant accounting policies and othar explanatory information to the standalone financial statements as at and
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MNotae 35 Disclosure in accordance with Ind AS 24 Related Party Disclosures

A, Wames of related parties and nature of relationship
Company's holding as at (%)
Mame of the entity 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

{a) Holding Company (having control over the entity)
Varlinvest Group SA

(b} Subsidiary company

Artisan Spirits Private Limited 100 100
Progressive Moobey Distributors Private Limited {41 April 2027) - 51
Sula International Limitad 100 100
{c) Entities under common control (with whom transactions have taken place during the year or in the previous year)
Werdinvest Asia Pte Lid.
Verinvest 5.4
Cofintra 5.4,
Werdinvasl France 5.4
(d) Keymanagement personnel (KMP)
Rajesy Samant Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director
Chetan Dasal Chairrman and Independent Director
Micholas Peler ¥ Cator Director (resigned w.e . 03 December 2020}
Decpak Shahdapuri Diraclor resigned weef. 1 July 2021)
Hank Uberoi Director (resigned w.ef. 1 July 2021)
J. A Moos Director (resigned w.e.f. 14 May 2020)
Kerry Damskey Director {resigned w.a f. 29 September 2021)
Alok Wajpoyi Independont Director {appointed w.ef. 2 December 2020)
Shagun Twari Diractor {resipnad w.ed § Oclober 2021)
Arjun Anand Independent Director
Gayalr Yadav Diractor (appointed w.et. 14 May 2020 and resigned woe f. 19 July 2020}
Robarto ltalia Diractor (appointed wef. 15 Juby 2021}
Sangeeta Pendurkar Independent Director (appointed w.e.f. 158 Decamber 2021}
Bittu Varghaze® Chiet Financial Officer
Fuchi Sathe* Company Secrelary
Chaltanya Rathi* Chief Qperating Officer
{e) Relatives of Key Management Personnel:
Sulsbha Samant Mother of Rajeesy Samant
Bharat Samant Bralher of Rajesy Samant
Daisy Damskey Wife of Kerry Damskey
Surash Samant Father of Rajeey Samant

(A Entity in which relative of Key Management Parsonnel have contral;
Summerlab Privato Limited Margarita Andronova, Direclor (wife of Managing Director)

* Pursuant to fhe board meeting of the Holding Company held an 23 Fobruary 2022, Chaitanya Rathi, Biftu Varghese and Ruchi Sathe have been designated

as koy managerial personnel. Therefore, anly iransactions entered after 23 February 2022 have been disclosed.

E. Nature of Transactions

Transactions with rolated parties: Year ended Year ended

31 March 2022 41 March

Sale of products

2021

Progressive Alcobev Distributors Private Limited - 153.63

Arlisan Spiiils Private Limited 39.61 6428

Rajaeyv Samant 0.43 014

Suresh Samant 0.34 0.19

Bharzat Samanl - 0.04
40.38 218.28

Inferest incoma

Arfisan Spirts Private Limited 20.51 23.88

Sula International Limited 019 =
20.70 23.88

Interest expense

Rajcey Samant 0.05 -

Rent income

Arisan Spirits Private Limited 0.39 0.24




Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone financial statements as at and
for the year anded 31 March 2022

{Amount in F milllen, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year anded
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Purchase of Raw materials

Artizan Spirts Private Limited 4,62 -
Fajesy Samant 5.01 6.74
Surceh Samant 4.98 5.58
Sulabha Samant 0.03 047
Bharat Samanl 1.40 1.62
) 16.04 14.41

Purchase of finished goods

Artisan Spirits Private Limiled 44.04 9.73
Progressive Alcobev Distriibutors Private Limited = 0.22
44.04 9.05

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Rajesv Samant 166.93 55.00

Suresh Samant 23.65 =

Artisan Spinits Private Limited 0.01 —, 081
190.59 55891

Sale of property, plant and eguipment
Artizan Spirits Private Limited 6.74 -

Conversion of warrants into equity shares
Rajecv Samant 216.45 17.38

Director's siiting fees paid/payable

Despak Shahdadpuri - 015
Karry Damskey 0.07 115
4. A Moos - 0.04
Hank Uberai - 0.15
Micholas Peter ¥ Calor - 0.c8
Arjun Anand 0.89 (.30
Chetan Desai 1.30 0.74
Alok Vajpeyi 1.20 060
Ashit Lilani - 0.28
Gayatr Yadav - (.04
Shagun Tiwari 0.30 0.20
Sangeeta Paendurkar 0.30 .
4.06 273

Reimbursament of expenses
Arlizan Spirits Private Limited 173.76 T76.43

Repayment of Lease Liability

Rajeav Samant 2,00 246
Suresh Samant 1.48 216
349 4.5

Commission expense
Chetan Desai 1.20 =

Legal and professional expenses
Summerlab Private Limited = 1.10

Dividend

Rajeay Samant 4823 -
Suresh Samant 1.69 =
Kerry Damskey 0.09 =
Sulabha Samani 374 -
Varlinvest Asia 4411 -
Verlinvest SA 17.98 =
“erlinvest France 16.45 .
Cofinlra SA "/:: 17.98 -
Daisy Damskey 0.85 =
Sangeeta Pendurkar 0.2 3

151.53 =




Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone financial statements as at and
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Year ended
31 March 2022
Loan taken
Rajoov Samant 20.00

Loan taken repaid

Year ended
31 March 2024

Rajesv Samanl 20.00 -
Lean given
Arlisan Spirts Private Limited 504,28 517.26
Sula International Limited o 0.25 207
' ' 504.53 51943
Repayment of loan
Artizan Spiritz Private Limited 458.97 555.60
Sula International Limited - 0,53
458.97 658,13
Receipt of intarest on loan
Artisan Spirits Private Limitad 40.54 47.83
40.54 4763
Compensation o key managerial person (including share based payments)®
Rajooy Samant 2827 30.00
Chaitanya Rathi 2.21 -
Biltu Warghoesa 0.98 =
Fuchi Sathe 0.20 -
31.66 3000
Corporate guarantee given on behalf of subsidiary
Autisan Spirits Private Limited 15857 75.04
) Qutstanding balances: As at Az al

31 March 2022

Trade payables

31 March 2021

Rajesv Samant 1.46 6.54

Suresh Samant 213 538

Sulabha Samant 0.01 0.47

Bharat Samant 0.49 1.58

Chetan Desai 1.08 -
517 13.97

Trade receivablas T

Progressive Aleobey Dislibutors Private Limited - 56,69

Meoney received agalnst share warrants

Rajoay Samant 219 §.49

Loan given outstanding

Arfizan Spirits Private Limited 279.70 234,39

Frogressive Aleobey Distibutors Private Limited - 0,25

Sula Imemational Limited*? 2.59 222

282.29 236.86

** During the current year, loan givan 1o Sula Intemational has been fully provided (Rafer note §).

Interest accrucd

Artisan Spirils Privato Limited - 2208

Compensation to key managerial person (including share based payments)*

Rajesv Samant 1.76 1.24

Chaitanya Rathi 2.76 -

Bittu Yarghese 1.81 -

Ruchi Sathe 0.34 -
6.67 1.24

Corporate guarantes given on behalf of subsidiary

Artizan Spirits Private Limited 174.63 704
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Maote 36 Financial risk management objectives and policias

The Company's activities expose it 1o & variety of financisl risks: markel sk, crodit rsk and liquidity risk, The Company's focus is to foreses the
unprediclability of inancial markets and seek to minimize potential adversa alfacls onils financial performance.

Market risk

Markel risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will Mucluate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises three types ol risk: inlerest rala risk, curency risk and other price rsk, such as equily price risk. Major inancial instruments affected by market
risk includes loans and borrowings.

. Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk hal tha f&ir value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in markel interest rates. The
Company’s exposure to fhe risk of changes in markel inlerest rates relates primarily to the Company’s total debt ohiigations with loating inleras! rales.

Interest rate sensifivity
The follawing table demonsirales the sonsitivity to a reasonably possible change in interast rates on thal portion of lsans and borrowings affected. With all
ather variables hald consiant, the Company's profitiLoss) before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

_As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2029
0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50%
incraasa decrease incraase decraase
Impact on profit / loss before tax 10.73 (10.73) 14.80 {14.80)

Tha azsumed movement in basis points for the inleres! raie sansitivily analysis s based on the currently ohsensahble market environmeni, showing a
significantiy higher volatility than in prior years.

. Foreign currancy risk

Tha Company does not have significant cutstanding balances in fareign eurrency and consequentty the Company's exposure to foreign exchangs rigk is
lg5s, Althowgh, the exchange rate between the nupee and foreign curencias has changed in recent years, it has not affected the results of the Company.
The Company evalusles exchange rate exposurs arising from foreign currency transactions and lollows eslablishod risk management policies.

The fallowing table analysis foreign curmancy isk from financial instruments as at 31 March 2022;
# equivalent in million

Particulars uso EUR GEP ALID Others *

Assots

Trade receivables 8.02 5.38 .83 -

Loan e subsidiary = - 7.45 . -

Advance lo suppliars oA - - - -

Capital advance = 0.43 - - 3
3.20 5.8 3.28 u “

Liabilities

Trade payablas .73 19.582 - 0.03 .48

Liahility for capitzl goods - 0.16 = H =
9.73 19.98 - 0.03 0.48

Met assets / (liabilitias) {1.53) (1417} 3.28 10.03) {0.48)

The following table analysis foreign currancy sk from financial instruments as at 31 March 2021
F equivalent in million

Particulars uso EUR GBP AUD Others *

Assets

Trade receivablas 5,59 3.62 083 . -

Capital advances - 0.54 = -

Laan o subsidiany - - 2.22 = -

Advanca la suppllers 0.7v 0.21 - - -
5.36 4.37 315 - -

Liabilities

Trade payables 9.80 269 - 0.0 1.08

Liabilily for capilal goods - 5.08 - - -
9.80 10.77 - 0.01 1.08

Met assets | {liabilitics) 3.15 {0.01) {1.08)

* Includes Canadian Dollar, Russian Rubel and
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalons financial statements as at and for the year ended
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Sensitivity analysls

Ol the above. the Company is mainly expased o USD and EUR. Hence the following labla analyses the sensitivity to 8 5% increase and a 5% decreasa in
tha exchanga ratos of these curencies against INR (3), with all variables held constant. The sensilivily analysis is prepared on the net unhedged exposue
of the Company as al the reporting date,

Particulars Impact on profit / loss before tax
for the year endad
Currancies 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
LsD 0.08 017
ELIR 0.71 0.32

. Equity price risk

The Company’s non-listed squily securitics are susceptible to market price rigk arising from uncertainties about future valies of tha invesiment securities.
The Company manages the equily prica risk through diversification and by placing limils on individual and total equity instruments. Reports on Lhe aqguily
porfelio are submitled to the Company's sanior management on a regular basis. The Company's Board of Directors reviews and approves all equily
investment decisions.

Credit risk
Cradil risk arises fram the possibility that the counler parly may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed. The maximum exposurs of the financial
azsets are condribuled by rade receivables and other financial assels.

Trade recelvables

Trade roceivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue samed fram wo main classes of trade receivables ie. mceivablos from sales to
government corparations and receivables from salos o private parfies. A substantial porlion of the Cempany's trade receivables are from govarnment
comaration custornars having strong credit worhiness. Furthor, Company's historical expersnce of collecling recelvables is that credit sk is low. Hanoe
trade receivables are considered to be a single class of financial assels.

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
F million e T mitlion %
Trade receivablas
- from government corporation 55G.64 61.44% OGBS G64.36%
- [rom private parties 349.28 38.56% 391.52 35.64%
Total trade receivables (Refar note 10) 905.92 100.00% 1,088.41 100.00%
The movemeant of the allowance for lifetime expacted credit loss is stated below:
As at Az at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Balance at the beginning of tha year 27.058 2538
Irmpairmant allowance = 43.94 1.67
Balance at the end of lhe year 70.99 27056

Financlal agzcts other than trade recsivablos

Financial assets other than frade receivables comprise of cash and cash eguivalonts, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents, government
grant receivables and loan to subsidiares / employees. The Company monilors ha credit oxposure on these financial assels on a casa-lo-case basis,
Loans o subsidiafies are assessed for credil rsk based on the underlying valuation of he antily and thelr ability to repay within the conlraclual repayment
terms. Hazed on lhe Company's historical experience, lhe cradit risk on the above mentionad financial assels is also assessed to be low.
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity is dafined as the risk that the Company will nol ba able Lo setile or meet fis obligations on fime or al a reasunable price. The Company's treasury
deparlment s responsible for liguidity, funding as wall as setllement management, In addilion, processes and policies related to such risks are ocversesn by senior
management. Management manilars e Company's net liquidity postion through refling forecasts cn the basis of expected cash liows.

The table helaw provides delails regarding the contractuzl maturities of significant financial labilities:

Particulars
As at 31 March 2022 On demand Less than 1 year 1-5years Maore than § Total
years
Borrowings 1,262.50 0588 IrEat - 2,146.99
Trade payatles - 63520 - - 635,20
Leasa liabiilles . 5.7 67.05 = 121.84
OHher financial liabilities - 123.58 . - 123,58
1,262.50 1,319.45 445 66 T ],
As at 31 March 2021
Barrowings 1687284 G751 581.19 - 256184
Trade payables - BA7.5Y - - 517.57
Lease liahilites - 49,41 113.23 0.33 162.97
Other financizl liabililics - 143,13 - . 143.13
1,672.94 1,407.92 T04.42 0.33 3,785.61

Mote 3T Capital management

Far the puipese of the Company's capilal managenicn?, capital inclides issued equity capilal and ali olher cqully reserves attibutable to the equily holders of the
Company. The Company sfrives lo safeguard 113 ability to continue a5 a going concern so that they can maximise returns far ihe sharehalders and benefits for
other stake halders. The aim Lo maintain an optimal capital slruclure and minimize cost of capital,

The Company manages its capital structure and makes sdjustmenls in light of changss in econiomic conditions and the reguirerents of the financial covenants. To
mainlgin or adjust the capital structure, the Company may return capital to sharehalders, issue new shares or adjust the dividend payment to shareholders (if
permitted). Consistent with olhars in the Indusiry, the Company monitors its capilal using the gearing ratio which is total debt divided by Il eguily.

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Total deht 214699 7,861,894
Todal equily 4,149.27 327614
Total debits to equity ratio (Goaring ratio) 0.52 0.80

I arder to achisva this overall cbjective, the Company's capital managoment, amongst other things, aims to ensure thal il meels financial covenants attached to
{hi borrowings thal define the capital structure requiremendz. In the long run, the Company’s strategy is to mainiain the gearing ratio of less than 0.75.
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Note 38 Leases - Ind AS 116

Right-of-use Assets:

The nal carrylng value of right-of-use assets as al 31 March 2022 amounls Lo @ 92,81 millien (31st March 2021; $125.25 million} have been disclosed on
lha faca of the balance sheot (Also refer note 3A),

Lease liabilitles:

As al 31 March 2022, the obligations under finance lesses amounls 1o 2 10857 millon (31 March 2021: F 132,01 million which have been classiflod 1o
lese liabilitias, under financial liabifities.

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Curren! Lease habdlities 47.20 38.95
Mar-Current Lease liabilitics 6237 100,06
Total Lease liabilities : 109.57 130.01
(i} The following is the movement in lease liabililies for the year endead 31 March 2022
Opeaning Balance 139.01 24500
Additions during the year 18.34 1.940
Finance cost accrued during the year 11,45 14.69
Payment of leazo liabilities {53.30) (GE.78)
Terminalien during the yoar {5.84) (65.80)
Closing Balance 109.57 139.01
{ii) The labie balow provides details regarding the conlracius! malurilies of leasa labilitios:
Lease Liabilities Contractoal cash flows
Carrying Total 0-1 year 1-5 years 5 years and above
== amount
31 March 2022 109.57 121.84 54.79 67.05 -
31 March 2021 138.1 162.97 49.41 113.23 0.33 |
The Gompany recognised the following in the statement of profit and loss:
Paslicitirs Year ended Year anded
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Drepreciation expenses on righl-of-use assels (Refor notes 3A and 30) 420 449,85
Finance cost on lease liabilities (Refer nole 29) 11.45 1468
Fent expense pertaining to leases of low-value assals - -
Ranl expense partaining to leases with less than 12 monihs of leass included under other 5.36 19.40
expenses (Relar nole 28)
Mote 39 Dividend on aquily shares
Dividend on equity shares declared and paid during the year
Interim dividend of ¥ 2.5 per share of 2 2 Facea value (Year ended 31 March 2021; Nil) 194.49

Proposed dividend on equity shares not recognised as liability*
Final dividend of ¥ 2.4 per share of T 2 Faca valua far year ended 31 March 2022 19584 -
(Wear ended 31 March 20217 ; Mil}

‘Proposed dividend on aquity shares is subject to the approval af the sharshelders of the Company at the ensuing Annual General Meeling and not
recognized as liabilily as al the Batance Shieet date.




Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Summary of significant accounting pelicies and other explanatory information to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31
March 2022

{Amount in F million, unless othervise stated)

Mote 40 Disclosure of ratios

Measura Az atand forthe  As at and for the
Particulars Formula for computation {Iin times/ year ended 31 yoar chded 31
percentaga) March 2022 March 2021
a Cuwreni Ralio Current assets f Currant liabililies Times 1.20 1.06
b Debt Equily Ratio Crabt [ Met warth Times 052 0.90
¢ Debt Service coverage Ralio EBITDA / (Finance cosls + Principal limes 204 0,79
repayment of long term borrawings wilhin
o year)
d Relurm on Cquity Frodil aller tax / Met worth Mercenlage 11.77% -0.19%
e Invenlory Turnover Ratio Cost of goods sold [ Average inventory Times 0. 0.63
f Trade Raceivable Turnover Ratic Fevenus from sale of product and services  Times N 2.55
{Aaverage lrade receivables
g Trade Payable Turnover Ratio Purchases [ Average rade Payables Times 1.85 1.10
h Met Capital Tumover Halio Revenue from aperations [ Working capital — Times T.58 16.64
I Met Profit Ratio Profit after fax { Revenue [rom operations Percentage 11.65% -L19%
j Ralum on Capital Employed (ROCE) EBIT ! Capital cmployed Percentage 19.34% 5.27%
k Raturn an invastment (RO1 Mot appicabla Percentags MA. M.A
Motes:

1 Debt = Mon-curren! borrowings + Current borrowings

2 Met warth = Paid-up share caplial + Reserves created out of profil - Accumulated losses

3 EBITDA = Eamings hefore finance costs, depreciation expense and tax and exceplional llems

4 Cost of goods soid = Cost of matarlals consumed + Purchase of stock-in-lrade + Changes in inventories of finished goads, stock-in-irade and work-in-
progress

5 Met purchase = Purchass of slock-In-rade + Cost of materials consumed + Closing inventory of raw materials and packing materials - Opaning inventony
of raw materials and packing malerials

B Working Capital = Current assefs - Currend lizbililies
7 EEIl = Earnings before interest and tax and exceplional ilams
8 Capilal employed = Total equity + Mon-currenl barrowings

Disclosure of change in ratio by more than 25%

T %% Variance in ratio between Reason for Variance in excess of 25%
Particulsrs 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021

a Curranl Hallo 13% Refer nole balow

b Debl Equily Rallo ~A3% Owing to dacrease in deld

¢ Debl Sarvice coverage Ratio 158% Ohwing Lo incraasa in EBIDTA due to better margin and
dacresse in debl

d Relurn on Equily 199 Increase in he revanue wilh fixed cost being constant
leading 1o incresse in Profil after Tax

e Inventory Turnover Ratic 10% Refer nole bakow

f Trade Recclvable Turnover Ratio 50% Chwing Lo improved collection

g Trade Payable Tumover Ratio 7% Cwing Lo limely payment of rade payables

R Mel Capital Tumover Ratio -G4% Owing Lo increasa in the warking capital comparad to
ravenus

i Met Prafil Halio F310% Ciwing o increase in rovenue followed by increase in profit
with fixed cosl baing constant

| Return on Capital Employed (ROGE) 134% Owing to increase in EBIT and decrease in bormowing

k Return on Investimenl (RO MA, MA

Mol Since the changea in ralio is less than 25%, no cxplanation is required fo be disclosed.




Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March
2022

(Amount in ¥ million, unless otherwise stated)

Note 41 Unhedged foreign currency exposure

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Currencies Foreign currency Z in million Foreign currency Z in million

Trade recaivables usb 1,05,615 8.02 76,386 558
EUR 63,895 5.38 42,102 3.62
GBP 8,268 0.83 B,268 0.83
Trade payables usb 1,28,152 9.73 1,33,954 9.80
EUR 2,356,356 19.82 29,330 2.69
AUD 550 0.03 89 0.01
Others * 43177 0.48 82,956 1.08
Liability for capital goods EUR 1,914 0.16 93,994 B.08
Advance to suppliers usp 2,405 0.18 10,571 0.77
EUR - - 2,449 0.21
Capital advances EUR 5,152 0.43 6,247 0.54
Loan to subsidiary GBP 24,500 245 22,000 222
Investment in subsidiary GBP 1,000 0.10 1,000 0.10

* Includes Canadian Dollar,Russian Rubel and Emirati Dirham
Note 42 Corporate social responsibility expenditure

As per the Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 every year the Company is required lo spend at least 2% of its average net profit made during the immediately 3
preceding financial years on the Corporale Social Responsibility (CSR) activities. Following is the information regarding projects undertaken and expenses incurred on CSR
aclivities.

a. Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year:  2.82 million (31 March 2021 : ¥ 4,11 millien)

b. Amount spent during the year on CSR activities: ¥ 8.82 million (31 March 2021 : ¥ 4.15 million) the details of which is as given below:

For the year  For the year ended
ended 31 March 2021
31 March 2022

Infrastructure and Social Support in Nasik 1.85 1.53
Plantation Afforestation and Maintenance of Existing Plantation Project 0.97 1.02
Contribution to Prime Ministers National Relief Fund 3.00 1.60
Chief Ministers' Disasler Management Fund 3.00 -
Total 8.82 4.15

Note 43 Disclosures required pursuant to Ind AS 102 - Share Based Payment

The Company has granled stock options under the employee stock option schemes. During the year ended 31 March 2022 employee slock option scheme (ESOS
2018(2)), employee stock option scheme (ESOS COO & CFO 2019), Employee stock oplion scheme (ESOS 2020) and Employee stock option scheme (ESOS 2021 yare in
existence. These options would vest based on the vesting conditions as per letter of granl executed between the Company and the employee of the Company or its
subsidiaries. Each option when exercised would be converted inlo one fully paid-up equity share of 2 each of the Company. The relevant details of the scheme, grant and
activity under ESOS scheme are summarized below:

A. The number and weighted average exercise prices of, and movements in, share option:

Particulars No. of Options  Weighted Average
Price
Qutstanding as al 1 April 2020 111,479 856.04
Options granted during the year 64,812 944.86
Options forfeited/lapsed/expired during the year (10,000) 850.00
Options outstanding as at 31 March 2021 166,291 891.02
Oplions exercised during the period * (30,000) 631.00
Total outstanding options before share split 136,291 850.00
Add: Impact of share split on 30 July 2021 [refer note 14(h)] 545,164 (680.00)
Total outstanding options post share split 681,455 170.00
Options granted during the year 2,153,065 170.00
Options forfeited/lapsed/expired during the year (23,000) 170.00

Options outstanding as at 31 March 2022% 2,811,510 170.00




Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March
2022

(Amount in ¥ million, unless otherwise stated)

* The weighled average share price at the date of exercise of oplion was 122.8

* The options oulstanding as at 31 March 2022 are with the weighted average exercise price of ¥ 170.00 per share (31 March 2021: #891.02). The weighted average of the
remaining contractual life is 1 year.

B. Fair value of the options has been calculated using Binomial Pricing Model. The following inputs were used to determine the fair value for options granted
during the year:

Particulars ESOS 2018 (2) ESOS 2019 ESOS 2019 (2)

3 years Vesting CFO - 24 months COO - 15 months CFO - 12 months COO - 12 months

Period vesting period vesting period vesting period vesting period
Date of Grant 07 June 2018 07 June 2019 07 June 2019 14 May 2020 14 May 2020
Market Price (%) 76.25 76.25 76.25 76.25 76.25
Expected life (in years) 3 3 3 3 3
Volatility* 46.00% 46.00% 46.00% 46.00% 46.00%
Risk Free rate (%) 5.41% 5.41% 541% 541% 5.41%
Exercise Price 170 170 170 170 170
Dividend Yield (%) 1.31% 1.31% 1.31% 1.31% 1.31%
Option Fair Value (%) 7.25 11.87 7.32 7.69 7.69
ESOS 2020 ESOS 2019 (3) ESOS 2020 (2) ESOS 2021
1 Year Vesting CFO-12months COO - 12 months 1 Year Vesting 1 Year Vesting
Period vesting period vesting period Period Period

Date of Grant 29 Sep 2020 15 July 2021 15 July 2021 15 July 2021 30 July 2021
Market Price (¥) 76.25 122.8 122.8 1228 1228
Expected life (in years) 3 1.09 1.08 1.17 1.61
Volatility* 46.00% 42.76% 42.76% 43.03% 43.07%
Risk Free rate (%) 541% 3.78% 3.78% 3.78% 4.15%
Exercise Price 170 170 170 170 170
Dividend Yield (%) 1.31% 2.44% 2.44% 2.44% 2.44%
Option Fair Value () 7.06 8.85 8.85 968 13.54

*Expected volalility reflecis assumplion that the histerical volatility over a peried similar to the life of the options is indicalive of future trends, which may not necessarily be
the actual outcome

Note 44 As at 31 March 2022, lhe Company has non-current investments and non-current [oans amounting to  269.86 million and % 279.70 million, respectively, in its
wholly owned subsidiary Artisan Spirits Private Limited ('ASPL'). As at 31 March 2022, ASPL has accumulated losses and its net-worth has been substantially eroded.
However, the net-worth of this subsidiary does not represent its true market value as the value of the entily on a going concern basis, based on valuation report of an
independent valuer, is higher. Therefore, based on certain estimates like future business plans, growth prospects as well as considering the valuation reporl from an
independent valuer, the management belisves thal the realizable amount of the subsidiary is higher than the carrying value of the non-current invesimenis and loans due to
which these are considered as good and recoverable,

Note 45 There is a disputed excise duty demand of  1,158.95 million, against which a stay has been granted. The outcome of the Company's appeal is pending. The
Company has been legally advised that the malter is reasonable likely to be sellled in favour of the Company. Conseqguently, the possibility of any outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits is remote.

Note 46 Segment reporting

The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing, purchase and sale of alcoholic beverage (wines and spirits). The Executive Committee of the Company (being
the Chief Operating Decision Maker) assesses performance and allocates resources for the business of the Company as a whole and hence the management considers
Company's business activities as a single operating segment (viz. Beverage alcohol).

The following information discloses external revenues and non-current assets based on the physical location of the customers.

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

India Qutside India India QOutside India
Revenue from operations 4,115.50 78.68 3.276.79 102.52
MNon-current assets 3,954.85 - 3,687.29 -




Sula Vineyards Limited {Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)

Summary of significant accounting pelicies and other explanatory information 1o the standalone financial statements as a1 and for the year endad 31 March
2022

(Amount in ¥ millicn, unless otherwlse stated)

Mole 47 Gowvernment grants

The disclosures pursuant fo ind A5 20 “Aecounting for Government Grant and Disclosuie of Govemment Assisiance’ are as follows:
31 March 2022 31 March Z021

Government granis at the beginning of the year 653.94 TG40
Add: Governmeant grant accruad during the year 343.53 27342
Less: Governmenl grant received during the year 130.51 41512
Govarnmend grants a1 the end of the yoar B66.96 B53.94
Currant T04.38 45419
Man-current 162.56 169.75

Govesnment grants related 1o Wine ncenlive Promation Subsidy (WIPS) scheme launched by the slale of Maharashtra. Under the scheme, VAT paid by Company on wine
manuiaciured from grapes produced in Maharashira and subsequently sald in Maharashira is sligible lor B0% refund, The Company being involved in the business of wine
manufaciuring, avails WIFS ingentive. There are no unfulliied conditions or contingencies attached fo thesa grants:

MNobe 48 Events after the raporting pericd
(i) Subsequant to the reporiing daie all the culstanding warrants at 31 March 2022, have been converted into 3,002,784 equity share of 2 cach, Accordingly, there are no
wairants cutslanding 35 an the dale of adeplicn of he financial statement of the Company.

(i) S Intemational Limitad, & whally owned subsidizry has been struck off w.a.f. 19 April 2022, Accordingly, Impairment loss on Invesimentadvances amaunting to F 2.69
miflinn is reconnized during the year anded 21 March 2027,

Maote 49 - Othar Statutory Information
{i} The Company does nol have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been inifisted or panding against the Cempany for holding any Benami properly.
{ii} The: Gompany does not have any transaciions with sbuck off companies.
{iiiy The Company does not have any charges w salisfaction which iz yet to be registered with Rogistrar of Companies beyond the statulery pariod.
{iv} The Company has not fraded or invested in Cryplo currency ar Virtual Currency during the financial year,
() The Gompany has not advanced or leansd o invested funds to any other person(s} or enlily(ies), Including farsign antitiss {Imtermediarics) with the understanding that
ik Inlermediary shalk:
a, direcily or indirectly land ar imvestin clher persons or enfities identifisd in any manner whalgoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ullimale Beneficiaries]; or
by, provide any guarantee, scourily or the fike o or on behalf of tha Ultimate Beneficianies:,

{wi) The Company has nol received any fund from any person{s) or eniity{ies), including lorelgn entities (Funding Pary} with the understanding (whether recorded in
wiiting ar otherwize] that the Company shall.
a. direcily or indiractly lend or invest In other persans or enlifies idenlificd in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Pary (Liimate Bensficiares): or

b. provide any guaranice, securily of the like on bahalf of fha Ulimaic Beneliciaies,

{wii) The Company docs not lave any such transaction which is nol recorded in e books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as incomea during the year
{n the tax assessments under the ncome Tax Act, 1061 (swch as, ssarch or survey or any olher relevant provisions of the Income Tax Acl, 1961,

{wiil) The Gompany has not been declared wilful defauller by 2ny bank or financial instiution or gevernment ar any government autharity.
{ix} The Company has eomplied with the numbser of layers prescribed under the Companies Acl, 2013
{=} The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an socounting impact an the: currant or previcus financial year.




Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanalory Information 1o the standalone financial statemaents as at and for the year ended 31 March
2022

(Amount in T milllon, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 50 Previous period ligures have been re-grouped | re-classified whersvor nocessary, 1o conform o currend period's classfication in order to comply wilh the
requirements of the amendad Scheduls [ Lo the Companies Act, 2013 effective 1 April 2021.

This is & summary of synilicant accounbag policies and
olher explanatony information referred o in our repor of even date
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly known as Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidaled financial statements of Sula Vineyards Limited
{formerly known as Sula Vineyards Private Limited) (the Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries
{lhe Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as 'the Group'), as listed in Annexure |, which
comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022, the Consclidated Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the aforesaid
consolidatad financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
{'Ind AS" specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India of the consolidated state of affairs
of the Group, as at 31 March 2022, and their consolidated profit (including other comprehensive income),
consolidated cash flows and the consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Slandards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those slandards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report, We are independent of the Group, in
accordance with the Code of Fthics issued by the Inslilute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl" together
with the ethical requirements thal are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidance we have

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis.or our opinion.
i e
il MEiAl
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Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly known as Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Holding Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other infarmation. The other information
comprises the infarmation included in the Director's Reporl but does not include the consolidated financial
stalements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In sonnection with our audil of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the ather
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consalidated financial statoments or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, baszed on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatemant of
this other information, we are reguired to report that facl. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have beon approved by the Holding Company's Board
of Directors. The Holding Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial slatements
that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance
including other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the
Group in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act read wilh the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The
Board of Directors of the company included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequata
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other imegularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies: making judgments and estimates thal are reasonable and prudent, and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant o the preparation and
presentation of the financial statemants that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or errar, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consclidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for azsessing the ability of the Group to conlinue as a going concerm,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concarn and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Board of Directors either intend lo ligquidale the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to da sa,

Those respective Board of Directors are also responsible for oversesing the financial reporting process of the
companies includad in the Group.
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Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly known as Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whaole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includas our opinion. Reasonable assurancea is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstaterment when il exists.
Misstaternenis can arise from fraud or eror and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial slatements.

s part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing specified under seclion 143(10) of the Act we
exercise profossional judgment and maintain professional skeplicism throughout the audit. We also

ldentify and assoss the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud ar error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audil
avidence that is sufficient and approprizte o provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of nol detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulling from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, inlentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral;

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audil in arder to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143{3)(1) of the Act we are also responsible for
exprassing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls system
with reference to financial slalements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

Evaluate the approprisleness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audil evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to svents or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
aur opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report, However, future evenls or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
CONCarn,

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial stalements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial staterments represent the underlying transactions and events ina
manner that achieves fair presentation: and

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial statements of the enfities or business
activities within the Group, to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of financial statements of such
entities included in the financial statements, of which we are the independent auditors.

10. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other malters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit ﬁndings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit,
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Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly known as Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements of one (1) subsidiary, whose financial statements reflects total assets
of # 0.09 million and net liahilities of  2.42 million as at 31 March 2022, total revenues of NIL and nel cash
outflows amounding 1o  0.38 millian for the year ended an that date, as considered in the consolidated
financial statements. These financial stalements are unaudited and have been furnished fo us by tha
management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in =o far as it relates to the amounts
and disclosures included in respect of the aforesaid subsidiary, and our report in lerms of sub-section (3) of
section 143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary, are based solely on such unaudited
financial statements. In our opinion and according (o the information and explanations given to us by the
managemeant, these financial stalemeants are not material to the Group,

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on other legal and regulatory
requirements below, are nol modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance on the
financial statements certified by the management of the Holding Company.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 197(16) of the Act based on our audit, we report that the Holding Company has paid
or provided remuneration to their directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid
down under section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. Further, we report that one (1) subsidiary company
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have not paid or provided
for any managearial remuneration during the year. Accordingly, reporting under section 187(16) of the Actis
nat applicable in respect of such subsidiary company.. :

As required by clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 of Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ('the Order”) issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Acl, of companies included in the
consolidated financial statements and covered under the Act we report that there are no gualifications or
adverse remarks reported in the respective Order reporis of such companies.

As reguired by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report; to the extent applicable, that:

a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kepl so far as il appears from our examination of those
books;

&) The consolidated financial statements dealt wilh by this report are in agreement with the relevant books
of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial stalements comply with Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015;

&) On the basis of the written representations received fram the directors of the Holding Company and its
subsidiany company, and taken an record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its
subsidiary company, covered under the Act, none of the directors of the Group companies, coverad
under the Act, are disgualified as on 31 March 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of
saction 164(2) of the Act.
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Sula Vineyards Limited {Formerly known as Sula Vineyards Private Limited)

Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

i With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Holding Company, and its subsidiary company covered under the Act, and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer lo our separate report in *Annexure II” wherein we have expressed
an unmadified opinion; and

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Audilors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given lo us:

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated
financial position of the Group, as detailed in Moles 33{A)i) and 49 to the consolidated financial
siatements;

ii. Huolding Company and its subsidiary companies did not have any long-term contracls including
derivative contracts for which there were any materal foresceable losses as at 31 March 2022;

iii. Thare were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Frotection Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary company covered under the Act,
during the year ended 31 March 2022,

5 8

The respective management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company,
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audiled under the Act have
reprosented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in Mote 52(v)
to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
{either from barrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the: Group lo or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ('the intermediaries’),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entilies identified in any
manner whalsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company or any such subsidiary
company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, securily or the like on
behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented Lo us that, to the
bost of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in Note 52{vi) to the consclidated financial
stalements, ne funds have been received by the Holding Company or its subsidiary
company, from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ('the Funding Parties’),
with the underslanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Helding Company
or any such subsidiary shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identifizd in any manner whatsoever by or on behall of the Funding Party {'Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantes, securily or the like on behalf of the Ulimate
Beneficiaries; and
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Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly known as Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

c. Based on such audit procedures performed by us, as considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe
that the management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any
material misstatement.

v.  The interim dividend paid by the Holding Company during the year ended 31 March 2022 is in
compliance with section 123 of the Act.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered.Accou tants
Firm's ReFIstrattch Not001076M/NS00013

M/,

Rakesh R. gcgarwal
Partner
Membership Mo 100832

UDIN:22109632AJFPHKT417

Place: Mumbai
Date; 19 May 2022
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Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly known as Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Annexure |

List of entities

[ sr | —
No. Name of the entity

Relationship

1. | Sula Vineyards Limited, India
2| Arlisan Spirits Private Limited, India

Holding Company

Subsidiary

3. | Sula International Limited, United Kingdom

Subsidiary
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Sula Vineyards Limited {Formerly known as Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Annexure |l to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Sula Vineyards
Limited (Formerly known as Sula Vineyards Private Limited) on the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022.

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
('the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consclidated financial statements of Sula Vineyards Limited (formerly
known as Sula Vineyards Private Limited) (‘the Holding Company') and its subsidiaries (the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as ‘the Group'), as at and for the year ended
31 March 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Holding Company and its subsidiary company which are companies covered under the Act, as at thal date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company which are companies
coverad under the Act, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal financial controls with respect to financial statoments crileria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the 'Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (the ‘|CAlY. These responsibilities include the design, implamentation and maintenance
of adequale internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of the Company's business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of ils
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completenass of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial
Statements

Our respansibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company, as aforesaid, based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the 1CAI prescribed under
Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with referance {o
financial statements, and the Guidance Mote issued by the |CAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assuranco aboul whether adequate intemnal financial controls with reference to financial statemants were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Cwr audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adeguacy of the internal financial
contrals with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements includes oblaining an understanding of such internal financial
controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of intemal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend an
the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether dus to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company
and its subsidiary company as aforasaid.
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Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly known as Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financlal Statements

Annexure Il {Contd)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reascnable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. & company’s internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements include those pelicies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispaositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and {3} provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Staterments

Because of the inherant limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may ocour and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements may become inadeguate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Helding Company and its subsidiary company, which are companies covered under the
Act, have in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on the internal financial controls
with respect to financial statements criteria established by the Holding Company and its subsidiary company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Mate issuad by the ICAL

s,

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Fim's R gistrTiun No:001076N/N500013

N \l

e
\ﬂ/k;ﬂf

Rakesh R, fgarwal

Partne

MemBership Mo; 1058632

UDIN:22109632AJFPHKT 417

Place: Murmbai
Date: 19 May 2022
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Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022
(Amount in ¥ million, unless otherwise stated)

Note No. As at As al
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 3,444.13 3,040.23
Right-of-use assets 3A 93.05 125.25
Capital work-in-progress 3B 9.80 1.07
Gooadwill 4 8.54 0.11
Other intangible assels 4 66.78 11.95
Financial assets
Investments 5 0.03 0.03
Loans 6 19.21 10.80
Other financial assets 7 209.68 218.24
Non-current tax assets (net) 8 2.1 1.39
Other non-current assets 9 26.85 3743
Total non-current assets 3,880.18 3,446.60
Current assets
Inventories 10 1,622.62 1,439.32
Financial assets
Trade receivables 11 1,093.94 1,236.17
Cash and cash equivalents 12 101.99 407.91
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 13 93.85 109.71
Loans 6 11.51 11.35
Other financial assets 7 736.21 468.87
Other current assels 9 45,31 75.19
3,705.43 3,748.52
Non-current assets and assels of a disposal group classified as held for sale 14 - 320.84
Total current assets 3,705.43 4,069.36
TOTAL ASSETS 7,585.61 7,515.96
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 18 157.20 150.80
Other equity 3,795.39 2,896.59
Total equity 3,952.59 3,047.39
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 16 480.67 591.19
Lease liabilities 17 62.43 100.06
Provisions 18 19.92 99.61
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 8 168.61 159.74
Total non-current liabilities 731.63 950.60
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 16 1,808.64 2,421.37
Trade payables 19
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 4.78 9.71
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 669.67 573.62
Lease liahilities 17 47.39 38.95
Other financial liabilities 20 142.29 144.71
Other current liabilities 21 186.86 168.07
Provisions 18 27.23 12.98
Current tax liabilities (net) 8 14.53 12.70
2,901.39 3,382.11
Liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale 14.1 - 135.85
Total current liabilities 2,901.39 3,517.96
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 7,585.61 7,515.96

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements




Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Congolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022
{Amount in ¥ million, unless otherwise stated)

This is the Consolidated Balance Sheat relerad Lo in
our audit report of sven dale

For Walker Chandl
Chartered Accountgnis
Firm Regisfaiion

ColLLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Sula Vineyards Limited
{Formarly Sula Vineyards Frivate Limited)

Rakesh R. Rajeev Samant Chetan DQSE\M‘

Partner CEC and Managing Diraclor Chairman and Director
Membarship Mo 109632 DM DO020675 DN aRB53149

. ﬁ// :
rjy:>ﬁ.nand Bitlu Varghese

Ok NS00013

Director Chief Financial Officer
DiM: 07630285 ACA 117278

Ruchi Sathe
Company Sccretary
Membership Mo, A335GE

Place: Mumbai Flace: Mumbal
Date ; 149 May 2022 Date - 19 May 2022



Sula Vineyards Limlted (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limitcd)
Consolidated Statement of Profil and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Bumount in ¥ million, unless otherwise stated)

Nats N Year cnded Year andod
Eitia 1 31 March 2022 31 March 2051
Income
Fwenies: from operations 22 4,539.16 4.179.54
Other income 23 27.84 35,73
Total income 4,667.00 £ 21532
Enpanses
Cost of materials consurned 24 1,114.18 BEQ, 12
Purchase of stock-fn-frade 204,30 52
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 25 {147.00) 15362
Fucige duty on sales 29504 22019
Employes banefils cxpunsc 26 653.40 Sha.01
Salling, distribulios 2nd markeling expense 27 A45.45 ARG.095
Dilbsr caplnges 28 40,92 663.23
3,406.29 I5T0LED
Earnings Before Interest, Dapraciation, Tax, Amorisation and Exceptional itams (EBIDTAE) 1,160,714 45,12
Finance costs 29 229.23 3386
Cepraciation and amodisalion expense a0 236,11 256,99
Profit before tax and exceptional item 695,37 54,27
Exceptional Hem # = [2%.41)
Profit before tax 69537 31.86
Tax expanse a8
Courrend fax 165.12 22.67
Deferrad tax B.BE {18.86)
173.98 A1
Met profit for the year (A) 521.39 28.05
Other comprehensive loss (QC1}
= that will ot be reclassified subseguantly o stalement of grofit or loss
- Loss on remoasuremant of defined benefit plans (net of lawwes) a1 {1.47) [2.56)
e thal will be reckassified subsequently o slalement of profit on lnss
- Gash low hedge resenve : (021}
Other comprohensive loss for the year, net of tax (B) {1.47) 277
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax [A+B) 519.92 2528
Het profit for the year attributable to:
Cramizrs ol Lhe parem 521.39 Z1.80
Mon-contraliing interest - 0.25
Other comprehensive loss for the year attributable to:
Cwners of the parent [1.47) (2.82)
Man-controlling inlerest - D05
Total comprehensive incoma for the year attributable to:
Crwmezrs: of the parent 519,92 2448
Mor=contiolling inlerest 0.an
Eamings per equity share of nominal value £ 2 esch
Basic {in T) a2 6.79 .37
Diluted {in T} 32 6,79 0.37

The accampanying noles orm an inlegral part of the consclidated financial stalemenls




Sula Vineyards Limiled (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022
{&mcunt in F milllen, unless otherwise stated)

This iz the {.:mmulinal&d_smmméﬂl of Profit and Loss
refereed to bnoour audi rt of evan data

For and an behall of the Board of Directors of Sula Vineyards Limited
[Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limifed)

Rajeav Samant Chetan Desal
GECH ared Managing Dircclor Chairnran and Director
DK (D0206Th DiIN: 035325318

W W
Arjﬂﬁ.nnnd Bitls Varghese

Direciar Chidl Fiesancial Cficer
DIN: DFE302E6 ACA 117278
R

Ruchi Satha
Company Soorolary
Membership Mo, A33566
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Diata : 19 May 2022 Drate - 19 May 2022



Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Consolldated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Amount in ¥ million, unless otherwlse stated)

Year ended
M March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

A, CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for
Depraciation and amorlisalon expense
Interesl cxponses
Interest income
Privvisions! halzncas no longer required written back
Frofil on dizposal! cancellation of lease sgreement
Share based payment ta employess
Impairment allowance an financial and olher assels
Imipairment loss on sssels clagsified as held for sale (Refer nole 28}
Exceptional ilam - less on disposal group classified a= hald for sale
Unrealised exchange loss on foreign currancy ranslations {net)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and eguipment (net)

Operating profit before working capital changes

Adjustments for changes in working capital:

{Increase) ! Decrease in inverdories

Decrease in frade receivables

{Increase) { Dacrease in current’ non-current financial and olher assels
Increase | (Decrease) in trade payables and other financlal | other liabilities

Cash generated from operations
Diract taxes - refurd recaived! (paid) [net]
MNet cash generated from operating activities

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Furchase of proporly. plant and equipment (refer note 2 balow)
Faymeanl in refation 1o purchase consideration on business combination
Froceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment (Including assets held far sala)
Proceeds from sale of investmanl of subsidiary
Met procesds frorm bank depesits with ariginal maturify of more than threg months
Interesl received
Met cash used In Investing activities

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of equity share capilal (including securities premium])
Proceads [rom long-term Dorrowings
Repaymant of long-lerm bormaowings
Repaymenl of shorl-tierm borrowings {net)
Repayment of lease kabilifies
Interest paid
Dividend paid {including taxes)
Met cash used in financing activities

Met increase | (decrease) in cash and cash equivatents (A+0+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the and of the year

Less: Transier io assels of a disposal group classified as held for sale (Refer nole 1£)
Add: Cash and cash equivalents aoquired in business combination (refer note 45)
Cash and cash cquivalents at the end of the year {rafer nole 12}

MNotes:

1 The cash flow statement has heen prepared under the Indirect method as set oul in Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AR 7) slatement of cazh llows.

595,37 3186
236.11 256,99
214,20 316,52
(21.53) {76.50)
{23.02) (681}

{0.40) (2.31)
18,61 410
46,39 2.94
17.05 11.80
2 23 41
0,39 017
0.47 31.93
48827 611,19
1,183.64 643.05
{146.46) 209,31
163.T6 189177
(206.76) 208.71
46.88 (129.00)
{142.58) AB0.70
1,041.06 112385
{166.67) ¥1.56
B74.39 1,195.41
{549.77) {154.51)
{161.65) ;
90,85 866
29.69 £
(0.04) (8570
23.00 24,52
{567.52) (217.03)
564.08 15.64
J06.6T 217.52
{417.19) (414.58)
(612.73) (39120
{53.50) (56.78)
(202.36) (315.39)
(194.43) -
(612.52) (944.79)
(206.05) 33.59
407.91 374,72
101,86 A08.31
: {0.40)
013 -
101.99 A07.91

2 Additions fo properly, plant and equipment include movemanls of capilal work-in-progress, capital advances and Eability for capital goods,

3 Cash flow staternent excludes shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant fo conlracls without payment being recaived in cazh.

The accompanying nolas form an integral part of the consolidaled linancial stalements




Sula Vineyards Limited (Farmerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Amount in ¥ million, unless otherwlse stated)

This Consollidated Gash Flow Stalament relerred 1o 0 our audit

report of even date
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Sula Vineyards Limited

For Walker Chandiok.& Co LLP {Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Chartered Accouniznis
Firm Registrglion Mo 09 1076N { NS00013 Q% |

I
Rakesh R. Rajesv Samant Chetan Desai
Partner CEC and Managing Directar Chairman and Director
Membershipflo. 100632 DM DOCEOB S ol

: USEQEV
W L7
i nand Bltth Varghese

Dhreclor Chief Financizl Officor
CHM; O7R352E8 ACA: 117278

Ruchi Sathe

Company Secredary

Membership Mo, A33565

Plane: Mumbai Place: Mumhai
Dafe 149 May 2022 Dale : 19 May 2022
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Mote 1 Corporate Information

Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited) (the “Holding Company”, the "Company” or the
“Parent Company”) is a Company domiciled and headquartered in Mumbai, India and was incorporated under the
provisions of the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956, has been converted from Privale Limited Company to Unlisted
Public Limited Company pursuant to special resolution passed at the Extraordinary General Meeting of the
shareholders held on 30 December 2021 and consequently the name has been changed lo Sula Vineyards Limited
and a revised certificale of incorporation dated 11 February 2022, consequent to the aforementioned change, has
been issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. The Holding Company having CIN U15549MH2003PLC139352
is located at 901 Hubtown Solaris M.5. Phadke Marg, Andheri East, Mumbai-400069.

The Holding Company and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries collectively referred lo as the
“Group"). The Group is principally engaged in the business of manufacture, purchase and sale of premium wine and
other alcoholic beverages. This consolidated financial slatements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022
were authorised for issue in accordance with resolution of Board of Directors on 19 May 2022,

Mote 2.1 Significant Accounting Policies

i. Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Group have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the Indian
Accounting Standards (“Ind AS") as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read
with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time to time nolified under the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention with the exception of certain
financial assets and liabilities and share based payments which have been measurad at fair value, on an accrual
basis of accounting.

The Group's financial statements are reported in Indian Rupees, which is also the Group’s functional currency,
and all values are rounded lo the nearest million (INR 000,000}, except when otherwise indicaled.

ii. Principles of Consolidation
The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the following basis:
a. Subsidiary

Subsidiary is the entity which is, directly or indirectly, controlled by the Holding Company. Controls exists
when the Holding Company, directly or indirectly, has power over the investee, is exposed lo, or has rights
to, variable returns from ils involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those relurns through its
pawer to direct the relevant aclivities of the entity.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Holding Company, directly or indirectly, obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Holding Company, directly or indirectly, loses control of the subsidiary.
Income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss from the date the Holding Company, directly or indireclly, gains contral until the
date when the Holding Company, directly or indirectly, ceases to control the subsidiary.

The Group combines the separate financial statements of the parent and its subsidiary line by line by adding
together like items of assets, liabilities, contingent liability, equity, income and expenses. Intercompany
transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transaclions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairmenl of the
transferred asset. The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been harmaonised to ensure the consislency
with lhe policies adopted by the Halding Company.

b. The consolidated financial statemenls have been presented to the extent possible, in the same manner &g
Parent Company’s standalone finape emenis.




c. Mon-controlling interesl represents that part of the total comprehensive income and net assets of subsidiaries
attributable to interests which are not owned, directly or indirectly, by the Holding Company.

d. The gains/losses in respect of part divestment/dilution of stake in subsidiary companies not resulting in ceding
of control, are recognised directly in other equily aliributable to the owners of the Parent Company.

e. The gains/losses in respect of divestment of stake resulting in ceding of control in subsidiary companies are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The investment representing the interest retained in a former
subsidiary, if any, is initially recognised at its fair value with the corresponding effect recognised in the
Stalement of Profit and Loss as on the date the control is ceded. Such retained inlerest is subsequently
accounted as an associate or a joint venture or a financial asset.

f.  The consolidated financial stalements are prepared using uniform accounling policies for like transactions
and other events in similar circumstances. If a member of the Group uses accouniing policies other than
those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that Group member's separate financial statements in
preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the Group’s accounting policies,
wherever necessary and practicable.

g. Noles to the consolidated financial statements represent notes involving items which are considered material
and accordingly disclosed. Materiality for the purpose is assessed in relation to the information contained in
the financial statements. Further, additional statutory information disclosed in separate financial statements
of the subsidiary andfor a parent having no bearing on the true and fair view of the financial statementls has
not been disclosed in this consolidated financial statements,

Operating cycle and current, non-current classification

Based on the nature of services and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation
in cash and cash equivalents, the Group has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of
current! non-current classification of assets and liabililies, The Group presents assets and liabilities in the Balance
Sheet based on current! non-current classification.

An Asset is Currenl when:

s |t is expected to be realised in normal operating cycle.

s |l is held primarily for the purpose of trading.

» |t is expectad to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
» |t is cash aor cash equivalent.

All other assels are classified as non-current.
A Liability is currenl when:

s It is expected o be sellled in normal operating cycle.

s |t is held primarily for the purpose of frading.

s |t is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

« There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporling period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assels and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and non-current liabilities respeclively.

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements, in conformity with the recognition and measurement
principles of Ind AS, requires the management fo make estimates and assumplions that affect the reported
niingent !lahlltties asat the date of financial ataiemenlq and




knowledge of current events and aclions, actual results could differ from these estimates which are recognised
in the period in which they are determined.

Key accounting estimates and assumptions

The key assumplions concerning the future and other key sources of eslimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the nexl financial year, are described below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters
available when the financial statemenls were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumplions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control
of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made
and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Critical estimates and judgements

Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are prudent and
reasonable. Examples of such estimates include estimation of useful lives of property plant and equipment,
employee costs, assessments of recoverable amounts of deferred tax assets, trade receivables and cash
generating units, provisions against litigalions and contingencies.

Estimates

a) Impact of COVID-19 on the business operations and consolidated financial statements of the Group

b)

d)

The outbreak of COVID-19 had disrupted business operations of the Group in earlier periods due to the lock
down restrictions and other emergency measures imposed. The Group's business operations have continued
with certain restrictions in line with guidelines laid down by the respective Governments from time lo time. The
overall operations of the group have significantly recovered from the economic slowdown caused by COVID-19
pandemic and largely reached normaley.,

The Group management has also taken into account the possible impacls of known events, upto the date of
the approval of this Consolidated Financial Statements, arising from COVID-18 pandemic on the carrying valug
of the assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2022. The Group management does not forses any significant impact
of the of COVID-19 pandemic but will continue to closely monitor any potential impact given the uncertainties
associated with its nature and duration.

Useful lives of various assets

The Group has estimated the useful life if each class of assets based on the nalure of assets, the estimated
usage of lhe asset, the operating condition of the asset, pasl history of replacement, anticipated technological
changes, etc. The Group reviews the eslimated useful lives and residual values of the assels al each reporting
period. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation and amortisalion expense in the future periods.

Current Income Taxes

The tax jurisdictions for the Group is India. Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for
income taxes including judgment on whether tax positions are probable of being sustained in tax assessmenls.
A tax assessment can involve complex issues, which can only be resolved over extended time periods. The
recognition of laxes that are subject to certain legal or economic limils or uncertainties is assessed individually
by management based on the specific facts and circumstances.

Provision and Contingencies

Contingent Liabilily may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Group. By
their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain fulure events occur or fail to oceur.
The assessment of the existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of
significant judgments and the use of estimates regarding the outcome of future events.
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e) Accounting for defined benefit plans

In accounting for post-retirement benefits, several statistical and other factors that attempt to anlicipale future
evenls are used to calculate plan expenses and liabilities. These faclors include expected discount rate
assumplions and rate of future compensalion increases. To estimate these factors, actuarial consultants also
use estimates such as withdrawal, turnover, and mortality rates which require significant judgment. The actuarial
assumptions used by the Group may differ materially from actual results in future periods due to changing
market and economic conditions, regulatory events, judicial rulings, higher or lower withdrawal rates, or longer
or shorter participant life spans.

f)  Impairment of financiall non-financial assets

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which an asset's or cash-generating unil's carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount to determine the recoverable amount, management estimates expected future
cash flows from each asset or cash generaling unit and determines a suitable interest rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. In the process of measuring expected future cash flows, management
makes assumptions about fulure operating results. These assumplions relate to future events and
circumstances. The actual results may vary, and may cause significant adjustments to the Group’s assets. In
most cases, determining the applicable discount rate involves eslimating the appropriate adjustmenl to market
risk and the appropriate adjustment to asset-specific risk factors.

Fair Value Measurement
The Group measures financial instruments, at fair value at each balance sheel date. (Refer note 35).

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
belween market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best inlerest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into accounl a market participant's ability to generale
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it lo another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in lhe consolidated
financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markels for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 - Inputs for the assels or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

For assels and liahilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial stalements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether lransfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based
an the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole} at the end of each reporting
period. At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which
are required lo be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Group's accounting policies. For this analysis, the
Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation
computation to contracts and olher relevant documents. The Management also compares the change in the fair
XTI riwhether the change is reasonable.
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Property, Plant and Equipment (Tangible Assets)

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost of acquisition including attributable interest and finance costs, if
any, till the date of acquisition/ installation of the assets less accumulaled depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Subsequent expenditure relating to Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. Al other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as
incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the consolidated financial statements,
either on disposal or when retired from active use and the resultant gain or loss are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. '

Bearer plants comprising of grapevines are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Immature bearer plants, including the cost incurred for procurement of new seeds and
maintenance of nurseries, are carried at cost less any recognized impairment losses under capital work-in-progress,
Cost includes the cost of land preparation, new planting and maintenance of newly planted bushes until maturity. On
maturity, these costs are classified under bearer plants,

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress representing expenditure incurred in respect of assets under developmenl and not ready
for their intended use, are caried at cost. Cost includes related acguisition expenses, construction cost, related
barrowing cosl and other direct expenditure.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the cost of acquired business as established at the date of acquisition of the business in excess
of the acquirer's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities less
accumulated impairment losses, if any, Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or when events or circumslances
indicate that the implied fair value of goodwill is less than its carrying amount.

Brands acquired in a business combination and recognised separalely from Goodwill are initially recognised at their
fair value at the acquisition value (which is regarded as their cost). Subsequent to initial recognition, these are
reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Other Intangible assets are stated at cost, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
itern will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably, less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Other Intangible assets mainly comprise of implementation cost for software
and other application software acquired and brand acquired through business combination.

Investment Property

Investment properties are held to earn rentals (except for shorl-term purposes) or for capital apprecialion, or both,
but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Investment properties are measured initially at their cost of acquisition. The cosl comprises
purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are mel and directly atiributable cost of bringing the asset to
its working condition for the intended use. Subsequent cosls are included in the asset's carrying amount ar
recognised as a separate assel, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future econemic benefils associated
with the item will flow to the Group, All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss as incurred.

Though the Group measures investment property using cosl-based measurement, the fair value of investment
property is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined on an annual basis.

Non-current assets or disposal group classified as held for sale

The Group classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be
recovered principally through a sale rather than through continuing use. The crileria for held for sale classification is
regarded mel only when the assets or disposal group is available for immediale sale in ils present condition, subject
only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such assets (or disposal groups), its sale is highly probabie
The appropriate level of management musl be committed to sell the asset or disposal group expected within one
year from the dale of classification. Non-current as sal group {alung W|lh asbuuaied assefs and liabilities)
classified as held for sale are measured al he i mlut. less costs to sell. The
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determination of fair value less costs to sell includes use of management estimates and assumplions. Once classified
as held for sale, the assels are no longer amortized or depreciated,

Depreciation and Amortisation

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment (‘PPE') is calculated using the sltraight line methed as per the
estimated useful lives of assets as below:

~ Asset category Useful life (in years) | Basis of determination of useful lives |
| Building 30 — 60 Assessed to be in line with Schedule Il to the Act |

Leasehold improvement | Over the lease period -

Plant and equipment 10— 25 'Assessed to be in line with Schedule Il to the Act
| Furniture and fixtures 5-10 IManagement estimate®

Vehicles 8—10 Assaossed o be in ling with Schedule 1 to the Acl

Office equipment 3-10 Management estimate® o
| Computers 3-8 Assessed to be in ling with Schedule 1 to the Act
| Oak barrels 4-15 Management estimate”

Bm 20 Management estimate”®

# |Useful lives of asset classes determined by management estimate, which are generally lower than those prescribed
under Schedule || to the Act are supported by internal technical assessment of the useful lives.

The estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any change in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Depreciation on additions is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from the date on which assel is ready for use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amounts. These are
accounted in Statement of profit and loss within Other income! Other expenses.

Amortisation on Intangible Assets

Intangible assels are amortised on a straight line basis, from the date they are available for use, over their estimated
useful lives that is a period of three to ten years.

Asset category Useful life (in years) Basis of determination of useful lives
" Brand . 9-=10 "Management estimale
Computer software 3-6 Assessed o be in line with Schedule Il to the Act

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

a. Financial Assets
(i) Initial Recognition

In the case of financial assets, not recorded at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), financial assets are
recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the lrade
date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the assel,

(ii) Subsequent Measurement

Wl o P
~

o

For purposes of subsequent measurement, fin ﬂ';%f@?sets are classified in following categories:




= Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

Financial assels are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a
husiness model wilh an objective to hold these assets in order to collecl contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows thal are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective interest rate ("EIR") method. Impairment gains or losses
arising on these assets are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

o Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value

Financial assets are measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income ('OCI') if these financial
assets are held within a business model with an objective to hold these assets in order {o collect contractual
cash flows or to sell these financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assel not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through OCI is carried at FVPL. In respect of
equity investments (other than for investment in subsidiaries) which are not held for trading, the Group has
made an irrevocable election o present subsequent changes in the fair value of such instruments in
Statement of Profit and Loss. Such an election is made by the Group on an instrument by instrument basis
at the time of transition for existing equity instruments/ initial recognition for new equity instruments.

(iii) Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. The Group has made an irrevocable
election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Group makes
such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as
at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCL
There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to reslated consoclidated statement of profit or loss, even on
sale of investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the restated consolidated statement of profit and loss.

The equity securities which are not held for trading, and for which the Group has made an irrevocable election
at initial recognition to recognize changes in fair value through OCI rather than profit or loss as these are
strategic investments and the Group considered this to be more relevanl.

(iv) Impairment of Financial Assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies the expected credit loss ("ECL") model for measurement
and recognition of impairment loss on financial assets and credil risk exposures.

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables.
Simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credil risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date, right from ils initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not
increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has
increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument
improves such that here is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity
reverls to recognising impairment |oss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the group in accordance with the

contract and all the cash flows that the enlily expects to receive (i.c., all cash shortfalls), discounted al the

original EIR. Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the

expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is & portion of the lifetime ECL which results from
1 ¥ . i, 43

default events that are possible within 12 monthsgs
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ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/ expense
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(v} De-recognition of Financial Assets
The Group de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the assel

expire, or il transfers the financial asset and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognizes ils retained interest in the assets and an associated liability
for amounts it may have o pay.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues {o recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

b) Equity Instruments and Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equily instruments which are issued for cash are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs. Equity instruments which are issued for consideration other than cash are recorded at fair
value of the equity instrument.

Financial Liabilities
= [nitial Recognition

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVPL, loans and borrowings
and payables as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised inilially at fair value and, in the case of
loans and borrowings and payables, net of direclly attributable transaction costs.

¢« Subsequent Measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below

Financial liabilities at FWVPL:

Financial liabilities at FVYPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition as at FVYPL. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings and other payables are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in stalement of profit and loss when
the liabilitics are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. Amorlised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
ithe EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the stalement of profit and loss.

» De-recognition of Financial Liabilities

Einancial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired, When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liabilily are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
iz treated as de-recognition of the original liability and recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in rRent of Profit and Loss.




c)

d)

Xiv.
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Cash flow hedge

Foreign exchange forward contracts thal hedge foreign currency risk associaled with highly probable foracasied
are classified as cash llow hedges and measures them al fair value. The effective portion of changes in the fair
value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under hedging reserve. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in the profit or loss and is included in the 'Other income/ expenses’ line ilem. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity relating to effective portion (as described
above) are reclassified to the profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss, in the same
line as the recognised hedged item.

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to setlle on a net
basis to realise the assets and setlle the liabilities simultaneously.

Employee Benefits
a) Defined Contribution Plan

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as provident fund, employees' state insurance, labour
welfare fund are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made as and
when services are rendered by the employees. Group's provident fund contribution, in respect of certain
employees, is made to a government administered fund and charged as an expense to the Statement of Profit
and Loss. The above benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Group has no further
obligations beyond the manthly contributions.

h) Defined Benefit Plan

The Group provides for gratuity which is a defined benefit plan the liabilities of which is determined based on
valuations, as at the balance sheet date, made by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit
method. Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, in respect of gratuity are recognised in
the OCI, in the period in which they occur and is not eligible to be reclassified to the Statement of Profit and
Loss in subseguent periods. Past service cost is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year of
plan amendment or curtailment. The classification of the Group's obligation into current and non-current is as
per the acluarial valuation report.

¢} Leave entittemeant and compensated absences

Accumulated leave which is expected to be utilised within next twelve months, is treated as shorl-lerm
employee benefil. Leave entitlement, other than short term compensated absences, are provided based on a
actuarial valuation, similar o that of gratuity benefit. However, as the Company does not have an unconditional
right to defer settlement for these obligations, the above liabilities are presented as current. Re-measurement,
comprising of actuarial gains and losses, in respect of leave entitltement are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss in the period in which they occur.

d) Short-erm henefits

Short-term employee benefits such as salaries, wages, performance incentives elc. are recognised as
expenses at the undiscounted amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the period in which the related
service is rendered. Expenses on non-accumulating compensated absences is recognised in the period in
which the absences ocour.

Inventories

Inventories which comprise of raw malerials, work-in-progress / semi-linished goods, finished goods, stock-in-
trade, packing materials and consumables, chemicals, stores and spares are carried at the lower of cost or net
realizable value. The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis.

Cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and cond) c.
rebates and discounts. The cost is delermi :
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s Baw Materials, Traded goods, Packing Malerials and Consumables, chemicals, slores and spares are valued
using the weighted average method.

» Finished goods and work-in-progress | semi-finished goods are valued at the cost of raw materials along with
fixed production overheads being allocated on the basis of normal capacity of production facilities.

Met roalisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimaled costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheel comprises of cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three month or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker regularly monitors and reviews the operating
resull of the whole Group as one segment of "Manufacture and sale of alcoholic beverages (wines and spirits)".
Thus, as defined in Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments”, the Group's entire business falls under this one
operational segment and hence the necessary information has already been disclosed in the Balance Sheet
and the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Foreign currency transactions and balances
{a) Initial Recognition

Foreign currency transactions are initially recarded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign
currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of
the fransaction.

(b} Conversion

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are reported using the closing rate at the
reporting date. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign
currency are reported using the exchange rate al the date of the transaction.

{c) Trealment of Exchange Difference

Exchange differences arising on settlement/ restatement of shortterm foreign currency monetary assets
and liabilities of the Group are recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised at a point in time when control of the goods or services
is transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Based on the Educational Material on Ind AS 115 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
("ICAI"), the Group has assumed that recovery of excise duly flows fo the Group on its own account and hence
is a liability of the manufacturer which forms part of the cost of production, irrespective of whether the goods
are sold or not. Since the recovery of excise duty flows to the Group on its own account, revenue includes
excise duty. However, sales lax/value added tax (VAT), goods and services tax (GST) is not received by the
Group on its own account and is {ax collected on value added lo lhe commodity by the seller on behalf of the
governmenl. Accardingly, it is excluded from revenue.

fa) Revenue from sale of products

Revenue is recognised when control of the product transfers, there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the customer's acceplance of the products and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amaount
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(b} Revenue from services
Revenue from services represents revenue from hospitality services mainly comprise of sale of room nights,
food and beverages and allied services relating lo the resort and winery operations. Revenue is recognized
at a point in time when the services are rendered and is disclosed net of allowances.

(c) Interest Income
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and
the rate applicable.

(d) Dividend Income
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the right to receive payment has been eslablished,
provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income can
be measured reliably.

(e} Other Income
Other items of income are accounted as and when the right to receive such income arises and it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.

Government Grants

Grants and subsidies from the Governmenl are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the grant
/ subsidy will be received and all attaching conditions are complied with. Government grants relaled lo revenue
under Wine Industry Promotion Subsidy linked with Value Added Tax, are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss in the period in which they become receivable. Where the grant or subsidy relates to an asset (i.e.
Export Promotion Capilal Goods scheme), it is presented in the balance sheet by selling up the grant as
deferred income which is recognised as income in the statement of profit and loss linking to the fulfiliment of the
associated export obligations.

Trade receivables

A receivable is classified as a ‘trade receivable’ if it is in respect of the amount due on account of goods sold or
services rendered in the normal course of business, Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amorlised cost using the EIR method, less provision for impairment. Trade
receivables ageing has been presented based on the date of transaction. Further, in respect of trade receivables
from Government Corporations, payments are received on lump-sum basis instead of an invoice-by-invoice
settlement. Accordingly, the callections/ realisations from corporalion trade receivables are accounted against
the earliest outstanding invoice.

Trade payables

A payable is classified as a 'trade payable’ if it is in respect of the amount due on account of goods purchased
or services received in the normal course of business. These amounts represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Group prior to the end of the financial year which are unpaid. These amounts are
unsecured and are usually settled as per the payment terms stated in the contract. Trade and other payables
are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They
are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequenlly measured at amortised cosl using the EIR method.
Trade payables ageing has been presented based on the dale of transaction.

Income Tax

Income tax comprises of current and deferred income tax. Income tax is recognised as an expense or income
in lhe Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent it relates lo items directly recognised in equity or in
OCl.

a) Current Income Tax

Current income tax is recognised based on the estimated lax liability computed after taking credit for
allowances and exemptions in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961, Current income tax assets and
liabilities are measured at the amount ex egtﬁv :
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tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at
the reporling date,

b) Deferred Income Tax

Deferred (ax is determined by applying the Balance Sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences between the consolidated financial statements’ carrying
amount of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax base. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using the enacted tax rales or tax rates that are substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet dale.
The effect on deferred tax assets and liabiliies of a change in tax rates is recognised in the period that
includes the enactment date. Deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. Such assels
are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to reassess realisation.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is alegally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entily has a legally enforceable right
lo offset and intends either o settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Share Based Payments

Share based compensated benefits are provided to certain grades of employees in consideration of the services
rendered. Under the equity settled share based payment, the fair value on the grant date of the instrument given
to employees is recognised as 'employee benefits expenses' with a corresponding increase in equity over the
vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be salisfied. The fair
value of the options at the grant date is calculated by an independent valuer basis Black Scholes model. At the
end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options thal are expected to vest based on
the non-market vesting and service conditions. It recognizes the impact of the revision lo original estimates, if
any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity. Upon exercise of share options, the proceeds
received are allocated to share capital up to the par value of the shares issued with any excess being recorded
as share premium.

Leases

The Group's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land, building and vehicles. The Group assesses
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A confract is, or contains, a lease il the contract
conveys the right to contral the use of an identified asset for a period of lime in exchange of the consideration.

At the date of the commencement of the lease, the Group recognises a right-of-use assel representing its right
to use the underlying asset for the lease term and a corresponding lease liability for all the lease arrangements
in which it is a lease, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value
leases. For these shorl-term and low value leases, the Group recognises the lease payments as an operating
expense on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised al cost, which comprises the inilial amount of the |lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease. They are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated from the commencement dale on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful
life of the underlying assel. The estimated useful life of the assets are determined on the same basis as those
of property, plant and equipment,

Right-of-use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their carrying amounis may not be recoverable. Carrying amount of right-of-use asset is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its eslimated recoverable
amount.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the fulure lease payments. The
future lease payments are discounted using the interest rale implicit in the lease or, if nol readily determinable,
using the incremental borrowing rates. For a lease with reasonably similar characteristics, the Group, on a lease
by lease basis, may adopt either the incremental_borrowing rate spu_.ﬁu:: he lease or the incremental
borrowing rate for the porlfolio as a whole. . b,
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Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities have been separalely presented in the Balance Sheet. Further, lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Business Combhinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The acquisition method involves the
recognition of the acquiree's identifiable assets and liabilities, including contingent liabilities, regardless of whether
they were recorded in the financial statements prior to acquisition, On initial recognition, the assets and liabilities
of the acquired business are included in the balance sheet at their fair values, which are also used as the bases
for subsequenl measurement in accordance with the Group's accounting policies. Goodwill is stated after
separating out identifiable intangible assets. Goodwill represents the excess of acquisition cost over the fair value
of the Group's share of the identifiable net assets of the acguiree at the date of acquisition. Any excess of
identifiable net assets over acquisition cost is recognised in the other comprehensive income on the acquisition
date and accumulated in equity as capital reserve.

Acquisition related costs are accounted for as expenses in the period in which they are incurred and the services
are received.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

As at each Balance Sheel date, the Group assesses whether there is an indication that a non-financial asset may
be impaired and also whether there is an indication of reversal of impairment loss recognised in the previous
periods. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group determines
the recoverable amount and impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount.

Recoverable amount is determined:
- In case of an individual asset, at the higher of the assets' fair value less cost to sell and value in use; and

- In case of cash generating unit (a group of assets that generates identified, independent cash flows), at the higher
of cash generating unit's fair value less cost to sell and value in use.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted lo their present value using pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specified to the asset.
In determining fair value less cost to sell, recent market transaction are taken into account. If no such transaction
can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. Impairment losses of continuing operations, including
impairment on inventories, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except for properties previously
revalued with the revaluation taken to OCL For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OC| up to the
amount of any previous revaluation. When the Group considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of
the asset, the relevant amounts are written off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, then the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through the Statement of Profil and Loss.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events
and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation,
in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions (excluding gratuity and
compensated absences) are determined based on management's estimate required to sellle the obligation at the
Balance Sheet date. In case the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due lo the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to
reflect the current management estimates.

The Group recognises a provision in respect of an onerous contract when the expected benefits to be derived from
a contract is lower than the unavoidable cosls of meeling the future obligations under the contract. The provision
is measured at lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of fulfilling the
contract. Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events, whose
existence would be confirmed by the occurrence GWETE%E‘FC_ rrence of one or more uncertain future events nol
wholly within the control of the Group. A conting in fiabilily 4 e ;, wherae a liability cannot be




recognised because it cannot be measured reliably, Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic
benefits is probable.

xxix. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the pericd attributable lo the equity
shareholders of the Group by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted
for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares, that have changed the
number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources,

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Group and weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earmings
per equity share and also the weighled average number of equity shares thal could have been issued upon
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds
receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the
outstanding equity shares).

xxx. Exceptional ltems

When items of income and expense within profit or loss from ordinary activities are of such size, nature or
incidence that their disclosure is relevant to explain the performance of the enterprise for the period, the nature
and amount of such material items are disclosed separately as exceptional items.

MNote 2.2 Recent accounting pronouncements

Amendment to Ind AS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") vide notification dated 23 March 2022, has issued an amendment to Ind
AS 16 which specifies that an entity shall deduct from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds received from selling items produced while the entity is preparing the asset for its intended use (for
example, the proceeds from selling samples produced when testing a machine to see if it is functioning properly).

Amendment to Ind AS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

MCA vide notification dated 23 March 2022, has issued an amendment to Ind AS 37 which specifies that the cost
of fulfilfing a contract comprises: the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract and an allocation of other costs that
relate directly to fulfilling contracts.

Amendment to Ind AS 103, Business Combinations

MCA vide notification dated 23 March 2022, has issued an amendment to Ind AS 103 and has added a new
exception in the standard for liabilities and contingent liabilities.

Amendment to Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments

MCA vide notification dated 23 March 2022, has issued an amendment to Ind AS 109 which clarifies that which fees
an entity should include when it applies the '10%' test in assessing whether to derecognize a financial liability. An
entity includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or
received by either the entity or the lender on the other's behalf
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Sula Vineyards Limited {Formerly Sula Vinayards Privale Limited)
Summary of significan accounting policies and offier explanatory Information to the consalidated financials statemant as af and for the year endad 31 March 2022
{Amount in ¥ mililon, unless othanwise stated)

Asat Az at
31 March 2022 27 March 2021
Mote & Inviestiments

Man-current

Investments in equlty shares valuad at fair value through other comprehensive income, unguoted fully paid

The Saraswal Co-operative Bank 0.03 0.
2 500 (31 March 2021: 2,500) equity shares of 2 10 each
Taotal 0.03 iE!
Dedalls:

Aggragate of non-current investments:

(i) Aggregale value of guated invesiments and rmarkel valie thereaf - =
{ii} Aggregate value of unguoled ivesimenls 0.03 0.03
(i) Agaregate vale ol impairment of investments =

(i} Investments carricd 2 deemead cost a

(i) Dvestments carried at amortized cosl ; =
{iii} Investmeants carded al ki value theough other comprehunsive income 0.03 003
{iv) Ieeslnenis carmed at fair vales through geali]l and loss . -

003 0.03

Mole B Loans

Non-current

Loang

- to employess 16.19 10,490
= o b 3.02 -
Total non-current loans 21 10.90%
Current

Loans

-t employeess 11.51 11,35
Total current loans 11.51 11.35
Total loans Tz 2225

# Suoured by wary of prrsonal guarantes from the Directar of Flamingo Wines Sompany Private Limited

Ereak-up of security details

Loans receivable cunsidersd gond - secwred - -
Laang receivable considerad good - unsccored .72 2205
Loans recaivable which howe significant increase in credif sk . -
Loans (eceivabla - credit impaired -

Tolal 30.72 ]

Maote 6.1 Disclosure under Section 166(4) of the Companies Act, 2013

Loan given fo others during e year:
Flarningo Wines Company Privats Limiled 302 =+

I hie above loan is for U purpose of mesting the working capilal requirement.

Note T Other financial assets

Mon-curral

Government granks receivabie 163.72 188.75
Securily depnsits 29.54 27.97
Banks dupusits wilh maturty of mara than 12 monihs 16.42 0.52
{plerdged with excise authorilics or earmarked against bank guaranines taken)

Total non-current financlal assets 209,68 21824
Current

Gowormmient grants recaivabis 71346 454,19
Larurity deposits 1.14 1.02
Infrrest accrued 249 366
Cithers 18.72 5
Total current financial assets T36.21 466, ET

Total other fimancial assets 945,09 GBT.11




Sula Vineyards Limitad (Formerly Sula Vireyards Private Limited)
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory informalion to the consolidated financials stidermont as at and for the year endad 31 March 2022
{Amount in F million, unless otherwise stated)

Mota 8 Income tax lisbilitles {net)
i. The fallawing table provide the details of income tax Habilities and tax assals:

As al As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{al Income tax abililics 31305 12,70
(b} Imcoeme tax assets (300.63) _{1.e)
Net Income tax liakilitics 12.42 11.91
Courrent income tax linbilities in case of an endity 14.63 12,70
Man-current tax assets in cabe of an entily _ = (211} 1.39)
Mat Incom: Gax liabllitles 12.42 1131
il. The gross movemant in the current Income tax assetsl (liabilities) is as follows:
Met current income tax liabilily | (assets) at the beginning 1131 (23.91)
Incurne s refund recebved ! (1ax paid) [nel] (10E.8T) T1.56
Currant 1ax expensy 16512 ZRET
Inlerest antax paysble 2,56 1.7
Transferred Lo assels of a disposal group clessified os hekd for saie (refer noda 14.1) - 0482
Het current income tax liabilitics al the end o 12.42 11.31

Year ended Year ended

41 March 2022 31 March 2021

ili. Incoma tax expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss comprises:

Current tax expense 16512 2EET
Drzlzrred fax credir .86 (18.86)
Income tax expenses [net) = 173,98 B

Iv. & reconciliation of the income 1ax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income Lax rate to the profit befors income taxes is as below:

Year ended i el
31 March 2022 51 March 2021

Profit before incomas lax 695.57 3186
Applicable ncome tax rate 2517% 25.17%
Computed expectad tax sxpensa 175.03 5.02
Effiact of expanses hal are nnt deductivle for detarmining ahle profits 1.95 239
Fiiect of deferred tax ssset wiitlen-oll h.32 H
Effsot of delored e assets not created on fosses of subsidiary {4.33) (6.19)
T'ax Impact on consolidatud sdjusiment {3-08) (2.35)
173,90 184
Earfier year fax adjuslmenls = 1.9
Income tax expense charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss 173.90 S8

v, Components of deferred income tax assets and liabilities arising on account of temporary differences are:
Az al Asal
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

[a) Defarrad tax liabiliies

- Tirning difference on largible and Intangibie asssts deprecialion and amorisatian = 27760 276.75
277.60 27575
(o) Deferred tax assets
- Expngses alliwanle on payment basis 40.39 47.57
- Business loss § unabsorhed depreciation .22 -
Trpalrment allowables on finandiaks asseis 2076 24
- Othars 36.63 41,00
108.99 11601
Total deferred tax liabilities (net) 168,61 159,74

vi. Movemant in components of deferred tax assats and deferreid tax liabilities are as follows:

Fieling Srrengs o6 Expenses  Business loss [ I|npai:|11ent
- . allowable on
m:s;:i: ::‘;::?;?‘;:lc allpwalile on unabsorbed financlals Others Total
R payment basia  depreciation assets
(A} (B} ic) {0 (E} E=(al-(B)-(C)-
(o)
Al 1 g 2080 S05.04 11933 .25 014 17HE
-t profit or loss [28.15) [72:07) - 20,89 A0_BG {18.63)
- to other compeehonsive income . 0.84 - - [0.04)
- transferred to assat bold for sals 1014} [0.23) = < 014
A al 31 March 2024 = 47575 4787 - FIAL 41.00 159.74
- to profit o luss 145 (7.481 3.72 1.62 [1.37} [l

As at 31 March 2022 277460 40.33 EFF 20,76 36.63 168,61




Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financials statement as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Amount in ¥ million, unless otherwise stated)

Note 9 Other assets

Non-current

Capital advances

Balances with government autherities
Prepaid gratuily (refer note 34)
Prepaid expenses

Total other non-current assets

Current
Advance to suppliers
Less: Impairment provision

Balances with government authorities

Prepaid expenses
Total other current assets

Total other assets

Mote 10 Inventories

Work-in-progress / Semi-finished goods
Finished goods

Stock-in-trade [including goods-in-transit of ¥ 11.68 million (31 March 2021 :2 7.43 million})]
Consumables, chemicals, stores and spares [including goods-in-transit: Nil (31 March 2021: 7 0.99 millian)]
Packing materials [including goods-in-transit: Nil (31 March 2021: 2 0.99 million)]

Total inventories

Note 10.1

Stock-in-rade [including goods-in-transit of ¥ 11.68 million (31 March 2021:% 7.43 million))
Less: Transfer to assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale (refer note 14.1)

Less: Intercompany stock margin elimination (Refer nole 14.1)

MNote 11 Trade receivables

Trade receivablas
Total trade receivables

Trade receivables considered good - secured

Trade receivables considered good - unsecurad

Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk
Trade receivables - credit impaired

Total

Impairment allowance:

Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk
Trade receivables - credit impaired

Total trade receivables

Notes:

11.1 Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and generally on terms of 30 to 80 days.

As at

As al
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

2.64 0.78
23.70 34.01
- 0.42
0.51 222
26.85 37.43
131.82 161.72
(123.72) (122.36)
8.10 39.36
13.27 9.74
23.94 26.09
45.31 75.19
72.16 112.62
1,202.42 1,045.99
212.69 150.87
86.46 167.29
42.91 27.23
78.14 57.94
1,622.62 1,439.32
86.46 222.06
i (64.77)
86.46 167.29
(14.26)
86.46 143.03
1,093.94 1,236.17
1,093.94 1,236.17
1,093.94 1.236.17
78.35 33.32
1,172.29 1,269.49
{78.35) (33.32)
1,093.94 1,236.17

11.2: There are no trade receivables due from any director or any officer of the Group, either severally or jointly with any other persan, or from any firms or private companies in which

any director is a pariner, a director or a member.

11.3 Trade receivable ageing schedule

Outstanding for following periods from the transaction date

As at 31 March 2022

(i) Undisputed trade receivables- considerad good -
(ii) Undisputed trade receivables which have -
significant increase in credit risk

(iii) Undisputed trade receivables - credit impaired

{iv) Dispuled trade receivables-considered good -
(v} Dispuled trade receivables which have significant -
increase in credit risk

{vi} Disputed trade receivables - credit impaired -

Not due Less than 6 months g 1-2 years 2-3 Years More than S Total
-1 year years
972.69 3127 76.03 10.58 348 1,003.94
6.05 0.15 0.68 0.11 0.03 7.03
21.03 16.06 5.72 6.05 22.46 71.32
- 999.67 47.48 82.43 16.74 25.97 1,172.29

Mote: There are no unbilled dues for the reporting period.




Sula Vineyards Limitad (Formesly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Summary of significant accounting pelicies and other explanatory information te fhe consolidated financials statemant as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Amount in F million, unless otherwise stated)

Cutstanding for following periods from the transaction date )

At 31 Maxch 2028 HNot due Lass than & months ol 1-2 years 2-3 Years Mo fhar 3 Total
=1 yizar Yars
{iy Undisputad trade receivahlos- considered good - 1,05, 40 82.55 734 5143 2.20 123617

(i) Undispuled trade recuivobies which have -
sifrilicand increase in credit risk

(i) Linddigputed trade receivables - credil impained - 376 1 BT ) 0.28 003G . 304
{fw) Disputed lade receivahles-considered good . - - - - - -
(v} Disputed lrade receivahles which have significant - - - - -

nerenss in credit sk

{wi) Dispused trada receivables - credil impairad - _ 144 0.18 373 11.v0 1233 29.34
1.070.65 B30 B1.35 19.86 14.53 1,269.49

Maota: Thers are no unbificd duees far the reporting period. .
As at A5 3l

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Nota 12 Cash and cash equivalents

Balancas wilh banks in curren? aooounts 101.67 417.5H
Cash oo hand 032 0.32
Total cash and cash eguivialems 101.99 407.81

Mot 12,1: There are no repatriation resiriction with regasd fo csh and cash equivalants as al Hic end of the reparting period and prior periods.

MNote 13 Bank balances other than cash and cash eguivalents

Bank deposis with malurily of mare than 3 months bt lees than 12 muonihs 13,85 104,71
Farmarked balances in bank (held as rargin monsy or sacurity agains: bormswings, guaraniee and niher commitments)

Total bank balances other than cash and cash equivalenis 83,85 1041

Mote 14 Non-current assets and disposal group classifled as held for sale

Assets of & aiposal group classified os boekd (e sk (refer note 141 below) - 224,14
Office promisis aong with pant and equipment and furniiure! Riunes {refer note 14.2 below) - 6.0
- 32084

Note 14.4: The Holding Company In March 2021 entered indo a Memorandum of Understanding {MOU7] for salke of its investment In Progressive Alobey Dishibuloes Limiled
{PADPLY lor o tolal consideration of ¥ 20.69 million. Accordingly, the assodiated asssts and Fabilitics of PAITPL atong with the goodwill on acguisition (he ‘dispassl group') wene
claseified as hald for sale and the resullan] impaisment Inss of $ 2241 milion was eeognised againet the goodwill as at 31 March 2021, On 1 April 2021, the sale has been consluded
and sak: considosalion has heen received, Also refar nofo 31,

Particulars = T millicn 7 mitlien
Assets

Property, plasd and couigmeant - 16.04
Loans and advances . 1.8
Irvyzsfrnls 2 .76
Inventories = T8.02
Trade recelvabie = 112,58
Cash and cash cyuivalens - 0.40
Bank halances other than cash amd cash equivalents - 11.25
Income tax assels x B
eferrad taw asssts - 0.8
Diher current assets - 128
Gootwid [net ol Ings on disposal group ciassified as hold o sale agoregating 7 2241 million. Also reler nolc 31) - 4.50
Total - - FER.4D
Less: imtarcomparyy eEminalion = {14.76)
Assets of a disposal group classifled as held for sale - 7404
Parficulars ¥ million F million
Liabilities

Trade and olher paymbles 4 102.42
Short-term borrowings - E1.98
Mon-condioling interest - 2451
Todlal = 208.71
| et indercompany elimination . (FE2EE)
Liabilitles of a disposal group classified as held for sale ¢ 135.85

Mote 14.2; Basis (he inlention 1o dispose an office premises, curlain plant and equipmend and furniture? fxlues along with the office premises with an aggregate carying value ¥
100,50 million, wers ciassified 35 "Non-curent assel as held for sale” 25 2t 31 March 2021, Based on vaksalicn of the aforesaid sssets by an indepondent valuer, the fair vaiue less
ozt to sell was determined as 2 9670 millon. Accordingly, an impairmenl loss of £ 11,80 mifion was recognized during yoar ended 51 March 2021

Durineg the currant year, the Holiling Compary has completed the sale of (e premises for an aggregate conzideration ol 3 7965 milkan {nes of cost to sell). As a resull, an additional
Iiss ol @ 17.05 millon has been recagnised in the nancial stalement for the year ended 31 Masch 2022,

As at A al

31 March 2022 231 March 2021
Particulars
Building 102,86 102.86
Pl aned gopsiprsent 1.69 1.89
Furrilsss and fixtures 395 b
Carrying value [WDV) of asseis hold for sale 108,50 100,50
Impairment ks on cassification of assets classifiod s bokf for sabe (refar note 28) {28.85) {1%.80)

{7965
e 96,70

Less: Szkes consideration (nel off ozl 1o sales)
Fair value {less cost to sall)




Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other expl ry information ta the consolidated financials statement as at and for the year ended 31 March
2022

{Amount in # milllon, unless otherwise stated)

As at As al
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Note 15 Equity share capital

Autherised share capital

10,10,30,000 Equity shares of & 2 each [Refer note 15(h]] 202.06 202.06
(31 March 2021; 20,208,000 equily shares of ¥ 10 each)
Total authorised share capital 202.08 202.06
Issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital:
7,85,98,091 Equity shares of 2 2 each fully paid up 157.20 150.80
(31 March 2021; 15,080,374 equily shares of 2 10 each)
Total issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital 167.20 150,80

. Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Number # million

As at 1 April 2020 1,50,44,188 150.44
Issued during the year [refer note 15(g)] 2,012 0.07
Shares warrants converted during the year [Refer note 15(f)] 34174 0.34
As at 31 March 2021 1,50,80,374 150.80
Employee slock options exercised during the year [refer note 43) 30,000 0.30
Total outstanding shares before share split 1,61,10,374 161.10
Impact of share sglit [refer note 15(h}] 6,04,41,496 -
Total outstanding shares post share split 7,55,61,870 151,10
Issued during the year (Refer nole below) 13,75,000 2.75
Shares warrants converied during the year [Refer note 15(f)) 16,71,221 3.35
As at 31 March 2022 7,B5,98,091 167.20

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Helding Company has issued 1,375,000 equity shares of ¥ 2 each issued at premium of 238 per share on preferential
basis.

b. Termsirights attached to equity shares:

The Holding Campany has only one class of equity shares having a par value of # 2 per shere (Z 10 per share unlil 30 July 2021) . Each holder of equity share s enfilled to
ane vate per share, The Holding Company declares and pays dividends in Indlan Rupees. The dividend proposed by Ihe Board of Direclors, if any, is subject to the approval
af the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeling, excepl interm dividend, if any.

I the event of liguidation of the Holding Company, the helders of equity shares will be entilled to recelve remaining assets of the Group, after distribulion of all preferential
amounts, The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

¢, Shareholding of more than 5%: As at 31 March 2022* As al 31 March 2021
Name of the Shareholder MNo. of shares % held Mo, of shares % held
Rajeev Samant 2,00,91,660  26.56% 36,12,621 23.96%
Werinvest Asia Pte Lid. 1,76,42,276  22.45% 35,28,456 23.40%
Vedinvest 5.A 71,91,835 9,16% 14,368,367 9.54%
Cofintra S.A, 71,891,835 9.15% 14,38 367 9.54%
Mis. Verlinvest France S.A 66,79,565 8.37% 13,15913 B.73%
Ruta Samant 44,77,240 5.70% 4,87 724 3.23%
As per records of the Holding Company, including its register of shareholdersimembers and other dedlarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial inleres, the
above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

* Refer note 15(h)
d. Shares reserved for issue under Employee Stock Optl 5ch (ESOS):

As al 31 March 2022, the Holding Company has issued 2,611,510 (31 March 2021: 166,281) employee stock options under the Employes stack option scheme of the Holding
Caompany lo its employees. (refer note 43)

&, Bonus shares [ buy back | shares for consideration other than cash issued during past five years
(i) Aggregate number and class of shares aliotted as fully paid up pursuant Lo confracls without payment being received in cash - Nil

FY 2020-21: 2,012 equity shares (of face value ¥ 10 per share) at a premium of ¥ 716.93 per share
FY 2019-20 : 2,746 equity shares (of face value ¥ 10 per share) at a premium of # 921,76 per share
FY 2018-19 2,441 and 2,118 equity shares (of face value ¥ 10 per share) at a premium of £ 750 and ¥ 840 per share respectively.

(il) Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares - Nl
(iiiy Aggregate number and class of shares bought back - Mil




=

Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory Information to the consolidated financlals statement as at and for the year ended 31 March
2022

{Amount in T million, unless otherwise statad)

. Share warranis issued and converbed

(i} As al 31 March 2021 the Company had issued conveslible equity shares as follows

No of equily
Financial shares to be
year inwhich  Number of warrants Mumber of Mo of warrants issued post
warranis pulstanding as at e wearrants outstanding as al 31 exercise of
have been 1 April 2020 P converted March 2021 share
issued warranis by
the holder
2014-15 47,600 S04 34,174 23335 23,396
2016-17 75,200 LEd - 75,200 V5,200
2017-18 1,50, 405 LER 1,560,400 1,680,400
#018-19 75,200 Tl i 76,200 T5,200
201814 208,000 BED - 229,000 228,070
Total 5.87.370 34.174 5,593,186 5.53.196
{ii} As al 31 March 2027 the Company has issuod converlible equity shares as follows
" Financial Pre share split Post share split®
year in which ) T
warrants Murmber of Mo of warrants “!ﬂ of erity ShE'EE_' e
Number of issued post crercise of
have been Number of warrants z warrants oulstanding as at 31
Exproisc warranls  Exercise % share warrants by the
issued pulstanding  as at e s wice converted March 2022 bleheer
1 April 2021 H ¢ (b) [ic) = (a} - (bY] *
{a) {d}
TR 23,326 509 116,630 102 116,630 = =
2016-17 75,200 nEd 37,000 "7 A¥EO00 - -
2017-18 150,400 631 TSE00 126 TH2.000 - -
2018-19 75,200 Tl 376,000 152 376,000 =
2018-14 229070 BED 1,145,350 170 L0581 1,094,759 1,094,759
2021-22 - - 1.008,025 170 - 1,908,025 1,908,025
Total 553,196 4,674,005 1,671,221 3,002,784 3,002 784

A refer nole 15{h)
{ii) The share warrants for financial year 2014-15 have boen issued on payment of 10% amount of exercise price al Whe ime of subscnption and the balance o be pald on
comversion, wilh a right o convert them into equivalent numbsen of equity shares any fime before the Initial Public Offaring [ Chualified Institutional Flacomend

{iii) The warranis from finansial year 2016-17 to finsncial yaar 2018-19 have been |ssued at ¥ 10 each fully paid up at e time of subseription and the balance to be paid on
camversion, wilk a right 1 conwerl them inte equivalent number af equily shares any fime before the Initial Public Oifering f Gualified Instinutional Placement

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2022, share warranis have been issued al MNil at the time of subscripion. The enlire amount 1o be pald on conversion, with a right 1o
comvert them into equivalont numbser of equity shares any time bafare the nilial Public Offering / Qualified Institutional Placement.

{v}) The above wamants on conversion stall iank par passu in all respects with lhe exisling (ully pald up equity shares of the Holding Company except for dividend which shall
b pro-rata from the date of comversion,

#5 The halders of the aforesaid share warrants have exsrcised their right o conven these wamants after tha reporting date (e, 51 March 2022, Since exercise of share
wearrants have takan afier he reporling date, in accordance with the roquitemenis of Ind AS, no adjustments are required Lo be mads 1o the financial statements as al and for
the year ended 31 March 2022, Including earnings per share ard oliier acceunting ratios stated elsewhers in these linancial statements (Refer note 51)

Shareholding of promoters:
Az on 31 March 2022
Particulars Promoter's Mame Mo, of % of total No. of o of total % change
shares at shares shares at shares during the yoar
the the end of
baginning of the year
“Equity sharcs of 2 2 each, fully paid up Mr. Rajeey Samant 18,063,105 396% 2009160 2650% 1 B0%

*aftar cansidering impact of sharo splil | Hefer note 15(h]]

Ason 21 March 2021

Particulars Promoter’s Name No. of % of total Mo, of % of total % change
shares at shares shares at shares during the year
the the e of
beginning of the year
the yoar
Friety shares of T 10 each, fully paid wp br. Rajeav Sarmanl 3578447 23.79% AE12.62 25.065% 0.17%

Pursuznl 1o e resolution passed by the Goard of Directoss of the Holding Company and approval of the members st the 18th Annual Geneeal Meeling of the Holding
Company held on 30 July 2021, each Equity Share of nominal face value of T 10 cach was sub-divided 10 & (flve) Equity Share of 7 2 gach. The effective date for the said sub.
divisinn was 30 July 2021. The impact of share split of shares has bean acogudipaly considered for the computation of Earming Per Share as per the requirements of Ind AS
33, Funher, the outstanding number of share warrants and their respech ke




Sula Vineyards Limiled (Formerfy Sula Vineyards Private Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policles and other explanatory information to the consolidated financials statement as &t and for the year ended 31 March

2022

{Amount in F million, untess olherwise stated)

Note 16 Borrowings

I Mon-current borrowings

Secured

Term lean fram banks (reler nele 16,1 hebow)

Unzecured

Deferred =alos Lax labililies (refer note 16.2 below)

Less: Current malurities of long-lenm borrowings

Il Current borrowings

Securad

Loans from banks

- Working capital domard loans (repayable on demand) (refor nole 16.3 below)
- Cazh credil laciliies (repayable on demand) (refer nobe 16,3 below)

- Buyer's credit {refer note 16.4 below)
- Current malurities of leng-tesm bormowings

Unsecurad

Cihies bank loans (refer nole 18,5 below)

- Current malurities of long term borrowings

Total current borrowings

Total borrowings {1+]

Az at A al
31 March 2022 51 March 2021

820,64 ul,91
0.37 233
B21.01 003,24
(340.34) [4B2.05)
480.67 581.10
1,267.50 167150
- 1.44
2 502
339.97 40008
1,627.47 212365
130.80 205,76
0.37 1.6
181,17 297.72
1,808.64 242137
3,280.31 301256

Maote 16.1: Details of security and terms of repayment of non-current borrowings

As at 31 March 2022

- Arnount
Pisrioulars Numbar of mst_al!mems i Rate of Security
Outstanding / Interest
installmemnt
Rupoe eam |1 quarterly instaliment T4.44 T.7% Exclusive chaige on Holding Company's immovable assels - commercial unit premizes (building).
koan
Fupesterm |10 guariery Installments 10,31 7.75%  |Flrst par passu charge on lolding Company's exlsting and future mevable property, plant and
loan equipmant and charge on immovable assels
Rupes lenm |6 quartery installmenls 1124 7.A6% to | First pari passw on Holding Company's existing and fulure mavable property, plant and equipment and
toan T.AD exclusive charge on immovable assets - commercial unil premises (building ).
Rupealerm  |# quarerdy installments B.25 £.05% 1o |Fixed Deposit of (.35 and subserient charge on current assels of Holding Compary.
loan A0
Rupeo lemm |7 quarerdy installments 524 $.A5% to | Exclusiva charge an immovahle assets - commercial unit promises (hislding) of Helding Company.
loan T-A%
Rupes lerm |8 guantery installments 12.50 7.7%to  |Fisst pari passu charge on Holding Company's exisliog and future movable property, plzal and
lzan 7.75%  |egupment and charge on immovable assels
Fupes lam |10 quarerly instalimonds 7.50 775% to |Firsl pari passu charge on Holding Company's cxisling and future movable property, plant and
loam B.00% equipment and charge on immovable assels
Rupsot leim |10 quanerly instaliments G858 7.A0%to |First pari passu charge on Holding Company's exisling and future movable property, plant and
loan a.0n%  |equipmenl and charge an immaovabls azsels
Fupee term |2 monihly inslallmenls 1141 TESM to  |Exclusive charme on Holding Company's immovable assets and Wine industry Produclion Subsidy
losan T.76% feceivahle ageing more than 180 days
Rupse term | 18 monthly installmients 5.56 7.20%  |Exclusive chame on Holding Company's immovable assels and Wine Indusiry Produclion Subsidy
I receivable ageing mare than 180 days
Rupee lenm |16 quarterly instaliments 10.94 THDS%  |First pani passu charge on Holding Company's esisling and future movable property, plant and
[EN aguipment and charge on immovable assels
Rupee erm |16 quartary installmenls 0.0 H.9%% Firsl pari passy on Subsidiary Company's enfire propery, plant and equipment, currenl assels;
Itaan inchuding Trade receivables both present and fulure.
Fupee lerm |16 quartery instzliments 034 gust  |First pari passu on Subsldiary Company's enlite proparly, plant and equipment, current assels,
loan inchuding Trade recelvables both preszent and fulure.
Rupce lerm |16 quarterly instaliments 158 B.05%  |First pari passu on Subsidlary Company's enline proporty, plant and equipment, current assels,
loan inchuding Trace recelvables both present and fulure,
Rupoe term |16 quarterly installments 53 8.95%  |First par passu on Subsidiary Company's enlire proporly, plant and equipment, curent assots,
[[=E1 inciuding Trade recelvables both present and fulure.




Sula Vineyards Limited (Formearly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and ofher explanatory information to the consolidated financials staterment as at and for the year ended 31 March
2022

{Amount in T million, unless otherwise stated)

A= at 31 March 2021

Amctnt
. Mumber of installments Rate of :
Securi
Particulars Dutstanding par Interest y
= Installment 5 :
Rupea term |5 quanely ingtallments 14.44 B.55% 1o |Fxclusive charge on immovable ssssts - commercial unit promises (building) of Holding Compary.
lzan 9.60%
Fupee term |14 quanery instalments 10,31 B.00%  |Firsl pari passu charge on Haolding Company's exlsting and fulsre movable properly, plant and
lan eguipment and charge on immovablo assels
Rupee term 10 quarioely instalments 1124 7A5%  [First pan passu on Helding Company's exlsting and future movable properly, plant and equipment. and
lcxan sulymive charge on immovable assels - commercial und premisos (buiding).
Rupee term F6 quarderdy inslallments 12.50 7.80%  |Fixed deposit of 0,35 and subsendent chargs on curment assets of Holding Compasy.
Ll
Rupee term |6 quaredy instalnenls 521 TE5% tn  |Lxclusive charge on immovable assels - commercial unit premises (building) of Holding Gompany.
foan 5.00%
Fupeetesm |12 guarerly instzlments 12.50 B&h%  |First pari passu charge on Helding Company's sxisiing and future movable property, plant and
loan equipment and charge on Immovable 2zsels
Rupestarm |14 quarlerly instalments Tl i First par passu charge on Holding Company's - existing and. luluse movable propery, pant and
loan equipment and charge on imunovabie assets
Rupse ferm |14 quartory instalments A8 B0, |First par passu charge on lHolding Company's existing and fulme movable property, plant and
Ioan equipment and charge on immovable assets
Rupse tarm |18 guaderly installments 1441 775%  |Fuclusive charge on Hofding Company's Immovable assets and Wine Industny Promotion Subsidy
Ian receivable (ageing more lhan 180 days)

Motz 16,2 Defered sales 1ax loan is inleras) free and repayable in remaining 1 year as at 31 March 2022,

Hote 16,3: Working capital demand loans and cash credit facilities of Helding Company are repayable on demarsd, They carry interest rale ranging fiom 7.20% to 12.00%
(31 March 2021 | 7.50% to 11.00%] and are secued by all existing and fulure currenl sssels, movable and immovable properly, plant and equipment.

Working capilal demand lnans of Subsidiary Company are repayable on demard. They carry intersst rate of 8.60% p.a. and are secured by first par passu on ontine
Proporly, Plantand Equipment 2nd currenl assess, Incfuding trade receivables balh present and futare.

Nate 16.4: Buyer's credil ol Subsidiany Company camied an clfective interest rate of 7.35% p.a. and was repayabls in 180 days. This iz securcd by first charge on curment
aseets and collateral of 0.4x lixed deposits placed with the bank. This has been fully repaid during the yoar.

Mote 16.5: CHher Bark loans of Holding Company carry inlerest ranging from 7.20% lo 7.30% poa. (31 March 2021: 7.20% to 7.30%) and are repayable withing 1 yoar, Olier
harik loans includes shod-tem loan of Ml (21 March 2021: £ 190,00 million) carning an inlesesl rie of M3 March 2021: D.26% ) and 20e repayable within 160 days. Thuse
have bean fully repald during the yesr.

Mol 16.6 Met debt reconciliation
An znatysis of el debl of the Group and the movemenl in nel dehits for the years endad 31 March 2027 and 31 March 2021 is as lollons!
As at Az at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

{A) Cash and cash equivalonls {101.92) 07.91)
{B) Mon-currerd borsowings 4B0.67 501,19
() Gurrend borrowings 1,808.64 242137
{[¥) Interest payable 13.74 16.03
Met debt (E j=(A-B-C-D) 2,201.06 2068
Other assets Liabilities from financing activitles Total
Cashand Mon-current Current Interast [E } = (A-B-C-
cash borrowings  borrawing payable o)
equivalents (B) 5 {0y
(A) <)
heet debt as at 1 April 2020 AT T TER.Z5 289418 .76 3,338.18
Mel increase in cash and cazh equivalents [33.50} - - - {33,59)
Procesads from long-term bonowings - HMih2 - 217.52
Repaymenl of lerg-lerm borawings - (414,56} - 5 (414.58)
Mel repayment of short-term bonawings = {301.20) - [301.20)
Exchange rate Nucluations - i 0,35 - 0.6
Inlesast expenze - - - a0 66 30066
Interest paid - - (315,38 {315.29)
Less; Transierred to assets! liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale 040 (A1.98) - [A1.58)
Met debt as al 31 March 2021 (40791} 581,19 24437 16.03 262068
Mat decrease in ¢ash and cash eguivalents HE.05 - - . A0G.0a
Procesds from long-lerm borrewings - AT - - AEG7
Repayment of lung-lerm bormowings - [(417.19) - S {417.19)
Met repayment of shor-term barrewings = (G12.73) : [G12.73)
Interest exponse - = 200.07 200.07
Inlerest pald = 8 = {20:2.36) [#02.38)
zash and cash oguivalenls acouired (0,13} = - - {0.13)

Met debt as at 31 March 2022 {101.99) 46067 1,808.64 13.74 220106




Sula Vineyards Limited {Formorly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financials statement as at and for the year ended 31 March

2022

tamount in ¥ millicn, unless otherwiso stated)

Mole 16.7: Reconclliations of stock statement subimilled 1o banks with books of accounts where borrowings have been availed based on security of current

assats

Sula Vinayards Limiled

Quarter Mame of Bank Particulars Amount Amaount  Amount of Raason for material variances
ended asper reported in difference
hooks of the
accounts  gquarierdy
return!
statemant
March 2029  HDFC Bank Invendory 1,353.82 1,351.41 (241} The differance is due lo he submissians o the Banks wera
Folak Mahindra Bank made before financial reporting clogsure process
Saraswat Bank Trade Receivables 1,008.41 1,187.08 48.68 Tne submissions to the Banks wera mada before fingnclat
Als Bank reporting closure process
‘Yes Bank
“June 2021 HOFC: Bank Invenlory 1,306.12 1.304.12 (2.00) The difference i= due to the submissivns Lo lhe Banks were
fuis Bank made before financial repodding chosure process
Falak Mahindra Bank Trade Receivables at1.4h a04.30 {7.16) The dillerence |5 due to the submissicns Lo the Banks were
Saraznwat Bank miade hefore financial reporting closure process
Yen Bank
Soplember HOFG Rank Invwentary 1,187.40 1,163,072 {34.88) The difference |s due o the submissions Lo the Banks WerE
202 fuds Rank made befors financial reporting closure procoss
Kolak Malindra Bank Trade Raceivablas 1,000, 1,088,085 {2,145} The difference is due 1o the subnissions o the Banks weie
Laraswal Bank made before Tnancial reporting closure process
Yes Bank
Docember 2021 HOFC Bank frvaniony 01594 02560 49,74 The differance is due 1o Lhe submissions io the Banks were
Axiz Bank made before financial reparting closure process
Kotak Mahindra Bank Trade Recrivablos 1.514.11 1,515.00 0.50 The difference iz dus to the submissions e the Banks were
Saraswat Bank made before financial reporiing closure process
Yes Bank
March 2022  HDFC Bank Inventory 1,508:51 1,508.51 -
Ietak Mahindra Bank
Saraswsat Bank
Axis Bank Trade Recevables & - 3
Yas Bank R .02
Artisan Spirits Private Limited
Cluarter Name of Bank Pariculars Amount Amounl  Amount of Reason for material variances
ended as per reported in differcnce
books of the
aocounts  quarterly
returnl
statemenl
March 2021 I1CIC| Bank Irvenlary A6.13 B0.24 589 The diffierence is primanly on accounl of goods in transit
Included in the quarterly return.
Trads Receivablos 21037 22402 {13.65) The difference is due fo tho submissions o the Banks were
made before financial reporling closers process
June 2021 ICICT Bank Inventory BT.B3 L7.63 -
Trade Recsivablas 18415 TRBG.GT (242} The differance is maknly due to provision for doubliul debt not
corsiderad while submitting stock statomoenl
Septernber  SBM Bank Inwentany 106,54 03,52 307 The differcnce is due 1o the submissions 1o the Banks woere
2021 made belore financial reporting closure process
Trade Receivablas 191.25 188,92 132 The differsnce iz dus to the submissions lo lhe Banks were
mizde hefore financial reporfing closune process
Diecornier ShM Bark Inweznbary 1168.04 118.65 (0,61} The difference i due to the submissions o e Banks were
2021 made befare financial reporfing closune process
Trade Recaivabias 122,71 211.04 (11,33} The difference is due o the submissions to the Banks ware
made bolore linancial reporiing closudre process
March 2072 SBM Bank Ivveznlary 115.53 116.53 -
Trade Receivablas T8E0Z 18R.02 -
Mestes:

a) For the gquariers ended 30 June 2020, 30 Seplember 2020, 31 December 2020; the Group sutmitled quararly repors to banks based on internal operaticnal repars since
[l companies were not required Lo prepare financial statements on 2 quarlerly basis. Accordingly, Growp management has caried oul reconcifalion of the statemenis

submitted to banks with the books of accounts for the year ended 31 March 2021.

11} Mo Ioan avalled by Sula Intermational Limited,




Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)

summary of significant accounting polivios and olher explanatory information to the consolidated financials statement as at and for the year ended 21 March

2022
{Armount In ¥ million, unless otharwise statod)

A= at

Az at

31 March 2022 31 March 21

Motz 17 Lease Liabilities

Mon-current 62,43 {106
Currend 47.59 3895
Total lease labilitlas o 109.82 138,04
Nota: Reler note 40 for Ind A5 116 Leases and relaled disclosures

Hote 18 Provisions

Mon-curment

Prowdsian for employves banefits (Refer nota 34)

- Gratuity 19.92 09461
Tolal mon-current provisions 19.92 292.61
Currant
Presvizian for emplovee benedfils {Roeler nole 34)

- Gratuity 6,00 .00

- Compensated absences 21,23 .95
Total current provisions 27.23 1203
Total provisions 47.15 112.59
Mote 19 Trade payables
[al putstanding dues of micro enlorprises and small enlerprses [refer note 19.2) 4.78 9,71
Tetal cutstanding dues of credilors olbwer han micre enterprizes 2nd small enberprizas 669.67 S7LER
Total trade payables &74.45 FELI3
Mote 19,1 & Trade payables are non-interesl bearing and are normally seftled a= per the paymant lerms slated in the conlract,

MNote 18,2 : Ducs Lo micie, small and medium enterprisas 1o the exterd informalion available with the Group is given below:
{a) The principal amaunt and the inferest duo thereon remaining unpaid to supplier as at the end of year

- Principal amoent due to micro and small enterprises 4.7B 4.7

- Imerest dus 0.07 .08
(1) The amaunt of interest paid by the Buyor in berms of section 18 of the MSMED Act, 2006 afong with Lhe amaunls of the payment made
1wy the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year. = i}
{c) The amaunt of inleresl due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appuinled 0.5 068
day during the poriod) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006, ’ :
{d) The amount ol inleresl acerusd and remalning wnpaid at the end of e yea .42 0.r4
(2] The amaouni of further inleresl remaining dus and payable even in the succeading years, unlil such dale when the interest dues a3
ahove are actually paid 1o the small enterprise for the purpose of disaliowance as a deduclible expendiiure under section 23 of Lho 244 207
MSMED Act, 2006
Note 19.3: Trade Payalile agelng schedule

Quistanding from following period from the transaction date
As at 31 March 2022 i
5 a arc it Unbillad Laxss than 1-2¥ears  2-3 years More than 3 Total
Dues one year Years
(i) MSME - - 1.63 10 0.0 - 4,1f
{il) Others - 191.37 467.94 4.7 1.82 3m 69,36
{iii} Disputed dues- MEME - - - - - - o
{iv) Disputed ducs- Olivrs - - - 0.18 013 0.3
- 191.37 47262 4.37 2.05 4.04 674,45
=t Outstanding frem following perlod from the transaction date
Az at 31 March 2021 Nt disa Unbilled Less than 12 Years  2-3 years More than 3 Total
Dues one year Rars
(i) MEME - - 930 0.6 042 0.0z 9.%
(i) Others - 98.76 426,32 350 466 0oz G73.25
(1ii} Dispuled duos- MSME = * M = - = -
{iv) Disputed dues. Oliers . = 0,18 0.0 013 0.37
- 98,76 43562 34.03 445 10.07 563.33




Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financials statement as at and for the year ended 31 March

2022
{Amount in € million, unless otherwise stated)

Note 20 Other current financial liabilities

Current
Interest accrued and due
Interest accrued but not due
Others
- Liability for capital goods
- Security deposits
- Due to employees
- Purchase consideration payable for acquisition of York Winery (Refer note 45)
Total other current financial liabilities '

Other financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
Other financial liabilities carried at FVTPL

Note 21 Other current liabilities
Advance from customers
Statutory dues payable

Total other current liabilities

Space intentionally left blank

—,
G\\!\.N DI{)}J

Cra N

As at

As al

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

2.49 207
13.74 16.03
21.92 35.00
35.39 29.05
58.75 61.66
10.00 -
14229 144.71
142.29 144.71
11.87 10.36
174.99 157.71
186.86 168.07




Sula Vineyards Limited (Formery Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Summary of signiflcant accounting policies and olher cxplanatory information to the consolidated financials statement as al and for the year
ended 31 March 2022

{Amount in ¥ million, unless otherwlse stated)

Yioar ended Year andead
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Maote 22 Revenue from operatlons

{a) Sake of products (including oxcise duty) 381282 a710.82
(b} Sale of senvices 348,21 181.38
() (ither operaling revenues 3B0.13 2.0
Total revenue from operations 4 563916 A4,170.59

Mete 22.1; Information of disaggregated revenue as per Ind AS 115
{&) Based on nature of product or service:

(7] Sale of producls

- Manufacluraed goods 3,379.41 2.5499.58

- Traded goods 433.41 1,411.24
J.a12.82 3,710,682

(b} Saba of services 346,21 181.35

() Dlher oparating revenues

- Gowernmani grarnl 35345 273.42
Pravisions! balances no longer required writlen back 23.02 .81

- (Hhers 3.66 7.16
38013 257,54

Total revenus from operations 4,539,186 4,179.50

{B) Based on timing of revenue recognition:

Producis transierred at a point of time 381282 3,710.82
Services transferred al a poind of time 34621 151.38

I'he amaumts receivable lrom customers become due after axpiry of credit period which on an average ranges between 30-90 days. There iz no signilicant
financing component in any fransaction wilh the cuslomers, The Group doss not have any remaining performance obfigalion as contrcts enterad for sale of
gonds are for a shorler duration, Further, the Group's enliie business falls under one operational segmesnt of ‘manufacture, purchase and sale of alcohofic
beverages (refer note 44)

Reconciliation of revenue from operafions with contract price as required by Ind AS 115

Coniract prics 5,108.45 4. 669,67
Less: Hems offsed against revanue [rom cuslomars {350.42) TTAT)
4,150.03 389220

Mote 22.2: The following table gives delails in respect of contract revenues gencraled from the top customer and lop 5 customsrs

Revenue from lop cuslomes E05.51 629.39
Rovenus from top five customens 1,600.76 1,194.43

Far tha year ended 31 March 2022 one (1) custemer [[31 March 2021: ons (1) customar ), individually accounted for more than 10% of the tofal revenue,

Note 22,3; Relar nole 46 for disclosure on govarnmenl grants

Mote 23 Other Income
{a} Interest Income

- on linanclal assets carred at amoriized cosl 14,48 13.53
- on bank daposils 4.20 4.37
- o tax refund 0.38 4.28
- omn olhors 247 432
21.53 26.50
(k) Other non-operafing income
- Ingurance claim 2,49 1,05
- Renl Income 2.97 240
- Profit on disposal! cancallaton of lease agreement 0.40 2.5
- Mizcellaneous income o 0.45 347
6.2 9.3
Total ether Income 27.84 3673




Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financials statement as at and for the year

ended 31 March 2022
(Amount in ¥ million, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 24  Cost of materials consumead
(a) Stock at beginning of the year

- Raw materials

- Packing materials

(b) Add: Purchases
- Raw materials
- Packing materials

(c) Less: Stock at lhe end of the year
- Raw materials
- Packing materials

(d) Total cost of malerials consumed (a+b-c)
- Raw materials
- Packing materials

Total cost of materials consumed

Note 25  Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress / semi finished goods and stock-in-trade

(a) Opening stock
- Finished goods
- Work-in-progress
- Stock-in-trade

(b) Closing stock
- Finished goods
- Work-in-prograss
- Stock-in-trade

(c) Increase [ (decrease) in excise duty on finished goods

Total changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade (a-b+c)

Note 26 Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other fund (refer note 34)
Gratuity (refer note 34)

Share based paymenl expenses

Staff welfare

Total employee benefits expense

Note 27 Selling, distribution and marketing expenses
Sales promotion expenses

Commission expenses

Marketing expense

Total selling, distribution and marketing expenses

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

. 5.70
57.94 66.89
57.94 72.59

717.50 390.10
416.88 264.37
1,134.38 654.47
78.14 57.94
78.14 57.94
717.50 395.80
396.68 273.32
1,114.18 669.12
150.87 206.22
1,045.99 1,090.64
143.04 297.77
1,339.90 1,594.63
212.69 150.87
1,202.42 1,045.99
86.46 222.06
1,501.57 1,418.92
14.67 (22.02)
14.67 (22.02)
(147.00) 153.69
580.57 510.28
18.03 12.45
19.53 17.86
18.61 4.10
16.66 10.32
653.40 656.01
324.02 342.04
73.59 82.97
47.84 41.94
445.45 466.95




Sula Vincyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)

Summary of significant accounling policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financials statement as at and far the year

cnded 31 March 2022
(Amount in ¥ million, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 28 Ofher exponsces

Consumaldes, stores and spares consumed

Power and fuel

Repairs and mainienance

- Building

- (Hhers

Rales and taxes

Insurance
Security charges
Trawvelling and conveyance

Rent (refer node 0]

Paymeant e auditors:

- Statulory audil fees

- Limited review and tax audil foes

- other servicos

reimbursemean of exponscs

Lagal and professional fess

Director silling fees {refer note: 36)

Rosiaurant expenses

Resor mainienance SXpenses

IMreight and handling charges

Impairenl allowance on financial and nen-nancial aseets refer noles 9 and 11)
Fachange loss {net)
Loss on disposal of properly, plant and equipment [net}
Impairmanl allowanece on assets classified as held for sale {refer note 14.2)
Corporate social responsibilily crpenses (refer nole 42)
Prinling, slattonary, postage and telephone expenses
Office expenses

Mizcolianacus expensas

Taotal ather expanses

Mote 29 Fimance cosls

Inferesl ond

- loan from banks

- lease labiities (refer nola 40)
- cash ciedil facilities

- incorme fax

- othors

Olher bormowing costs
Total finance costs

Mote 30 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Dwpreciation on tangible assels (rafor nole 3)
Depreciztion on righl-of-use assets (refer nole 34)
Aanortisation of inlangible assols {refer note 4)

Total depreciation and amorfisation expense

Mote 31 Exceptional item
Impairmant loss on disposal group classilied as hold for sale (Refer nole 14.1}

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

99,38 G4, 35
76.05 52.35
12.a7 5.59
69.58 55.17
118.58 o187
9.46 5.0
17.58 13.37
24.35 2501
11,53 27.18
1.65 37T
1.18 1.36
0.20 0.20
0.05 0.04
30.06 53.55
4.06 3.03
62.49 27.46
46.51 78.74
50,57 BD.O7
46,30 2.94
0.72 2.05
0.47 31,93
17.05 11.80
8.82 415
15.12 10.65
17.56 10.79
36.64 29.01
B40.92 653.23
152,83 276.00
11.47 14.69
4.18 12,93
2.66 1.17
3.08 11.73
214,20 662
15.03 17,34
229.23 333.086_
183.70 198.03
44.30 A0.85
B.11 8.1
236.11 256,58
2241
- 22,41

Thie Holding Company in March 2021 enlered into 8 Memarandum of Understanding (MO for sale ol its Invesiment in Progressive Aloobey Distribidors
Limited ('FADPLY for & total consideralion of % 2989 miflion. Accordingly, the associated asests and liabilitios of PADPL alang with the goodwill on
acquisition (ihe ‘disposal group'} were classified as hald lor sale as at 31 March 2021, Also, the resuftant impaimment loss of F 22.41 milllion were recognised

againsl the goodwill 3 at 31 March 2021 as mentionad below:

(&) Mat assels ol PADPL as at 31 March 2021

(b} Mon-controfling interest in PADPL

() Mel Identifiable assets apportioned Lo holding company (51%) jo = a-b)
{d) Goodwill on acquisifion of PADEL

{e] Net assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale as-at 31 March 2021 (s = ¢4}

(1) Fair value less cost 1o sell
{g) Impairment loss on disposal group classified as held for sale (g = a-)

49,61
{24.311)

25.30
580

G210
[79.69)

2241




Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financials statement as at and for the year

ended 31 March 2022
{Amount in ¥ million, unless otherwize stated)

Mote 32 Earnings per share (EPS) Year ended Year endod
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Basic and diluted EPS

M. Profit computation for basic earnings per share of 2 2 each

Met profit as per 1ha Statement of Profit and Loss available for equity shareholders (% million) 521.39 27.80
B. Weighted average number of cquity shares for EPS computation {Nos) [Refer note 15(hj] .67, 71,14 7.52.75.764
Momina| Value 2 2
C., EPS - Basic EPS (%) &.79 0.37
- [Hluted EPS (3) 6.79 037

Motes

{a} Pursuani o the approval of the members at the 18th Annual General Meeting of the Holding Company held on 30 July 2021 to the sub-division of
the Equity Shares of the Holding Compary, sach Equity Share of nominal tace valus of ¥ 10 each was sub-divided to & (five) Equily Share of ¥ 2
ach. The effective date for the sakd sub-division was 30 July 2021, Consequent 1o 1he share split. carnings per share for the comparative period
have been retrospaciively adjustad.

(k) The options granted to employess under employee stock options and the equily share warrants issucd have an anfi dilutive effect on eamings per
share, based on the present condiions provatent, and hence have nol been considered in fhe determination of diluled earnings per share.

Mote 33 Contingent liabilities and commitments

A Contingent liabilities As at As al

31 March 2022 3 March 2021
i} Guaraniees issued by banks on behalf of the group 177.56 164.03
i) Income tax lability that may arise in respect of which the Growp Is in appeal z 45,80
i} Stamp duly lability that may arise in respect of matler for which the Group is in appeal 1541 15.41
iv) Others 1.0 1.01

v} Provident Fund:

Basad on the judgemeant by the Honourable Supreme Court dated 28 February 2019, past provident fund liability, is nol determinabla at prezent, in
view of uncerainty on the applicability of the judgement to the Group with respect to timing and the components of i1s compensation structure, In
absence of further clarification, the Group has been legally advised fo await further developments in this matler to reasonably assess the implicalions

on ils financial statemenis, if any.

Mote: || is not practicable for the Group to eslimale the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above pending resolution of the respective
proceadings. The Group does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above contingant liabiliies. Future cash oulflows in respect of the
above are determinable only on recelpl of judgments | decisions pending with various forums! authorities. The Group does nol expect any outflow of
economic resources in respoct of the above and therefore no provision is made in respect thereof,

B. Commitinants
Capilal commitments (net of capital advances) 14.87 466




Siila Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limitod)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory Information to the consolidated financials statement as at and for the year endad 31 March

2022

{Amaount in ¥ million, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 34: Disclosure relating to employes benefils as per ind AS 19 Employoe Benefiis'
| Defined benefit obligations - Gratuity (funded)

The gratuily plan is govemmed by the Payment of Graluily Acl, 1972 under which an employoe who hes compleled five years of sordce is enlilled 1o specific bencfils.

The level of bengfils provided depends on the member's lenglh of service and salary at retirament age.

a} Changes In defined banefit obligations
Frasen: value of the obligalion as al the heginning of the year
Current senvica cosl
Interest cosl
Remeasurements - Met actuarial losses
Benefils paid
Liablity assumed on account of group ransfer
Liability of & disposal growp classified as held for sale
Present value of the obligation as at the end of the year

b

=

Changes in fair value of plan assets of the gratuity plan
Plzn assels at lhe beginming of the year

Inlerosl ivdome

Condritaution by employar

Renefits paid

Remeasuremanls - kel aciuarial gain

Fair value of the plan assets at the end of the yoar

¢) Expenses recognised in the Consolldated Statement of Profit and Loas
Intere=i cosl {nel)
Currenl serdlce cost
Talal

d} Remeasurement losses recegnised in OC]
Remoasurement - Met actuarial losses on defined benefit obligations
Remeasuremant - Met actuarial gain on planned aszets
Adjustmant to recognize assel celling
Total

a

Movement In asset ceiling

Opening value of assol ceiling

Imterest on opening balance of asset cailing
Romeasuremeants dus to changes in surplus § (defict)
Closlng value of asset ceiling

f} Actuarial assumplions
Diisooun rale
Salary escalation rato

Mortality rate

Attrition rafo:

- Foa ages 21-30 years
- For ages 31-40 years
- For ages 41-50 yearg
- For ages 51-37 years

31 March 2022

31 Mareh #7021

Director: 0.00%

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality
{2042-2014)

Ultimate

13.50% p.a.
3.50% p.a.
8.50% p.a.
12.00% p.a.

120,55 11042
12.596 1257
T.07 £.491
2.50 ava
{#.26) (10,46}
2.7 -
- - (207}
141.53 120,50
15,36 2i04
0.54 102
100.18 1.70
{4.26) (10,46}
iTs (.06
115.61 15,06
6,53 5,44
13.00 12.37
19.53 17.8G
2,50 378
(0.97) {0.05)
(0.08) {0.26]
1.47 147
0.03 027
0.00* 0.02
(006} {0.26)
- (0.03) 0.03
As at A= at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
£.90% G.25% 1o 6.95%
Staff: 12%. Staff: 7% to 11.00%,

Direcion:
000%: urdil year 2
Inciusive. than 11.00%

Inddian As=ured Lives
Mortality
(2012-2014)

Ullimata

19,004 p.a.
B.00% pa.
0.00% poa.
13.00% p.a.

The estimates of fulure salary Increases, considered in scluarial valuation, take accounl al inflation, seniarity, promotion and olher relevant factors, such as supply

—

and demand in tho comployment market.



Sula Vineyards Limited (Farmerly Sula Vinoyards Privale Limited)
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information ta the censclidated financials stalement as at and for the year ended 31 March

2022

{Amount in ¥ million, unleas otherwise statad)

g} Investment detalls of plan assets

Major Categories of Plan Assels: 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Imzurar managed funds 100% 100%

The Graluity Scheme i= invested in 3 Mew Group Graluily Cash Accumalation Plan Policy offered by Life Insurance Corparation of indéa {LIC) and Aditya Birla Suinlife
Insurance Company |Imited. The information on (e allocation of the fund inls major asset chasses and expected relum on each major assel aic nul readily
available. Tho crpected re of retumn on plan assels is based an market expectations, 2l the beginning of the period. for relurns over the entire life of the related
obligafion.

h} Quantities sensitivity analysis for significant assumplion 15 as below:
Sensilivity for significant actuarial assumplions |5 computed by vandng one acluaral assumption used for the valuation of the defined banefil obligatian, keeping all
alier acluarizl assumptions constant, The signiicant actusrial assumplions ane discount rate and salary escatalion rale,

Year ended Year endoed
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

0.50% incroase
| Discount rate {4.29) {3.58)
ii. . Salary escalation rats 3.66 40

0.50% decrease
i. Discoun raic 4.55 379
ii. Salary pscalation rate {3.54) (3.29)

The sensilvily analysis presented above may nol be representzfive of the acluzd chame In the defined banefil obligation as It Is unlikely that the change in
assumption would occur In iselation of one anolher as he assumplions may be corralaled,

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
i} Maturity analysls of defined benefit obligation
Within the next 12 months 21.64 19.42
Between 2 and 5 yours 73,71 G6.11
Beyond 5 yous 14618 107451
Total expected payments 241.53 193.04

Defined contribution plans

The Group also has certain defined contrbution plans. The confribulions are made to registerad provident fund, Fmployees Stats Inswance Comoration [ESIC7)
administerad by the Government. The obiigation of the Group is limiled o the amount cantributed and il has no furher contractual nor any constuctve abligation.
The expense recognised during the perad towards defined contribution plans are as follows.

Yaar anded Yoear ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
a) Following amaounts have baen charged in the Consalidated Statemant af Profit and Loss for the year:
(i} Contribution to provident fund 17.19 1117
(i) Contribution lo ESIC 084 1.28
18.03 1245

b Tha leave obligalions cover the Groups's liabily for sick and privilege leaves. The amount of provision with respacl te lsave obligation is ¥ 21.23 million (31 March
2021 : T 686 million) |5 presented as currenl, sinee the Group does not have an wnconditional right to defer selilomaent fiar @iy of these obligations. Howeyer, based
on past expericnce, the Group does not expecl all employees ta take the full amount of 2ccrued leave or requirg payment within the next 12 months, The éxpense
recogrisad duting Hhe year towards leave encashment is ¥ 1509 million [31 March 2021 © 3 {5.67) milion].

As at Az at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current! non-current classification
a) Gratuity
1i} Current G.00 G0
6.00 G.00
{ii} Mon-curment 19.92 FHET
19.92 98,61
{iii) Mon-current prepald gratuity o £
25.92 105618
Iy Compensated absences
21.23 f.98

Currant

21.23 G.08




Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policles and other explanatory information to the consolidated financials statement as at and for the year ended 31 March
2022

{Amount in F million, unless otherwlse stated)

Mote 35 Financial instruments

The fair value af B financlal assets are included =l amounls a1 which the instruments could be exchanged in 3 curment transaction bobween willing parties other than in a
forced or liguidation sale, The following methods and assumpdions were used 1o estimale the fir valus;

{a} Fair valug of cash and shor-term deposits, ade and other shor-term roveivables, lrade payables, other currant Babililies, approximate their carmying amounts Ragely
due to e short-term maturitios of these instiemanis

(b} Finzncial instruments with lixed and variable interest rales are pyatunied by the Group based on parameters such as inferest rates and individual ciedil worthiness of the

conmerparty. Bazed on Whis evaluation, allowances are takon o accownt for the expected loszes of these receivables,

Financial instruments by category
The carning value and fair valus of financial instrurnents by categories as at 31 March 2022 were as follows:

Particulars Refar Amortised  Financlal assets)  Financial Derlvative Total carrying
nite cost liabilities at falr assets [ instruments in value
value through profit liabilities at hedging
or loss fair value relationship
through
ocl
Assols:
Invesiments in oguily sharss & - 005 - 003
Loans 3 30,72 = = ' JaT2
Trade receivables kE 1,083.84 - - - 1.0593.94
Cash and cash equivalanis 12 101,54 - - = 101.49
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 13 0385 ¥ - ¥ 93,65
Ciaher financial assels T D45.84 H = = 04580
Liakilities:
Barrowings 16 22803 = = 226931
Leasze Lizbilifics 17 10862 - - 10982
Trade payables 14 Bid.df = - + 674,45
Ciiner financial liabililies et 14229 = - = 14229
The carrying value and falr value of finzncial instremenls by categories as at 31 March 2021 were as follows:
Particulars Refer Amortlsed  Financial assets | Financial Derivative Total carrying
nota cost liakilities at falr assets |/ instruments In value
valua through profit liabllitles at hadging
or loss fair value relationship
through
ocl
Assels:
Imvesiments in eguily shares 4 - - 0.07 = 0.03
Lozing <} 220G = = E 7225
Trade receivablos B 1,236.17 * - 1.23617
Cash and cash equivalanis 12 407,91 7 > = 407 .91
RBank balances olher han cash and cash equivalents 13 109.71 - = ¥ 108.71
CHher linanclal asaets T B&Y.12 - - - BET.E
Liabilitles:
Raorrewings 16 2.964.15 - - 48,41 301256
Lease Liabllites o i 130.01 - - 138,01
Trade payablas 14 58333 = x HH3.33
Cibver linancial Babilities 20 14411 = r - 144,71
Fair valus hicrarchy

Level 1 - Cusoled prices {unadjusted) in active marksls for identical assets or BEabililics
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices inchuded wilhin | evel 1 that are observable for the assel or kability, either direclly (Lo, as prices} or indirectly (i.e. derved from

prices)
Level 3 - Inputs for the assels o liabilities that are not based on cheerable marked data (unobsenvable inpuls)

Thi lollowing takle presents fair value hicrarchy of assets and liabiliies measured 2l fair value on a recurring basis as al:

Particulars B 21 March 2022 31 March 2021 _
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Lz} 1 Level 2 Level 3

Aasels

Investments in equity shares . - ) - 003 x z (03

Impact of hedging actlvitias
The Group uses foreign exchangs forward conlracls to hedge against the fareign currency sk of highly probable USD borrawings. Sueh,

govered by the Halding Company's pulicies approved by the Board of Dircelors, which provide written p o uge of such i
Company's sk management skaleny, As the value of the derative instiumanl generally changes in rgffdp:

aslahlished. /=

a) Disclosure of effects of hedge accounting in the Company's balance sheet



Sula Vineyards Limited (Formarly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consclidated financials statement as at and for the yoar engded 31 March
2022

[Amount in ¥ million, unless olherwise stated)

Change in value
Change in fair of hedged ltem

i T
Carrying amount (¥ Maturity Hedge Strike walue of hedging  wsed as the basis

HNominal

valua in USD - enillion) Drate ralioc  pricef rate instrumint for recognising
(F in million) heclge
ffecti 55
Rescls  Liabilities by
As at 31 March 2022
Cash flow hedge - Foreign currency
forward contract
USININE - - - - - - - -
As at 31 Mareh 2021
Cash flow hedge - Foraign curfency 4,550,000 - 48.41 [ ebsany /5] 73.83 Q.35 0.21
forward contract A2
Ry 20021
USEHING

b) Disclosure of effects of hedge accounling In the Company's profit or (loss) and other comprehensive income

(2 in millan}
Chaarmge in the value
ke hocing i [I:::El?«?:was
f hed nstrment I::::-:: ni&;ﬂ in
Ll recognised in other g
comprehensive statement of profit or
loss

irecoime

For the year ended 31 March 2022
Cacsh flow hedge =

Faor the year ended 21 March 2021
Cash flow hedge (0.21) {014}




Sula Vineyards Limited {Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policles and other explanatory information to the consolidated financials statement as at and for the year
ended 31 March 2022
{Amount in ¥ million, unlass otherwise stated)

Mote 36 Disclosure in accordance with Ind AS 24 Related Party Disclosures

A, Names of related parties and nature of relationship

(a)

(b

(g

(d)

i

Ultimate Parent Company (having control ovar the entity)

Verlinvast Group Sh

Enfities under common control (with whom transactions have taken place during the year or in the previous year)

Verlinvest Asia Ple Lid.
Verlinves! S.A

Cofintra S.A.
Werlinvest France 5.4

Key management personnel (KMP)
Fajesy Samant
Chetan Dresai
Micholas Peter Y Cator
Deepak Shahdapuri
Hank Uberaoi

JA. Moos

Kerry Damskey

Mok Vajpeyi

Shagun Tiwari

Arjun Anand

Raharo llala
Sangeeta Pendurkar
Chaitanya Halh™®

Bitu Varghese*

Ruchi Satha*

Relatives of Key Management Parsonnal:
Sulabha Samant

Bharat Samant

[Taisy Damskey

Suresh Samant

Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director
Chairman and Independent Directar

Director (resigned w.ef. 3 December 2020
Director (resigned w.ef. 1 July 2021}

Diracter (resigned woef 1 July 2021}

Director (resigned w.e.t. 14 May 2020)
Riractor (resignad w.e.l. 29 September 2021)

Independant Director (appointed w.e.f 2 Decembar 2020}

Diractor (resignad woel. 5 October 2021}
Independent Director
Diirector {appointed w.el 15 July 2021}

Independant Diroctor (appointed w.e.f. 15 December 2021}

Chief Operating Officer
Chief Financial Officar
Company Secretary

Mother of Rajesy Samant
Brother of Rajecy Samant
Wife of Kerry Damskey
Father of Rajsav Samant

Entity in which relative of Key Management Personnal have control:
Margarita Andronova, Director (wife of Managing Diraclor)

Summerlat Privale Limited

* Pursuant to the hoard mecting of the Helding Company held on 23 February 2022, Chaitanya Rathi, Bittu Varghese and Ruchi Sathe have been

deslgnated as key managerial personnel. Thercfore, only transactions entered after 23 February 2022 have been disclosed.

B. Nature of Transactions

Transactions with related parties:

Sale of products
Fajesv Samani
Suresh Samant
Bharat Samant

Purchase of proparty, plant and equipmeant
Fajeey Saman
Surosh Samant

Purchase of raw materialzs
Fajeey Samant

Suresh Samant

Sulabha Samant

Bharal Samant

Interest expense
Fajeay Samant

Conversion of share warrants into eguity shares
Rajeey Samant

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
0.43 0,14
0.34 0.19
- 0,04
0.77 0.37
16623 55,00
23.65 -
190.58 55.00
5.01 6.74
4.98 5.58
0.03 0.47
1.40 1 _{ui
1142 14.41
0.05 -
216.45 17.38




Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Frivate Limited)

Summary of significant accounting peolicies and other explanatory information to the consolldated financials statement as at and for the year

ended 31 March 2022

{Amount in # million, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 36 Disclosure in accordance with Ind AS 24 Related Party Disclosures

Director's sitting fees paid/payable
Daapak Shahdadpuri
Kernry Damskey

JoAL hoos

Hank Ubergi

Michalas Peter Y Cator
Arjun Anand

Chetan Desai

Alok Majpeyi

Ashit Lilani

Gayatr Yadaw

Shagun Tiwari
Sangeeta Pendurkar

Lease rentals
Rajeey Samant
Suresh Samant

Legal and professional expenses
Summerlab Private Limited

Commission expensea
Chetan Desai

Dividend

Vedinvest Asia Pie Lid.
Werdinvest 5.4
Cofintra 5.A.
Werinvest France 5.4
Rajeev Samant
Suresh Samant
Sulabha Samant
Daisy Damskey
Kery Damskey
Sangeeta Pendurkar

Loan taken
Rajeey Samant

Loan repaid
Rajeev Samant

Compensation to key managerial person®

Rajeoy Samant
Chaitanya Rathi
Rittu Varghesa
Ruchi Sathe

C) Oustanding balances:

Trade payables
Rajeey Samant
Suresh Samant
Sulabha Samant
Bharat Samant
Chetan Dasai

Money received against share warrants

Rajecy Samant

Compensation to key managerial person (Including share based payments)®

Rajery Saman|
Chaitanya Rathi
Billu Varghose
Ruchi Sathe

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
- 0.15
n.ov 015
- 0.04
- 215
a 0.08
0.829 0.30
1.30 1.04
1.20 060
= 0.28
x: 0.04
0.30 0.z0
0.30 -
4.06 3.03
2.00 216
1.49 245
3.49 462
- 1.10
1.20 -
4411 -
17.98 -
17.08 -
16.45 -
48.23 -
1.69 -
3.74 -
0.95 -
0.09 -
0.31 -
151.53 -
20.00 -
20.00 =
28.27 30.00
2.1 -
0.98
0.20 =
31.66 30.00
As at Asal
3 March 2022 31 March 2021
1.46 6.54
213 .
0.01 047
0.49 1.58
108 -
517 13.97
219 &.49
1.24
1.24




Sula Vineyards Limited {Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)

Summary of significant accounting pelicies and other explanatory information to the consolldated financials statement as at and for the year ended 31
March 2022

{Amount In T million, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 37 Financlal risk management objectives and policies

The Group's activities expose [ o a varisty of linancial risks: market risk, cradit risk and liquidity isk. The Group's focus is to foresea the unprediciability of financial
markats znd scok 1o minimize potential sdverse effects on its financial perfarmance.

Market risk
arked risk is the risk that the fair value of fulure cash flows of 2 financial instiement will fluciuale because of changes in markel prices. Market risk comprises Lheae
lypas of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and ather price risk, such as equity prica sk, Major financial instruments affected by markat risk includes lnans and
borrowings.

. Interest rate risk
Inlerest rate rak is the rish thal the fair walue or fulure cash dows of a financial inslisment will fluciusle because of changes in markal inlorest rates. The Group's
axposure 1o lhe risk of changes in markat inlorest rales relates primarily Lo the Group's tolal debl sbligations with flaating interesl rates,

Interest rate sensitivily
The faoliowing table demonstrates the sensilivity 1o a reasonably possible change in interast rales on that portion of loans and burrowings affected. With all olher
variables held constant, the Group's profit { {loss) before tax is affécted through fhe impact on fleating raie horrowings, as follows:

{ % In millian)
As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
0.50% 0.50% 0.50% L50%
increasc decrease increasa decreane
Impact on profil before tax 11.44 {11.44) 15.05 {145.040)

The assumed movemeni in basis paints for the inlarest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently obaarvable market enviranmenl, showing a significantly
higher volatilily than in pricr years.

. Forelgn currency risk

The Group doss nol have significant outstanding balances in foreign currency and consequently tha Growp's exposure to foreign exchanga nsk is less. Although, 1he
exchange rale belwesn the rupee and foreign currencies has changed in recent years, it has not affectad the resulls of the Group, The Group evaluales cxchange
rale exposure aising from forelgn currency transactions and follows establishad risk management policies.

The follawing table presents the foreign currency risk from financial instruments (excluding those covered through hedged instrumants) as al 31 March 2022

F equivalent in millioh

Particulars ush EUR GBP AUD AED Others *

Assols

Trade receivables 2548 haa 083 - -

Capltal advances - 043 - - - -

Advance lo suppliers bz = - 5 - =
2575 581 0.83 - = -

Liabilities

Trade pavahles 19.18 2004 - 0.03 HE L o2

Liabilily for capilal goods - 016 - - - -
19.18 2047 - 0.03 .46 002

Met assets [ (liabilities) 6.57 [14.36) 0.83 {0.03) [0.45) [0.02)

The following lable analysis farsign currency sk from financial instruments as at 31 March 2021 Z sguivalent in mlllian

Particulars uso EUR GBP AUD Others *

Asseta

Trade receivables 29.80 a6z 0.83 - B

Capital advances - 0.54 - -

Advance to suppliers 037 .21 ¥ - =

30.57 4.37 0.83 = -

Liabilltics

Borrowings 2.21 n - - -

Liability for capial goods - .08 - -

Trade payalbies 11.98 4780 0. - 108

14.18 55.88 0.0 - 1.08
Met assets [ (liabllities) o 16.39 {51.51) 0.52 - {1.08)

* Includes Canadian Doltar, Russian Rubel and Crvirati Dicham

Sensitivity analysis
O the ahave tha Group |s mainly expased lo WSD and FUR. Hence the fo)
these curencles against (3] milliens | with all pther variablas held constan
reparting date



Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)

Summary of significant accounting paolicies and other explanatory information to the cansalldated financials statement 23 at and for the year ended 31
March 2022

{Amaount in T million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Impact on profit before tax for the
year

Currencias 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Uso n.33 0,82

CURD iz 258

. Equity price risk

The Group's non-Hsted equity securifies are susceptible to market price risk ansing from uncerainties aboul fulure values of the investimunl securities, The Group
rmanages the equity price rizk trough diversification and by placing limits on individual and Letal eguily instruments. Reports on e equity prrfolia are submilied Lo
the Group's senior managemant on a regular basis. Holding Company's Board of Direclors reviews and approves all cquity investment dacisions.

Crodit risk
Credit risk arises from (e possibifiy that the counder parly may not be able fo selis their obligations a5 agreed. The maximum £xposure aof the financial assels anc
contributed by lrade receivahbles and ofher linancial assets.

Trade recelvables

Trade rocoivables are fypically unsecured and are derved from revenue eamed from beo main classes of trade receivablas o receivables from sales 1o
government carporalions and receivahles fram sales o private third parties. A subslantial podicn of the Graup's tradea recelvables are from govemment corporalion
custamers having strong credit worlhiness. Further, Group's historical experience of collecting receivables is thal credit risk is low. Hence lrade receivahies are
considered 1o ba a singla class of financial assats.

Az at 31 March 2022 Az at 31 March 2021
2 million kA T millien Vo
Trade recelvables
frony governmanl corporation 611.34 55._8B8% 763,508 61.77%
- frarm peivate parias 482.60 A4 12% AT2.589 28.23%
Total trade receivables (refer note 11) 1,093.94 100.00% 1,236.17 100.00%
The movement of the allowance for lifetime expectod credlt loss is stated balow:
Az at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Batance at the haginning of the year 3332 30,38
Irpairment allowance 45.03 294
Balancs at the end of the year 78,35 3332

Financial assets other than trade recelvables

Financial sssets othar than ade receivahles comprize of cash and cash equivalents, bank balances ofher than cazh and cash equivalents, govemment grant
recaivablas and loan to employess, The Group menitors the credit exposure on these financizl assets on a case-lo-case basis. Basad on lhe Group's histarical
axporicnce, the credit isk on the above mentioned financial assels is alse assessed 1o be low.




Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Summary of significant accounting polieles and other sxplanatory Infarmation to the consolidated financlals statement as at and for the year ended 31 March

2022
{Amount in ¥ million, unless otherwise stated)

Liquidity risk

Liguidily |5 defined as the risk thal he Group will not be able fo sellie o meel ils obligations on fima or al & reascnable price. The Group's Lisasury departmant is
responsitle for kguidity, funding 25 well as sellement management. In sddilion, processes and policies related lo such risks are cversesn by seniur management.
Management monilors e Group's net liquidily posilion Bieunh rolling forecasts on lhe basis of expected cash flows.

The table below provides details regarding the confraclual maturities of significant financial Fakdlites as at 31 March 2022

Parliculars
As al 31 March 2022 On demarnd Leas than 1 year 1«5 yoars More than 5 Total
Yaars
Barrawings 1,287 50 h21.14 48067 - 2,289.31
Trado payables - R74.45 - - A74.45
Leass liabilties - 5021 61.30 - 111.51
Other financial fiabilitios - 14229 = = 14249
1,287.50 1,388.00 541.97 = 3,217.56

As at 31 March 2021
Borrowings 167294 TaH.43 59119 301256
Trade payables 5 433,33 - 563,33
Lease liabilities - 44941 113.23 0,33 162497
CHher financial liabilitas = 14471 - - 144.71

- 1,672.54 1,525.88 TO4.42 0.3 3,003.57

Mole 38 Capltal managemant

Forthe purpose of the Groug's capital management, capital includes |ssued equity capital and all elher equity reserves aitributable to the equity holders of the Group. 1he
Group siives 1o safeguard is abilily to continue 38 a going concem so thal hey can maximiza raturns for lhe shareholders and benefits for olhur slake holdars. The aim
to mainlain an optimal capital structure and mirimise cost of capital.

The Group manages it capital stracture and makes adjustiments in fght of changes in economic conditions and the requiterments of the financial covanants. To maintain
or adjust the capial stuclire, the Group may return capilal Lo shareholders, issus new shares or adjust the dividend payment b shareholders {if parmitlad). Congsistent
wilh others in the indusiry, We Group moniors its capital using e gearing ratio which is tofal dobl divided by 1otal equity atiributable to owners of the parent.

Asat Aag at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Total debi 228931 A.012.56
Total eqguily 34952.59 104739
Total debts to cquity ratlo (Gearing ratio) 0.58 0.9%

In order in achieva this overall abjective, the Group's capilal management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it mests finandial covenants attachad to the
borrowings that define the capital structure requirements. In the lang run, the Group's stirategy is to maintain the gearing ratio of less than 075,

MNote 38 interest in other entities - Subsidlarles

The Group's subsidiaries as al 31 March 2022 are sel out below, Unless otherwisa staled, hey have share capital consisling sulely of equity shares that.are held direclly
Ivy the Group, and ihe proposbon of ownership interesis held equals the voling rights held by he Group, The country of incorporation |s also their principal place of
business,

Mame of the antity Ownership interest held by the Ownership inlerest held by non- _
eumtry af aroup cantralling interests Principal activities
Incorporation
) 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Arfizan Spirits Privale Limited India 100.00% H00.00% Busingss of manufaciuring

of wines and Trading of
wines and epirits

Progressive Alcobey Distributors Private recdizy - 51.00% - 49.00% Business of Trading  of
Lirnited® {w.a.f. 14 Movember 2098) wines and spinils
Sula Infernational Limited®» Lnited Kingdam 100, 040%: 1040005 - Busingss of Trading of

winas and spirits

Consequontly, with effest from 1 April 2021, PADPL ceased 1o be ite subsidiary company [Refer note 47]
magyla International Limited, a wholly owned subsidiany has baen struck off woe 18 Agril 2022 .




Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consclidaled financials statement as at and for t

year ended 31 March 2022
{Amount in # million, unless othorwise stated)

Mote 40 Leases - Ind AS 116
Right-of-use Assets:

(i} The net carrying value of right-of-use assets as at 31 March 2022 amounts to ¥ 93.05 million (31 March 2021: ¥ 125.25 million) have been

disclosed on the face of he balance sheet (Also refer nole 34)

Lease liabilities;

(i) As at 31 March 2022, the obligations under finance leases amounts to ¥ 109,82 million {31 March 2021 © ¥ 132.01 rrillion) which have beer

ciassificd to lease liabilities, under financial lisbilities. (Also refer note 17)

Particulars As at Mg at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Currenl Lease liabilitics 47.39 38.95
Mon-Currant Lease liahilities i 43 100.06
Total Lease liabilities 109.82 139.01

(i) The following is the movement in lease liabilities for the year ended 31 March 2022:

As at As al
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Opening balance 139:01 245,00
Additions during the year 16,68 1.90
Finance cosi accrued during the yoar 11.47 14.69
Paymenl of lease liabilitins (53.50) (66, 78)
Termination during the year [5.84) (G580}
Closing balance 109.82 139.01
{iii} The table holow provides delails regarding the contractual malurities of lease liabilitics
Contractual cash flows
Legsetlabies Carrying amount Total 0-1 year 1-5 years il
above
31 March 2022 109.82 111.51 50.21 61,30 z
3 March 2021 139.01 162.97 4841 113.23 0.33
The Group recoghnised the following in the statement of profit and loss:
Year ended Year ended

Particulars

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Depreciation oxpenses on righl-ol-use assets (rafer notes 34 and 30)

Finance cost on lease liahilities (refer note 29)

Rant exponse pertaining o leases of low-value assets

Renl expense pertaining to leases with less than 12 months of lease included under rent expenses
(refer note 28)

4430
11.47

11.53

49.85
14.69

2718




Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financials statement as at and for the year ended 31 March
2022

(Amount in ¥ million, unless otherwise stated)

Note 41 Unhedged foreign currency exposure

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As al 31 March 2021
Currencies Foreilgn currency Amount in ¥ Foreign currency Amount in ¥
Trade receivables usD 3,35,655 2548 4,04,252 29.80
EUR 63,895 5.18 42,102 3.62
GBP 8,268 0.83 8,268 0.83
Trade payables uUsb 2,52,663 19.18 1,59,360 11.98
EUR 2,327,616 20.01 6,45,822 47 .80
GBP - - 89 0.01
AUD 550 0.03 - -
AED 22,177 0.46
Others* 21,000 0.02 82 956 1.08
Borrowings usD - - 30,000 2.21
Liability for capital Goods EUR 1,944 0.16 93,994 8.08
Advance to suppliers UsD 3,605 0.27 10,671 0.77
EUR - - 2,449 0.21
Capilal advances EUR 5,152 0.43 6,247 0.54

* Includes Canadian Dollar, Russian Rubel and Emirati Dirham

Note 42 Corporate social responsibility expenditure

As per the Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, every year the companies are required to spend at least 2% of their respeclive average nel profit made during the
immediately 3 preceding financial years on lhe Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities. Following is the information regarding projects undertaken and expenses
incurred on CSR activities by the Group. .

a. Gross amount required to be spent by the Group during lhe year: ¥ 2.82 million (31 March 2021: ¥ 4.11 million)

b. Amount spenl during the year on CSR activities: Z 8.82 million (31 March 2021 : ¥ 4.15 million) the details of which is as given below:

For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Infrastructure and Social Support in Nasik 1.85 1.53
Plantation Afforestation and Maintenance of Existing Plantation Project 0.97 1.02
Contribution to Prime Ministers National Relief Fund 3.00 1.60
Chief Minister Disaster Management Fund 3.00 4

Total 8.82 4.15

Note 43 Disclosures required pursuant to Ind AS 102 - Share Based Payment

The Holding Company has granied stock options under the employee slock oplion schemes. During the year ended 31 March 2022, employee stock option scheme
(ESOS 2018(2)), employee stock option scheme (ESOS COO & CFO 20189), Employee stock option scheme (ESOS 2020) and Employee stock option scheme (ESOS
2021) are in existence. These options would vest based on the vesting condilions as per letter of grant execuled between the Holding Company and the employee of the
Holding Company or its subsidiaries. Each option when exercised would be converted into one fully paid-up equily share of ¥ 2 each of the Holding Company. The
relevant details of the scheme, grant and activity under ESOS scheme are summarized below:

A. The number and weighted average exercise prices of, and movements in, share option:

Particulars No. of Options  Weighted Average
Price
QOutstanding as at 1 April 2020 111,479 856.04
Options granted during the year 64,812 944,86
Options forfeited/lapsediexpired during the year (10,000) 850.00
Options outstanding as at 31 March 2021 166,291 891.02
Options exercised during the year * (30,000) 631.00
Total outstanding options before share split 136,291 850.00
Add: Impact of share split on 30 July 2021 [Refer note 15(h)] 545,164 (680.00)
Total outstanding options post share split f 681,455 170.00
Options granted during the year 2,153,065 170.00
Options forfeited/lapsed/expired during the year (23,000) 170.00
Options outstanding as at 31 March 20224 2,811,510 170.00

* The weighted average share price at the dale of exercise of oplion was ¥ 122.8 per share.

A The options outstanding as at 31 March 2022 are wilh the weighted average exercise price of ¥ 1?0._ per-share (31 March 2021 % 891.02 per share). The weighted
average of lhe remaining contractual life is 1 year. NAR A
SZ2a N




Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financials statement as at and for the year ended 31 March
2022

{Amount in ¥ million, unless otherwise stated)

B. Fair value of the options has been calculated using Binomial Pricing Model. The following inputs were used to determine the fair value for options granted
during the year:
Particulars ESOS 2018 (2)

ESOS 2019 ESOS 2019 (2)

3years Vesting CFO - 24 months COO - 15 months CFO - 12 months  COO -12 months

Period vesting period vesting period vesting period vesting period
Date of Grant 07 June 2018 07 June 2019 07 June 2018 14 May 2020 14 May 2020
Market Price (Z) 76.25 76.25 76.25 76.25 76.26
Expected life (in years) 3 3 3 3 3
Volatility* 46.00% 46.00% 46.00% 46.00% 46.00%
Risk Free rate (%) 541% 5.41% 5.41% 5.41% 5.41%
Exercise Price 170 170 170 170 170
Dividend Yield (%) 1.31% 1.31% 1.31% 1.31% 1.31%
Option Fair Value (%) 7.26 11.87 7.32 7.69 7.60
ESOS 2020 ESOS 2019 (3) ESOS 2020 (2) ESOS 2021
1 Year Vesting CFO - 12 months COO - 12 months 1 Year Vesting 1 Year Vesting
Period vesting period vesting period Period Period
Date of Grant 29 Sep 2020 15 July 2021 15 July 2021 15 July 2021 30 July 2021
Market Price (T) 76.25 122.8 122.8 122.8 122.8
Expected life (in years) 3 1.09 1.09 1.47 1.61
Volatility* 46.00% 42.76% 42.76% 43.03% 43.07%
Risk Free rate (%) 5.41% 3.78% 3.78% 3.78% 4.15%
Exercise Price 170 170 170 170 170
Dividend Yield (%) 1.31% 2.44% 2.44% 2.44% 2.44%
Option Fair Value (%) 7.06 B8.85 8.85 9.68 13.64

* Expecled volatility reflects assumption that the hislorical volatility over a period similar to the life of the options is indicative of fulure trends, which may not necessarily be
the aclual outcome.
Note 44 Segment reporting

The Group is engaged in the business of manufacture, purchase and sale of alcoholic beverage (wines and spirits). The Executive Committee of the Group (being the
Chief Operating Decision Maker) assesses performance and allocates resources for the business of the Group as a whole and hence the management considers Group's
business activilies as a single operating segment (viz. Beverage alcohol).

The following informalion discloses exlernal revenues and non-current assets based on the physical location of the customers.

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
India Outside India India Qutside India
Revenue from operations 4,444.38 94.78 3,906.75 272.84

Non-current assels i 3,880.15 - 3,446.57 -




Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limitod)

Summary of algnificant accounting policies and other explanatory infermation o the consolidated financials statement as at and for the year ended 31 March
2022

{(Amountin ¥ million, unless otharwise slated)

Mote 45 Business Gombinatlon

a. Summary of acquisition

Artisan Spirils Privale Limited (ASPL) & wholly owned subsidiary of the Holding Company weel. 1 Augusl 2021, has acquired 1he businass oporations of York Winery
Private Limited {"vWRL), logether wilh all the brands, infrastruciures in refation 1o the winery and a5 2 going concern on a slump sale basis for a folal consideration of £
171,68 million.

Yurk winery is engaged in the busingss of manufacturing and sale of dumeslic wines from fis winery in Mashik, India. Il also has small set up for tasting room and
restaurant wilhin winery, The acquisition will help fhe Group In expanding the markst shara in Maharashia and other states. The wine lourism al the wirery will help in
crealing swareness aboul Whe wine which will in turn boost the growth in Lhe wine market, The defails of net assels atquired and purchaze consideration are as follows.

Particulars As at As ol
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Fropery plant and agquipment T1.65 x
Invenlosics 3E.54 -
| pans and advance 3.7 T
Irade receivables 9.32 -
Cash and cash equivalents 013 -
Brand G0.30 -
Trada payables (16.0:0) -
Cither current liabililios (5.73} z
Mat identiflable aszsets at fair valug 163.22

Goodwill arising oo acquisitian (refer nole 4} B.43 =
Purchase consideration pursuant lo Business Transfer Agreemant 171.65 -

Cash flow on acquisition
Purchase consideration paid 161,65 =

. Pursiant to business fransler agreement, defered considaration of ¥ 10.00 millkan shall he payable sfler realisalion of cerain assets acquired.

- There wera no contingent consideralion arrangement involved in relation 1o above acguisition.

- The transaction did not involve any inheritance of contirgent lability.

- This acquisifion gave rise 1o goodwill ameunting to  B.43 million, being excess of consideration amounl over [alr value of assets under acquizilion. The gaid
goedwill being capital in fhe natura is nol eligible 1o be deducted for fax purposes.

by, Revenue and Profit contribution
The acquired business confribulad o he Group's revenue from operation lo the lune of #6654 million and earned profil before Lax of ¥ 7,93 million to the group for tha
pericd 1 Augusl 2027 o 31 March 2022,

If the acquisition had taken place on 1 April 2021, then contribulion of Yok lo the revenue from opration and profil for lhe perad 1 Apdl 2021 to 31 March 2022 would

have been 2 10281 milion and ¥ 11.80 milion and (he resultant pro-forma revenue and profil of e group would have been 2 4,573.43 million and § £39.34 millicn
respectivehy.

Space Intentionally ieft blank

G by

=¥ -

e
ol EDAGT




Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited)
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatery information to the consolidated financlals statement as at and for the year ended 31
March 2022

{Amount in ¥ million, unless otherwise stated)
Mote 46: Government grants
The disclosures pursuzn e Ind AS 20 "Accounting for Government Granl and Disclosure of Government Assistance’ are a5 follows;

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Government Granls al the beginning of the year 653.94 78664
Add: Government granl accrued during the year 353.45 27342
Less: Governmenl Granl recaived during the year 130.51 A16.12
Governmen] Granls at the end of the year 876.88 6553.94
Currant T13.16 464.19
Mon-current 163.72 189.75

Government Grants refatad to Wine Incenfive Promation Subsidy (WIPS) schema launched by the state of Maharashira, Under Lhe schiome, VAT paid by Group
on wine manulaciured from grapes produced in Maharashira and subseguently sold In Maharashtra is eligible for 80% refund. The Group being invelved in the
husiness of wing manufacturing, avails WIFS incentive. There are no unfulfliiled conditions or contingencies allached lo lhese grants.

Mote 47: Loss of control in subsidiary

The Holding Company in March 2021 had enlered inte an MOU to sell its investment in Progressive Alcobav Distributors Limited (PADPLY) for & lolal
consideration of  29.68 milion. Accordingly, lhe assoclated assets and liabilities of PADTL along wilk lhe goodwill on acquisition (the ‘disposal group’) were
clazsified as held for sale and the resullanl impairment loss of ¥ 22,41 million had heen recognised during the year ended 31 March 2021, During the year lhe
Holding Company has compleled the sale of ils investment in PADPL effective 1 April 2021, Conseguently. with effect from 1 April 2021, FADPL caazad (o be itz
subsidiary company.
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